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JOHN J. MAGOVERN, JR. [Chairman]: Gentlemen,
this, as you are all aware because you are experts in the
field, I believe, is Task Force F, which is concerned with
Public Credit as part of the studies of the New Jersey
Tax Policy Committee.

An agenda has been sent, I believe, to those who are
prepared to testify. We have seven registrants and it
would appear to be proper to take them in the order in
which they are listed.

Although we have our names here, for those who are
near-sighted or far-sighted or because of very poor printing
by Mr. Dyke, I should perhaps introduce the individuals:
Assemblyman Pfaltz on the far end, Mr. Dilworth, Dr. Miller,
myself, John Magovern, Senator Crabiel, Mr. Jesser, and
Mr. Moak who is not a part of the Committee but who is an
expert in this field.

The first witness to be heard would be Mrs. Crawford,
but I do not see her here. She is from the Municipal
Receivers, Tax Collectors and Treasurers Association of New
Jersey. I don't know whether there would be anyone in
her place or not.

MR. MOHOR: I am Mr. Mohor from the Township of East
Brunswick. I am the President of the Municipal Finance
Officers Association. I am representing both Associations.

MR. MAGOVERN: The Municipal Finance Officers Association,
Mr. Mohor, was the next one registered. So if you would
like to speak on behalf of both the Municipal Receivers and
the Municipal Finance Officers Association, you may do so.

MR. MOHOR: Unfortunately, I told Mr. Dyke, I do not
have a paper prepared. I didn't know about this meeting
until late on Thursday. Since then though, I have tried
to assemble my thoughts in as quick a time as I could.

The main thing that concerns the Finance Officers is the rating.

MR. MAGOVERN: We have very excellent stenographers
and competent people here so you needn't hesitate about a
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paper. They will be able to take down what is said. But,
please, first identify yourself by name. Would you be more
comfortable sitting down over in the chair over here? And
if you have anyone with you that you want to consult with,

bring him along.

A RTHUR B. M O H O R, J R.: First of all, I
will introduce myself. I am Arthur Mohor. I am the President
of the Municipal Finance Officers Association of the State
of New Jersey. I am also a member of the Municipal
Receivers, Tax Collectors and Treasurers Association, of
which Mrs. Ruth Crawford is the President. I am here in
behalf of the Association, also as Director of Finance of
the Township of East Brunswick, which is where I picked up
some of these problems.

I do not know whether you gentlemen are aware of it,
but in May of 1970 Moody's Investors Service and Standard
and Poor for the year before had been requesting fees from
each municipality when they were going to have a bond issue,
which is something new, but certainly understandable. I
have a letter I would like to read from Moody's: "Enclosed
is a copy of our revised policy statement regarding fee
ratings. Basically the intent is to charge each issuer
when bonds are sold on or after May 15, 1970. Certainly
credit reviews include not only the issuer's credit but
other issuers, including separate school districts and other
agencies up to the county level. Since the fee is payable
only when bonds are sold, it may be that the fee is payable
only once in several years by each issuer. This seems to
most issuers a more reasonable approach rather than to
charge for each issue as sold. The revision in our original
policy took this situation in consideration. If we did
not charge this way, it would seem inequitable to the
issuer who pays when an issue is sold. Of course, the
surveillance of ratings between sales which frequently

are several years apart is maintained without any additional



charge. Each rating for a fee is good for at least a year or
such longer period until the next sale. I hope you can
appreciate the need for this approach."”

This letter was written to me because in East Brunswick
we had a school district that was sold last week and they
had to pay Moody's a fee for having their bonds rated.
However, the municipality is going to have a sale probably
in February or March - at least it will be in the year 1971 -
and we again must pay another fee for the township.

You know as well as I do in this brochure that we make
up, the prospectus for bond sales, or the brochure for rating
agencies, they include the same information: the percentage
of taxes collected, the population, etc. It seems like dual
work. However, this is between the municipalities of the
State and Moody's and/or Standard and Poor.

What bothered the Association is the fact that not only
do you have to get this rating - and I will read a telegram
to you to show you just how important these ratings are, at
least how our arms are a little bit bent. The municipality
had a bond issue in August 1970 and on July 15th I received
the following telegram from Standard and Poor, addressed to
me, Arthur Mohor, Township Treasurer, Municipal Building,

East Brunswick:

"We no longer rate municipal bonds on a voluntary basis,
but only for a fee. Because we have not had a request to
rate your issue selling July 27th, both the new issue and all
outstanding bonds will now be considered as not rated. If
you desire us to continue rating your obligations, we will
be pleased to do so."”

There is one other aspect of this rating problem and
that is that it does not come cheap and I have something
with me here on that. I am presenting problems here and I
have one solution if you can bear with me a minute.

The fees to be effective are as follows: (The population of
the borrowing unit is how they base it.) 2Zero to 50,000, the

minimum fee is $600. Now this is Moody's. Standard and Poor's



may be different and I do not have it with me. 50,000 to
100,000, $850; 100,000 to 1,000,000, $1100; and 1,000,000
and over, $1350. Revenue issues - the minimum is $850, the
maximum is $2500. The exact fee for revenue issues would
be based on the amount of work involved in processing the
issue.

The thing that concerns us is that a community like
East Brunswick, or take some of the smaller communities in
Middlesex County, Spotswood or Helmetta, they are going to
get stuck for $600 right off the bat if they come out with
a small issue to rate these bonds. And they have to rate
them because if they don't, as they told me in the telegram,
your outstanding bonds are not going to be considered rated,
even though they originally were rated four or five years
before.

This brings me to the point that I want to make that
I think that this central credit agency that has been talked
about in the State is going to have to come into existence
and we recommend that it be seriously considered so these
small communities do not have to get their ratings. They can
sell these to the State agency, assuming we have one, and then,
of course, the bonds would be sold through the State agency,
assuming they would probably have an A or a double A rating.
This is something that finance officers have been talking
about for a long time.

As long as these ratings were free, it didn't hurt a
community too badly and you could go to these New York firms,
namely, Moody's and Standard and Poor, and get a rating and
come out with something that resembled a fair, honest
rating. But for a town like mine that is going to have a
small $500 thousand or $600 thousand issue to spend an
additional $600 or $800 to have a rating, and you may have
just had one two years before or less, seems to me a little
bit outrageous as far as the fees are concerned, plus the

fact that you are not getting a continuing rating either.



They will continue it for one year is what they are telling
us. This has created a problem - I think a unique problem -
and most of the New Jersey municipalities have enough
troubles now trying to sell issues. We are all backed up,
as you probably know, because the bond market has been so
terrible in the last two and two and one-half years that
most of us haven't sold any bonds. We have been putting them
on the shelf and extending them to the full maximum period
of time, which is now five years.

This is basically the one big point I wanted to make.
I have a paragraph that I would like to read that was written
by Mr. Arnold Rosenthal of Rosenthal and Attinger, Certified
Public Accountants, and was used in a talk he made a year
ago at the Léague of Municipalities Convention in Atlantic
City:

"Why are the opinions of these two services so crucial?"
He is saying this of Moody's and Standard and Poor. "It is
because municipalities need so much new money for improvements
of all kinds that a great many new municipal issues are
coming on the market and investors have to rely on the
analysis and ratings established by Moody's and Standard
and Poor. In fact, the rating assigned to a municipality
has a major bearing on the price it pays for the money when
it has to borrow. Furthermore, the ratings carry even greater
weight because Federal and State regulatory agencies use them
as a guide to determine what kind of bonds banks and insurance
companies will be permitted to hold in their portfolios.
Therefore, a poor or low rating can limit the market for a
municipality's bonds."

So you can see it is very important to have this
rating. I am not saying we could do away with the ratings.
We need them. But the way in which we are going about them
now is not to the liking of people who work for municipalities.
That is all I have to say.

MR. MAGOVERN: Would you just clarify for me and for
the Committee Jjust exactly how you feel that this State
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approach that you have mentioned would work if it is done
on the basis of rating charged against issues?

MR. MOHOR: My understanding of it the few times I
have talked about it to James Alloway, the Director of
the Division of Local Finance, and the Past Director, George
Skillman, if it was handled right - as far as the details
of how this will work, I don't know - but I feel instead
of a small community coming out with a $500 thousand issue
and another one with a $600 thousand issue, a State agency
should lump this together and have a $4 or $5 million issue
and possibly have a combined rating and it would be a State
of New Jersey type of thing where you would probably get
a double A rating or a triple A. You in turn would sell
your bonds to this agency and this agency would sell the bonds
through the State. That is my understanding of it. Now
George Meholick is here. I am sure he can clarify the details
on it. He represents the Municipal Managers and Administrators
Association.

MR. MAGOVERN: For the sake of the record, I understand
from your testimony that the basis for the charges made
by both Moody and Standard and Poor is the same - not rating
but the basis - that is, on the basis of issue.

MR. MOHOR: Right.

MR. MAGOVERN: Any member of the Committee have a
question?

ASSEMBLYMAN PFALTZ: You mentioned that there would be
a $600 charge for a $500 to $600 thousand issue for your
rating, which works out to about one-tenth of one per cent.
I would like you to comment, if you would,on what kind of
attorneys' fees you would pay for a similar type of rating?
What is the effect of attorneys' fees on your loss of revenue
that you can use in your municipality?

MR. MOHOR: Well, there are several other side issues
in this charge. There is also the auditor's fee that comes
into this rating because he has to come in and certify all

of this and, of course, he is going to get a fee. The
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bonding attorney's fee is one-half of one per cent of the
total issue.

ASSEMBLYMAN PFALTZ: And that goes to a local attorney?

MR. MOHOR: No. That goes to the bonding attorney.

ASSEMBLYMAN PFALTZ: That goes to the New York bond
counsel?

MR. MOHOR: Right.

ASSEMBLYMAN PFALTZ: One-half of one per cent?

MR. MOHOR: One-half of one per cent. Now depending
upon the county you are in, because I have worked in Bergen
and Essex and now Middlesex - in Middlesex County you never
pay the fee directly to the New York bond counsel. This is
another problem. You pay it directly to your own in-house
attorney who in turn turns that much over to the bonding
attorney.

MR. HUGHES: We don‘t do that.

ASSEMBLYMAN PFALTZ: I think that one-half of one
per cent is about what you pay your in-house counsel, isn't it?

MR. MOHOR: No.

ASSEMBLYMAN PFALTZ: What do you pay to him?

MR. MOHOR: In Middlesex County, the Middlesex Bar
Association minimum schedule of fees is 3 per cent of the
first $200,000; 2 per cent of the next $500,000; and I
think it is 1 per cent of excess to $1,000,000; and 1/2 of
1 per cent excess over §$1,000,000.

ASSEMBLYMAN PFALTZ: That is the local attorneys' fees?

MR. MOHOR: That's right, in Middlesex County.

MR. HUGHES: Most of the work is usually done by the
New York attorney.

MR. MAGOVERN: His fee, however, is in addition.

MR. HUGHES: And if there are bond anticipation notes
issued prior to the main issue, then his fees will be
increased according to the amount of work that he has to do
to prepare for the bond anticipation note issue.

MR, MAGOVERN: Do you mean by that when you have bond

anticipation notes outstanding for a period and then you have
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a bond issue that picks up those notes, you use as a basis
for the fee the double?

MR. HUGHES: Yes, or triple or quadruple, depending on
how often you issue bond anticipation notes.

MR. JESSER: Mr. Chairman, may I ask a question?

MR. MAGOVERN: Yes, Mr. Jesser.

MR. JESSER: How much work does the New York bonding
attorney do and how much work does the local attorney do
in a municipal bond issue?

MR. MOHOR: As far as the New York bonding attorney is
concerned, it is his opinion that you are really paying for.
With regard to the notes, generally speaking in the dealings
I have had with him, he renders an opinion, a certification
of delivery, delivery certification paper. He usually
makes up the notes if they are bond anticipation notes right
in his office. I would say, as far as the work of the
local attorney, it is very little on a bond anticipation
note. Now on the actual bond sale, the bulk of the work
is done through the Treasurer's Office and the Auditor.

The prospectus is made up there. It is sent to the bonding
attorney generally and he is the one that puts it out to -
the bond buyer and contacts the various and sundry
prospective purchasers and he at the same time renders

the final opinion on that bond sale. That is part of the
front page of the prospectus. So it is his work and the
auditor's work that is involved in the bond sale. The local
attorney has very little to do with a bond sale.

MR. JESSER: He has very little to do with the bond
anticipation notes also?

MR. MOHOR: That is correct.

MR. JESSER: Could you define "very little" because
it is really the decision of the bonding attorney that
enables the securities to be sold; isn't that right?

MR. MOHOR: That is correct.

MR. JESSER: Without his decision, you can't sell the

security. So whether he has a great deal of work or not,
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actually the responsibility of his firm is at stake.

MR. MOHOR: Right.

MR. JESSER: What actually does the local attorney
do?

MR. MOHOR: After that original ordinance has been
drawn and possibly amended, the local attorney has very
little to do. I can't think of anything he has to do.

MR. JESSER: Is his reputation at stake?

MR. MOHOR: No, because generally speaking in a
municipality they will have several ordinances. They will
have five or six ordinances in a bond sale. They will
combine these ordinances into a combining ordinance and
even that is drawn up by the bonding attorney. It is not
drawn up by the local attorney.

SENATOR CRABIEL: Sir, you indicated that you had
experience in Bergen County. Do you know what the rates
are in Bergen County?

MR. MOHOR: No, I don't. I worked for the City of
Englewood for, I guess, three-quarters of a year, if I
remember correctly, before I came to East Brunswick and
I did not have too much dealings with the bonding attorney
up there. My understanding is that their fees are more in
line with what we had in Essex County; that is, the local
attorney was paid on primarily a retainer basis and included
in that was the drawing up of all ordinances, bonding or
otherwise, all resolutions, and the only time that the local
attorney would get extra fees would be for a court case
and not involved in a bond sale or bond anticipation notes.
That is unique to Middlesex County, which is the point that
I was making.

ASSEMBLYMAN PFALTZ: I would just like to continue
what you are discussing there. It seems to me you are
complaining about a $600 rating fee of Moody's, whereas this
same bond issue would carry a $17,000 fee to a local attorney,
which to me from what you said and from the observations of

this Committee is not earned in the sense that time is



expended proportionate to the fees received. Wouldn't
that perhaps be a more helpful focus for saving municipal
funds?

MR. MOHOR: Absolutely. This is kind of a ticklish
situation, but I had that as a comment and I didn't know
whether this would be brought up by other people or not.

But the bond market today is problem enough without adding
fantastic fees for the attorneys as well as this extra 6 =
and in the case of East Brunswick it is 8.50 - it's not 6 -
and any little bit all helps. The bonding attorney's fees
have been going on for years. This is not all over the State
though according to my understanding. I have talked

to some of the finance directors in the southern part of

the State and they don't seem to have this problem. Middlesex
County does. Mr. Hughes is from Middlesex County, the Town-
ship of Edison,and I am from East Brunswick. I know in

Essex County when I was treasurer and controller up in

Cedar Grove for seven years, we had no problem up there.

In other words, the local attorney did not have this fee
schedule and he did not charge the towns for this. It

would be just whatever his time was that he was involved

in a court case or possibly a trip to New York or something
like that that he would bill the town a minimum amount of
money. It is definitely in Middlesex County. Now where

else it is, I don't know because I haven't been all over the
State. But I have not heard of it being involved in Cape May
or Atlantic Counties or in Essex. I can't speak of the

other counties.

SENATOR CRABIEL: If you think the fee is excessive,
why do you pay it?

MR. MOHOR: Well, unfortunately, finance directors, you
know, if it is in the budget and if it is added and subtracted
right, this is about where our jurisdiction runs. We can
recommend it not be paid. But if the council says, pay it,
it is paid. Calling a spade a spade, this is the way it

works.
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MR. MILLER: Except for the fee part of it that
you have discussed, do you find that the rating services
are otherwise satisfactory from your point df view?

MR. MOHOR: Yes. I think they are very fair. Presented
with the proper data, they seem to come up -- I have been
over there now four times in the last five years, I guess,
and every time I have been treated fair and square. I have
no objections to the way I have been treated.

MR. MILLER: Aside from your own experience, do
you find that the members of the Municipal Finance Officers
Association generally are aware of the importance of furnishing
what you call the proper data to the rating services?

MR. MOHOR: Absolutely.

MR. MAGOVERN: 1In your statement, you mentioned the
postponement of the issuance of bonds for the extended
period, now five years. You didn't comment on it and you
needn't now if you don't care to. But do you have any
thoughts with respect to limitations of that kind on the
issuance of bonds? The five-year period is now the most
extensive available. ‘

MR. MOHOR: No. As a matter of fact, I teach Municipal
Finance Management in Rutgers University and what I teach
and what the law is are two different things. My own personal
opinion is that five years is too long because I think we
have a problem of procrastination. Because the only way to
beat the bond market is to put them out on the market when
it is time to put them out. If you keep the five years,
you may ‘say why not make it seven or ten. I don't think
this is the answer. I think that three was sufficient and
I think we all had our problems. I don't think we are going
to see a 3 or 4 per cent bond issue in the next few years.

I think the way to lick the whole problem is, when the bonds
are due, sell them and get them out on the market. As a
matter of fact, I could have issued in October or August of
this past year a million and a half and I chose to issue only
$660 or $662 thousand, I think it was, and if I had known
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what I know now, it should have been the whole million and
a half - but the typical problem is of procrastination.

MR. MAGOVERN: Any other member of the Committee have
a dquestion?

MR. MOAK: May I ask to whom do you sell your bond
anticipation notes and what is the general procedure?

MR. MOHOR: The answer to this is summed up by the
amount. If it is a small amount - when I say "small," I
mean where a local bank can pick it up. This grey line
between small and large seems to be somewhere between $200
thousand and half a million. When you have three-quarters of
a million or a million and a half and your local bank won't
pick it up, you will have to go through Bache and Company
or one of the firms in New York City usually to pick that
much up. Does that answer your question?

MR. MOAK: How is the rate determined?

MR. MOHOR: Speaking for most of the finance officers,
we usually take quotes. In other words, when you find
your local bank can't pick it up either through their own
portfolio or to work it through their bank, then you generally
get quotes from these New York concerns, Salomon Brothers and
Hutzler, Bache and Company, and you make some phone calls or
write some letters and get some quotes back. You tell them
you are going to have some bond anticipation notes you want
to sell and you get their rate.

MR. JESSER: Do you anticipate the rate that the bank
would charge would be considerably below the rate that you
might get from New York?

MR. MOHOR: Absolutely. It always is.

MR. HUGHES: That is providing the bank can handle it.

MR. MOAK: What is the reason for that?

MR. HUGHES: A million dollars is difficult for most
banks to handle.

MR. MOHOR: Generally speaking it is because if they
loan you the money, they have to work and, if they loan you,
say, half a million dollars, you don't take the whole half
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a million out of their bank. It just stays right in their
bank. As far as cash loss is concerned, they are not going
o lose it right away because you are going to draw on it

as you need it. This is one of the reasons they can come
out. with a lesser rate because it is not a full impact.
Sure over the next six months they are going to lose $500
thousand, but it is staggered. I think this is the only
answer I can give you.

MR . MOAK: Getting back to this matter of selling bonds,
do you feel that we would all be better off if you went into
the market when you needed the money instead of trying to
guess what the market is going to be and defer the sale?

n other words, over a period of ten or twenty years, you
would hit the peak in the market, you would hit the bottom,
and vou woulid average out.

MR. MOHOR: That's correct.

MR. MOAK: It is better to do that than defer it and
pile it up and then be forced, if you are reaching the five-
year maximum,to go into the market at a very adverse time
with a very large issue?

MR. MOHOR: Yes, because you see you don't often
accept those bids. In other words, if you prepare a bond
sale for next Friday and when the rates come in, you don't
like any of the rates- you just feel that you are getting
the well-known shaft and you say, "This is not the best
rate that I can get,"” - you recommend then that the council
turn all these bids down. They will turn it down. Then you
can go again three weeks later. What I am saying is that
yvou don't have to stand there and whatever they give you, take.
But the idea of putting these bonds on the shelf and sitting
because the law allows you to sit is not the answer either.

MR. MAGOVERN: Any other questions? [No response. ]
Thank you very much, Mr. Mohor. We appreciate your appearing
here.

Mr. Haiback of Kidder - Peabody is the next person
listed.
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MR. RUTLEDGE: Al is not here. He couldn't make it.
Mr. Carpenter and I came. Mr. Carpenter is from Bache and
Company. You could ask him if he wants to say anything.
MR. MAGOVERN: Mr. Carpenter?

J OHN CARPENTER: I think I would just

rather listen today. We were rather surprised -- There are
several gentlemen here that are in the bond business in

the State of New Jersey. As a matter of fact, I think almost
every firm that operates in New Jersey is represented.

The only thing I would like to say is we didn't hear about
this until Friday afternoon and I think we would have liked
to testify at the hearing representing people in the bond
business, in the actual selling end of the business.

I, myself, am not personally prepared to testify
today because I don't understand the whole significance of
the hearing. I just got this Friday afternoon. I hope at
future hearings representatives of the business can also
know about these things and be represented on their side.

I don't know whether it is proper, Mr. Chairman, but
there might be some other gentlemen here who would like to
say something. Is that proper?

MR. MAGOVERN: Yes. If they wish to testify, we will
be glad to add them to the list. But I don't think we can
necessarily interrupt those who have registered. I don't
anticipate that we would be unduly delayed, but we would welcome
any witness who wishes to testify and appear. We will add
them to the list and I will call them when we finish the
registered list of witnesses.

SENATOR CRABIEL: This gentleman could file a formal
statement with us if he wants.

MR. MAGOVERN: Senator Crabiel suggest that it may be
that you would want to file some sort of a statement with us
in lieu of testifying today since you were pressed for time
and I regret that you didn't get the notice or we didn't send
it to you in time. But you could file a statement and you may
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be sure it will be taken in as part of the hearing.

MR, CARPENTER: I think personally today, as I saia
pefore, I would like to listen to the proceedings and listen
tc the witnesses and e put down on future hearings that
we would like tc be represented at these hearings.

MR. MAGOVERN: Thank you, Mr. Carpenter.

Y have Mr. Dalin, Mr. Johnson and Mr. Cooper, on
behalf of Hornblower and Weeks-Hemphill, Noyes. I don't
now which one is going to testify. You are all welcome.

Mr, Dalin?

T RVING 'D AL IN: My name is Irving Dalin and I
am a municipal bond analyst with the investment banking firm
of Hornblower and Weeks -~ Hemphill, Noyes.

In recent years my municipal research activities have
been largely concentrated on revenue bonds and I do not claim
©o be an expert on New Jersey governmental finance.

T am especially rleased, therefore, to be accompanied
by two of my colleagues, Tristam Johnson, the Municipal
Manager of our firm's Trenton Office, and Foster Cooper,

Vice President of the Municipal Départment in our New York
Office. 1In addition to their extensive experience in the
investment industry, these two men are well acquainted with
New Jersey local government. Mr. Johnson, a resident of
Princeton, once served as Acting Mayor of that municipality
and was Finance Chairman for five years. Mr. Cooper is
presently Council President and Finance Chairman of the
Borough of Montvale.

It will come as no surprise to you to be told that
public capital facilities are inadequate, that public capital
expansion requirements seem to be unlimited, and that this
sad state of affairs does not exist only in New Jersey.
Probable result - New Jersey governmental units, State and
local, will be making heavy demands on the bond market during
the 1970's and in so doing they will encounter strong
competition from other borrowers, public and private.
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I do not expect that such demands will be diminished
by increasing resort to pay-as-you-go financing of public
capital expenditures. If anything, the trend is likely
to be in the opposite direction.

Bear in mind also that New Jersey ranks very low
relative to other states in state and local governmentzl
expenditures. For example, according to the 1967 U.S. Csnsus
of Governments, New Jersey ranked 49th among the 50 states
and the District of Columbia in state and local public
expenditures per $1000 of personal income on educatior,
public welfare and health and hospitals. It may be that
a dollar of public expenditure buys much more in New Jersey
than in other states or that New Jerseyites are more self-
reliant than citizens of other states. As a New Yorker,

I shall withhold comment on these matters.

If my assumptions of increasing capital expenditures
and increasing borrowing by New Jerseystate and local govern-
ments are correct, then such matters as access to capital
markets, ability to issue bonds at reasonable interest rates,
and credit standing or ratings should be of great interest
to the people of New Jersey and their representatives. And
there is a great deal to be done. Consider, for example,
that of the five hundred or so New Jersey municipalities,
school districts and other local governmental units rated
by Moody's, 65 are rated BA, which is regarded as an
inadequate rating for bank investment. In New York State
not one rated unit carries a lower rating than BAA, the
lowest bank investment grade rating, and in Mississippi,
hardly the wealthiest and best governed state of the Union,
not one rating less than BAA.

Of course, Moody's does not have the last word in
determining the credit worthiness and interest rates’ of
New Jersey municipal bonds. And I believe that the other
rating agencies, Standard and Poor's and Dun and Bradstreet,

have a more positive opinion of New Jersey municipal credit
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generally. Still Moody's is important and it is my
impression that New Jersey local government credit is
hela in rather low esteem by many investment institutions.

There may be some oObjzctive bases for this evaluationg
chiefly, I believe, the following: the comparatively low
level in New Jersey 0Of State ald to local units for education
and other purpocses; the laryge nuimber ©f New Jersey municipal
defaults in the 1930°'s; and finally perhaps frequent exposures
of mismanagement and corruption. But it seems to me that
the investment community is insufficiently aware of variocus
strengths of New Jersey municipal finance, for example,
the municipal cash basis budget reguirement, municipal
capital budgeting requirement, State supervision of local
government finance, unlimited property tax rates for deb*
service on general obligation oonds, the pricricy position
of school levies in the allocation of property taxes, the
availability of certain State school aid funds to prevent
or correct defaults on local school bondé, and the develop-
ment of a service contract between sewer and water authorities
and their constituent municipalities as a powerful instrument
for the security of authority bonds.

The foregoing list of positive features of New Jersey
municipal bonds could undoubtedly be extended. Furthermore,
too frequently there is an inadequate effort to inform
potential bond buyers of the economic strength of the borrow-
ing municipality, district or authority and of the need for
and benefits that will accrue from the projects being
financed.

I am aware of the fine work being done by the Division
of Local Finance to inform the investment industry of the
positive aspects of New Jersey municipal bonds and of the
high quality of its personnel. But 1t seems to me that more
rieeds to be done and can be done to help local borrowers present
their strong features to underwriters and investors.

If I may be permitted a plug at this point, I think
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that many local governmental units would do well to retain
experienced underwriting firms to assist them in the
preparation of bond prospectuses that will help to sell
their bonds, in the determination of the most advantageous
times to offer their bonds for sale, or alternatively to
issue bond anticipation notes, and in capital planning.

Although there is only time to mention capital planning
in passing, it is very important not only to municipal
management but also to the credit standing of the municipality.
Let me quote from a talk delivered recently by William
McCarthy, who is in charge of Moody's municipal bond ratings,
and this is the quotation: "Another prejudice which bhond-
rating analysts may possess is concern for capital planning.
A studied approach to future capital needs will tend to
assure credit stability and confirm the ability to pay debt.”

I have not touched on the possible effect of fundamental
and sweeping changes in the structure of New Jersey local
finance, such as vastly expanded State aid to local units,
which would have to be accompanied by significant increases
in State revenues, or the creation of a municipal bond bank.
Obviously, I could not hope to do justice to these important
and complex matters as well as the others listed in the
hearing guidelines in the little time remaining to me.

Let me close by emphasizing that something can be done
now by many New Jersey municipalities to improve their access
to bond markets short of the enactment of such fundamental
revisions, that is, by better publication of the strengths
of New Jersey local finance.

Now I believe that Mr. Johnson would like a chance to
make some comments and then the three of us will be ready
to field your questions. Thank you.

MR. MAGOVERN: Thank you very much, Mr. Dalin.

Mr . Johnson?

TRISTAM B. JOHNS O N: My comments will be
more informal and directed, I think, at the marketing end
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of municipal bonds, at the structure of statutory reoulation
and statutory restriction, if you will, on the presant
offering of bonds by municipalities to the marketplace.

New Jersey's present municipal bond market is based on
the reaction to the real estate excesses and the municipal
past tims

defaults of the '20's and '"30¢'s. I onelieve it 1s ¢
when thnere should De instituted a relevant and deep review

of all statutes passed in those years, specifically as

they relate to current dimensions of problems.

First, the debt limit: There is presently establishzd
& limitation on the right to incur debt by any municipal
antity in the State of New Jersey. The statistics creating
this limit ars agein based on need and factors established
in the early '30's. There may have be=n some extension nf
tnesa, put basically the conceot remains during the periond
of 30 to 40 vears of vastly expanding need. Ycu cannct say
that the need for school district capital was as great in
the '30's. A regional sewer authority probably had never
been conceived of.

I suggest that while our laws have allowed application
to the Bureau of Local Government for the right to exceed
debt limit, I believe this right has only been denied once
in the recent past, so that in effect there is no debt
limit in New Jersey in practice. But in the impact on the
marketability of the bonds, there is in Wall Street. Because
if the notice of sale must establish the fact that a municipal-
ity had to apply for the right to exceed its debt limit,
this can’t be considered other than a black mark against the
municipality under the present New Jersey statutes.

You might well spend some thought on: Is it the more
effective municipality that is remaining within its debt
limit or is it the more effective municipality tha“ is
struggling with its problems that forces it to exceed its
debt 1limit?

Certainly the question of urban renewal was not a
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capital need in the '30's. The City of Newark can

exclude certain urban renewal debt from its debt limit. It
cannot excludeAcertain other urban renewal debt. The City
of Newark could perhaps have available to it an additional
$20 million worth of borrowing power if the State were to
consider that under current dimensions of problems all
urban renewal type of debt should be considered beyond the
debt limit, you might say.

I am suggesting that in the area of the establishment
of a debt limit you may have a relationship with the 60 some
municipalities carrying a BA rating.

There was also established in bygone eras a limitation
as to interest rates. The last two or three years have
created across the nation the problem of a need arising,
requiring capital, which cannot be raised because of a
previously imposed ceiling on the rates. The ceiling did not
prevent the arising of the need. It has only caused the need
to go back to the electorate or back to the legislature
to remove the ceiling - either a moratorium as there is in
this State and in New York or permanent removal or merely
a postponement to a second level of limit.

I suggest again that under current dimensions of
financial needs, is such a thing as a rate limitation a
valid statutory limitation?

Municipalities in the State of New Jersey have a
standard format within which they can offer their bonds for
sale. It calls for only one coupon. Many states now have
the right to issue any number of coupons. From a marketing
point of view, this means that one coupon requires some
bonds to be sold at a premium, some bonds to be sold at a
discount. Under bank tax laws as they now pertain, banks
very often prefer to buy only par bonds. The State of
New Jersey is requiring its municipalities at this time to
issue bonds that are less popular than bonds being issued
by competing, equally-rated municipalities in other states.
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Finally ~ as you see, i am picking just items here -

I finally pick up onz further one which seems ©o me again
LO diaw attention to a general area of review. The 1egis~
lature has crested a program providing for State aid to
school construction. Unless my information is incorrect,
there has been one marketing, a sgsingle marketing, of a
State aid bond isste., The firsct notice of sale drew no
distinction between that portion of the bonds that would
receilve full State aid for amortization and that portion

2f the bonds that would solely ke relied upon by the tax
rescucces of the municipality. The notice of sale was
still issued. The sale was only cancelled two days befoxre
aotice when somebody realized there were two separate bonds
being sold here. The bond issue again was noticed for sals.
There were two separate bid forms. To my knowledge, both
bonds were still granted a BA rating.

This means the State of New Jersey, gentlemen, received
a BA rating. I suggest again that there is an area for
review. The total area of regulations and statutes
presently governing the offering of debt to the marketplace
can bear study in the 1970's.

MR, MAGOVERN: Thank you, Mr. Johnson.

In essence, that is one phase of this Task Force's
responsibility, to take a look at this sort of thing. I
wasn't quite sure if I had to draw a conclusion from what
you say - you wouldn't eliminate or would you eliminate all
statutory debt limits?

MR. JOHNSON: I would emphasize-- and I am talking
from the marketing side of the bond business but also, I
hope, in an attempt to extend our knowledge to the issuer,
so that when he presents himself to the marketplace, he has
packaged his program so that it will give him the best rate.
It would be more important in my opinion to emphasize to
Wall Street, if you will, the validity of your Bureau of
Local Government than it would to have any debt limit. At
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the present time, no authority has any restriction on its
right of issuing bonds. It has no need to go to the public
nor to a State body. However, at the same time, a school
board cof the same municipality must go and apply for a
right to exceed a debt limit.

To have a review board and to have the review bocard
effective would be more useful than a black mark of having
to exceed a debt limit.

MR. MAGOVERN: I take it, if I had to boil it down,
you would in effect say you look to a more flexible - would
that be a proper descriptive word to use with respect to
your proposal —---

MR. JOHNSON: Yes, if you want to call it that. We
in the street can obviously realize the City of Newark
has some extensive problems. The City of East Brunswick,
we ought to consider has nowhere near the kind of dimension
of problems the City of Newark has. To see the City of
Newark applying for an extension of debt limit has a flexible
response from us in the street. Why have it?

MR. MAGOVERN: When you spoke with respect to debt
limits, you stressed the relationship of need rather than
some of the other characteristics that affect that. But
would you suggest that need is the primary criterion?

MR. JOHNSON: I must turn the question back to you and
say that there are instances in the State now where one
division of the State, the Division of Health, may prevent
any further development of a particular community until it
incurs the debt to create a regional sewer authority.

Now there is a need. No debt limit can be allowed to stand
in the way of meeting that need. You can have one municipal-
ity with five authorities - a parking authority, a sewer
authority, an urban renewal authority - all of these will
require cash to service their bond issues. They aren't
included under the debt limit. Of what validity is the debt
limit?

MR. MAGOVERN: The committee fortunately is not
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required to respond to your question. [Laughter.]

I would be interested in this school district that
you speak of that got a BA rating.

MR, JOHNSON Jefferson Township.

MR, MAGOVERN: What was 1it?

MR. JOHNSON: Jefferson Township. I have the notice
of sale in my briefcase here.

MR, MAGOVERN: That was a rating obtained, but it had
made no objection or do you know what it did? Did it just
go ahead and sell the bonds on that basis?

MR. JOHNSON: It is my understanding the Jefferson
Township Board of Education carried a BA rating prior to
the sale and was awarded a BA rating on this issue at the
time of sale and that there were two issues of bonds, one
supported by the Township and one supported by State aid, and
that both of them received a BA rating. Now the one supported
by State aid was never reoffered publicly, so that we in
the State had no chance to compare the yields at which the
two issues were offered.

MR. MAGOVERN: That may be the answer to the apparent
complexity there when you say they both arrived with the
same rating, one with the State guarantee and one without.

Does any member of the Committee have a question?

MR. JESSER: We realize that we have to sell our
bonds in the general marketplace with other issues. Also
we realize that there is going to be a tremendous volume
of municipal bonds coming on the market in the next five
years. Have you ever seen any figures of projections of
how much in the way of municipal financing is going to take
place in the next five years?

MR, DALIN: Well, I have seen those figures. I don't
recall what the total was, except that it was enormous.

You are speaking of the nation as a whole, aren't you?

MR. JESSER: Yes.

MR, DALIN: Foster, do you know about what the current
volume 1is?
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MR, COOPER: The projection for five years? 1 haven't
the slightest idea.

MR. MOAK: Mr. Chairman, the Congressional Committee
on this subject put out its report in 1966 and prcjected
we would reach a level of between $22 and $25 billion by
1975, which was in contrast to a level at that time of
around $10 billion.

MR. DALIN: That is per year.

MR. MOAK: Per year. The report was issued in 1966.

MR. JESSER: I think the point here is, Mr. Chairman,
if we are going to compete in this larger market, certainly
it behooves the State of New Jersey to have as favorable
a reception for their securities as possible. So any
restrictions that we have, any practices that we have,
anything that restricts the marketability of our issues is
going to be to our detriment because the demand, I think,
everybody agrees is going to be so heavy that if we don't
go into this marketplace in a very favorable light and
do everything we can to present our bonds in a most favor-
able way, it is going to be to the detriment of the State
and the municipalities. That was the point I wanted to
make.

MR, JOHNSON: May I just suggest one other comment
there. The business of selling bonds now places a premium
on imagination and on initiative in creating a cash flow to
service those bonds. The time when we could conveniently
divide bonds between revenue and general obligation tax-
supported bonds is well past. The so-called double-barrelled
obligation is now commonplace where a bond is sold initially
to be serviced by the revenues from that facility and then
a final backup by the municipality in the event of a default -
a regional sewer authority, a parking authority, name it as
you will.

Again I think in our mere use of semantics, we create
a disadvantage to the double-barrelled bond seller who is
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forced to put a revenue bond or sell an authority bond when

it is really backed up by the general obligation of the

general tax revenues of a municipality. We tend to increase
the cost rather than saying this is even a stronger bond.

I don't know that the legislature can help this in establishing
new semantics in the business, but it is specifically on

your subject.

MR. DALIN: It does have to do, if I may interject here,
with the way that New Jersey's bonds are presented to the
investment industry. The New Jersey Regional Sewer Authority
bond is a very ingenious instrument and an extremely well-
secured instrument. Yet I think it is safe to say that
large segments of the investment industry treat it as a
revenue bond and consequently as something less well secured
than a general obligation bond.

SENATOR CRABIEL: I want to get back, Mr. Johnson, to
your Jefferson Township bond. All municipalities have State
aid. What was different about the Jefferson Township bond
than any other municipal bond put out by boards of education?

MR. JOHNSON: You are the member of the Legislature,
sir. As I understand, there was a program created that
provided a cash flow specifically to assist lower-rated
and, therefore, less wealthy school districts in meeting
the construction needs that they were faced with and that
their current financial condition made it difficult for them
to meet. This program brought itself to the marketplace
stage in presenting to Wall Street two separate issues then.

Let me get this notice of sale right here. "Board
of Education of the Township of Jefferson, County of Morris.
First notice of sale, May 19; second notice of sale, August
25." First notice of sale draws reference to $672,000 Series
A. That is a State aid bond, serviced entirely by contri-
butions from the State. Series B, $3.3 million, school bonds
of Jefferson Township serviced solely by the general revenues

of Jefferson Township Board of Education. In the initial
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notice of sale, there was one'single notice of sale for
both issues.

SENATOR CRABIEL: May I interrupt a moment. Can
any municipality put out a brochure of that same type?

MR. JOHNSON: Again it is my understanding that the
statute provided aid only for those municipalities that
needed it and, therefore, the need had to be certified by
the Board of Education and then the Bureau of Local Govern-
ment.

SENATOR CRABIEL: That isn't backed by State aid any
maore than any other municipality. This is what I am trying
to get through my craw.

MR. JOHNSON: State school building aid bonds under
New Jersey State 18A:58-33.4 (d) - it is a pure citation.

SENATOR CRABIEL: But every municipality could do the
same thing.

MR. JOHNSON: It is my understanding the statute
requires a certification of need before a school district
can avail themselves of that aid.

SENATOR CRABIEL: I will yield on that until I get
some research on it. It is not my understanding.

MR. JOHNSON: I could be wrong.

SENATOR CRABIEL: My next question has reference to
the bond bank, and your associate, Mr. Dalin, just passed
it aside - in other words, whether you have any view as
to whether by putting the credit of the State behind these
bonds of some of these municipalities it would help in any
way in solving our problem.

MR. DALIN: Well, I think it would obviously solve
the problems of certain small, unrated or low-rated municipal-
ities because they would be able to enjoy the advantage of
the rating of the State agency which will issue the bonds.
How this works out - what its net effect on New Jersey
finance would be - I cannot say. That would depend, for
example, on how the bond bank is set up, on the rating that
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its bonds receive and on its effect on New Jersey credit,
on the rate of interest carried by New Jersey State bonds.
My understanding is that the bond bank bonds would be what
are called moral obligations rather than direct general
obligations of the State. Is that correct?

SENATOR CRABIEL: I believe so.

MR. DALIN: If so, they would carry a higher interest
rate than the direct general obligations of the State. Also,
I suppose, there would have to be a certain amount of staffing
for the bank. So there would be a cost there. But the
advantage is obvious. What the net effect would be, I
can't say. But it is certainly something to consider very
seriously and to explore.

SENATOR CRABIEL: One other question: Mr. Johnson,
you indicated you also were a municipal official or a former
municipal official. In your opinion would it be wise to
eliminate completely any reference to a debt limit in municipal-
ities?

MR. JOHNSON: As a municipal finance officer, you mean,
you are asking that question for me to answer.

SENATOR CRABIEL: Yes.

MR. JOHNSON: Let me respond this way: I think it
would not be surprising to make the general comment that it
would be unusual to find among elected officials of local
governments extraordinary ability in engineering, extra-
ordinary ability as an architect or as a municipal bond
expert. What I am suggesting is, therefore, while I continue
to recommend the elimination of any limit, I recommend the
strengthening of the advisory function of the Bureau of Local
Finance so that those who are sincere, energetic municipal
officials but with not the expertise of a municipal bond
profession would have available to them from the State level
the advice the municipality should need to keep its capital
financing in line.

SENATOR CRABIEL: Would you give the same answer as a
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resident and a taxpayer of a community, realizing there are
587 municipalities in this State with municipal officials
who don't have all the expertise, as you have indicated?

MR. JOHNSON: I would have to answer that again by
saying "yes" because at the same time I am being buffeted
with the ecological needs, the environmental needs, the
sewer authority needs, and all the rest of these needs.
Needs are there. Legislation won't eliminate them.

MR. MAGOVERN: Turning that question into the market-
ability, would you like to hazard an opinion as to the
effect of a municipality that came in with a bond that did
not have that advice or criteria of the experts and one
that did? In other words, what I am asking is: Would it
not have the effect of channeling everything through that
unit or that organization from a marketability standpoint?

MR. JOHNSON: I understand your question, sir. There
are municipal bond banks, if you want to use that as a
generic term, in operation throughout the nation in some
states for different purposes. The Commonwealth of Pennsylvania,
if I use the right language, has a school building authority.
I believe the State of Michigan, the State of North Carolina,
the State of Virginia, have different kinds of bond banks.
I think specifically from our point of view I mention a
small item but it is an important item. It may be more
logical for a municipal finance officer and a registered
municipal accountant to program a maturity schedule so it
fits an outstanding maturity schedule to maintain a rather
level debt service requirement than it does to package a
bond issue so it is more palatable, more salable, more
merchandizable on the street. A hundred bond maturity per
year is a very salable bond maturity; 60, 75, 80 bonds are
not - a small item but an important item in establishing an
interest rate and a cost of that issue, not one you very
often see fed into the consideration and the preparation of
an issue.

MR. MILLER: Either Mr. Dalin or Mr. Johnson - I am
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intrigued with Mr. Dalin's observation that bonds of equal
quality or apparently equal quality when you go behind
some of the obscurities in New Jersey do not have as favorable
an interest rate in the market as bonds of municipalities of
other states. It is hard to believe that a sophisticated
market like this one is not aware of the quality and goes blindly
by a rating which apparently isn't justified. Could either
of you comment on that?

MR. DALIN: Well, I wouldn't say that the market goes
blindly by the rating, but certainly Moody's rating is a
very important consideration. Even if you personally
disagree with Moody's rating, you would hesitate to buy a
bond with a low rating because the person to whom you might
want to sell that bond in five years might take the rating
more seriously than you do. So it certainly cannot be ignored.

MR. MILLER: I am still unaware from your remarks as
to whether the rating is or is not justified. Obviously if
it is justified, it shouldn't be ignored. And if it isn't
justified, there should be a remedy. Where do you take hold
of this?

MR. DALIN: I don't want to get into a, let's say,
sort of long-distance quarrel with Moody's about the justifi-
ability of their ratings, particularly since I have not
reviewed all of their 65 BA-rated bonds and presumably they
have. It just strikes me on the evidence that I have presented
to you, the fact that New Jersey in spite of being generally
a wealthy state with pretty good State laws regarding
municipal finance should have so many low-rated bonds com-
pared with New York and other states -- it just strikes me
that there is something wrong there, something that is not
completely objective and I would guess that a representative
of Moody's, if one were here, would have something to say
on that matter.

I do believe, as I indicated in my presentation, that
aside from the sweeping changes on the State level, the
formation of a bond bank, etc., I have seen a number of

New Jersey municipal bond brochures and very frequently they
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simply don't do anything to sell the bonds. This is not

only a matter of Moody's rating because the same municipality
might have presented more data to Moody's than it does to

the investor. But in many cases perhaps it has not made

an adequate presentation of the case to Moody's.

MR. MILLER: On the average, this is true in other
states also. They are not any better at writing them. You
have seen some pretty bad ones.

MR. DALIN: That's right.

MR. MILLER: How can you explain it?

MR. DALIN: I would have to fall back on the points
which I made which may be objective reasons for the low
ratings of New Jersey bonds, particularly in the school
areas, the fact that State aid to schools is fairly low in
New Jersey. It is comparatively high in New York and this
State school aid in New York has to be applied to debt
service on New York school bonds if the district in question
should fail to raise sufficient money from property taxes.
That is a comparative strong point for New York school
districts.

MR. MILLER: But you have a better strong point - in
New Jersey the school debt service takes priority over the
municipal and county, you said.

MR. DALIN: That is true. I don't know --- You mean
the tax collection’ ==~

MR. MILLER: Tax collection, yes.

MR. DALIN: [Continuing] -- takes priority.

MR. MILLER: The schools call on the tax collector
to turn over their share of collections.

MR. DALIN: In New York, on the other hand, counties
frequently are responsible for collecting taxes for school
districts and municipalities and funnelling those taxes
first to the municipalities.

What you seem to be asking me is: Why is a New Jersey
municipality generally rated lower than those of New York and
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other states? I can't say more than I have already.

MR. MILLER: Well, could you say how much it costs
the taxpayers of the State to enjoy that favored position?

MR. DALIN: I don't know. Would you say, Tristam,
that New Jersey municipal bonds generally carry a significantly
higher rate than those of other states? Well, one thing
to bear in mind in comparing municipal interest rates is
that New York State, for example, has an income tax, so
that everything else being equal, there would still be an
interest rate advantage to a New York municipal bond
because the residents of New York State would have more
incentive to invest in a New York State bond.

MR. JOHNSON: There is the gap in the statement just
made that any state with an income tax exempts the interest
from its own obligations or obligations of its own municipal-
ities from that tax. If New Jersey is considering a State
income tax, this might be one of the positive selling
points.

MR. MILLER: You mean there will be more people
driven to buying New Jersey bonds?

MR. JOHNSON: Driven into it, vyes.

MR. MILLER: Isn't the market sufficiently large at
present of New Jersey bond buyers to absorb the issues
offered over the years?

MR. JOHNSON: Anything can be sold at a price. This
doesn't mean it was sold at the price it was initially
offered at.

[Discussion off the record.]

MR. MAGOVERN : Does any member of the Committee have
any further questions?

MR. MOAK: You raised a question about the desirability
of permitting a broader number of coupon rates. Am I correct
in understanding that there is an advantage to being able
to re-offer bonds at par =--

MR. JOHNSON: Yes, sir.

MR. MOAK: [Continuing] =-- over either discount or

premium?
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MR. JOHNSON: I would say generically, yes, sir. I
would also say this is a subject that you could raise with
others who will be testifying who are more conversant
with the preparation of bond bids and you can get probably
more specific and even mathematical proof of that position.
But I think it is a valid statement to make generically.

MR. MOAK: If that be true, then in order to provide
for the compensation of the successful syndicate, would it
be desirable to permit the bonds to be sold at a discount
substantially equal to the gross profits of the syndicate?

MR. JOHNSON: My best answer is to say that present
bid requirements in New Jersey include more restrictions than
are necessary in the marketplace in 1970, certainly in
competition with obligations offered by other jurisdictions
of other states.

I add one other item here - and I suggest it be another
one to be considered: Why is there a need of a good faith
check? The industry, what is left of it now, is a fairly
sound and responsible industry. But the requirement to
leave committed for the delay period between bid, sale and
settlement of a good faith check is a loss of that capital
to the municipal bond market's value, the municipal bond
market's use.- And any active underwriting house may be
in the process of bidding on, and succeeding in their bid,
on three, four and five issues a week, but it may be a
month before the settlement date. So they have an accumulation
of good faith checks serving neither the issuer or the buyer
a purpose.

MR. MOAK: Would part of your objection to that process
be met if the issuer were obliged to deposit the check in
an escrow account which would bear interest during the
intervening period?

MR. JOHNSON: I would think he would do that anyway.

I don't think that again answers the question. I think
if you are trying to create as viable and healthy a relationship
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between your issuer and your seller, the issuer and the buyer
of the bond -- Wall Street is known these days for being
in need of capital. The experience of Goodbody spread across
the papers for merely the need of $15 million is evidence
of the need of capital in Wall Street. For the municipal
bond industry to continue to require the tying up of
capital is the question.

MR. MOAK: Moving to another point, if I may, if you
free up the number of coupons, how do you guard against
the disadvantages to the issuer which arise fromdeep discount
coupons on the final maturity or final two maturities or
whatever it happens to be? Are you familiar with that area?

MR. JOHNSON: I am familiar with the practice, but again
I am not personally familiar in my business experience with
the mathematics that justify bid preparation. I suggest
you raise the question to other people that come before you.

MR. MOAK: Is there a substantial difference in the
profit per $1,000 on a $500 thousand issue, a $1 million
issue and a $5 million issue from the standpoint of the
purchasing syndicate of the same issuer and in what magnitude?

MR. COOPER: You say a substantial difference. It
may be _that what you term substantial and what I term
substantial may be entirely different. But I would visualize
a $500 thousand issue in today's market, the underwriting
spread being somewhere in the neighborhood - let's talk about
a B double A bond - of a point and a half to a point and
three-quarters.

MR. MOAK: $15 to $17.50 per thousand.

MR. COOPER: Right. And that would be on a smaller
loan. On a $5 million loan, I can visualize it being a
point and a quarter.

MR. MOAK: §$12.507?

MR. COOPER: §$12.50.

MR. MOAK: Is there any reaction in the investment
industry to the North Carolina type of conduct of sales for

municipalities at a single point by a single officer, although
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they be bonds of the issuing government in the same form
as in New Jersey, but there is a requirement for central
sale of the bonds? Is there any opinion within the
industry concerning that that makes that more or less
favorable?

MR. DALIN: I am not familiar myself with that.

MR. COOPER: I have no comment.

MR. MOAK: Mention was made of the fact that it would
be desirable to have advisors, fiscal advisors, in the.
preparation of bond issues for issuers. Would such advisors
be prohibited from participating in the purchase of the
bonds or in the distribution subsequent to purchase?

MR. DALIN: Well, it is my understanding that a
financial advisor may not underwrite the bonds. I might
be mistaken on that point. That is my understanding.

MR. MOAK: From your point of view, what is desirable?

MR. DALIN: If you say from my point of view as an
investment banker , I would have to answer that it would
be desirable from our point of view that financial advisors
be permitted to underwrite and deal in the bonds as well.

MR. MOAK: But perhaps not so from the point of view
of the issuer?

MR. DALIN: I am not sure there are questions of con-
flict of interest. That, of course, is the reason for the
law as it now stands. Whether or not that fear and concern
are appropriate, I really don't think that I should answer
that.

MR. JOHNSON: I would like to make two quick comments
on that. I personally feel preventing an advisor from
participating in the distribution or underwriting of an
issue prevents that part of Wall Street that is the most
informed, the firm that is most informed about the issuer.
This seems to be a detriment to the issuer. However, I
think it can also be said from the competitive aspect
in the street, if the financial advisor is also allowed to
participate in the underwriting, it may take a while for the

street to accept the fact he has a right to be there, rather
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than that he is an insider and knows so much - why should
we bother to bid? So there is a matter of education, I
think, to be accomplished both ways. But I think if it is
moved in this direction, it will be to the benefit of the
issuer.

MR. MOAK: Thank you.

MR. MILLER: Following the same question, considering
all the legal safeguards and restrictions that you mention,
is it really possible for a financial advisor to design
a package that only he would be favored by?

MR. JOHNSON: Under the careful guidance of bond
counsel, I think it would be impossible. For him to tailor
an issue that only he could bid on - the industry is not
50 constructed.

MR. MILLER: Well, it is not only he, but a very small
group.

MR. JOHNSON: I think I could generically say, no.

MR. MILLER: What is the secret that he would have
that the rest of the industry wouldn't have merely because
he has been a financial advisor?

MR. JOHNSON: The only secret he would have would be
that he knew this was coming for a longer period of time
so he could generate interest among potential purchasers
that bidders come lately might not have the time span to
spend on it.

MR. MOAK: What position is he in on the day of the sale
to advise the issuer whether or not to accept the lowest
bid?

MR. JOHNSON: I find it hard to believe that there
can be statutes that allow a bid to be accepted that is
higher than the lowest.

MR. MOAK: In other words, to reject all bids.

MR. JOHNSON: Oh, to reject all bids. If he is serving
his function as a financial advisor, the sale will not have
reached the point of a sale at which bids will not be

received adequately. If I may, without pointing fingers,
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suggest that the situation that the State of New Jersey
found itself in when they had a bond sale several weeks
ago in which no bids were received need not occur either
in an advisory situation, in a competitive situation or in
any situation.

MR. MOAK: But it may well occur that due to some
event overnight --

MR. JOHNSON: Oh, well.

MR. MOAK: [Continuing] -- that circumstances have
changed making it unadvisable to accept bids, although you
received bids - the price is wrong. And if he is also a
bidder, does this influence his judgment in this circumstance?

MR. JOHNSON: I have enough confidence in my industry
to say it would not influence his judgment. If you have a
bond sale scheduled for tomorrow and tonight the prime rate
is dropped or the rediscount rate is changed substantially,
you have an immediately different market level tomorrow.

All bids are adjusted as of tomorrow. Bids are submitted
by telephone, not over a span of time. I generally feel
the industry can adjust itself to any overnight change.

MR. DALIN: I might add there, if I may, in this case
the financial advisor - underwriter would after all be
putting his reputation on the line. Presumably he would
not represent a firm that just goes into New Jersey occasionally
and then has nothing to do with the state the rest of the
time. Chances are that these investment banking firms will
be firms that deal regularly in New Jersey municipal bonds
and consequently their reputations will be extremely important
to them.

MR. JESSER: Mr. Chairman, the main point that I gather
here is that by removing some of these limitations and
restrictions - for example, the debt ceilings - by having a
bond bank - by having maybe better advisors and presenting
the bond issue in a more favorable light, finding some of
these other factors you have brought up here - that the
average municipality in New Jersey could come out with bonds
at a higher price and a lower rate and, therefore, over a
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period of years, we could save very considerable sums of
money. Is that right?

MR. DALIN: I believe so.

MR. JOHNSON: I would go a step further and say that
I think there is no process of business in which the bidding
process, the actual bidding process, is more highly
competitive than exists in the bond-bidding business. The
whole underwriting field is so conversant with each other's
opinions of the market moment to moment that any particular
issue will draw bids very close in their relationship to
each other. So it is less in that area in which you can
expect improvement than it is in tlie area of the issuing
of the bonds themselves, I think.

MR. MAGOVERN: Thank you very much, gentlemen, Mr.
Dalin, Mr. Johnson and Mr. Cooper, for appearing.

Mr. Pfeiffer of Standard and Poor.

JOHN K. PFEITFTFER: I returned from a two-
week tour of the entire country on Saturday. This morning
there was a note, "You are due at 1100 Raymond Boulevard,
at ten o'clock.” I am not prepared. However, I do have
a copy of a talk I gave in relation to municipal ratings,
contract ratings, which I would like to submit to the
Committee.

MR. MAGOVERN: The Committee will be very happy to
receive it.

[Copy of Mr. Pfeiffer's talk can be found
beginning on page 98 of this transcript.]

MR. PFEIFFER: I would be more than happy to cooperate
at future meetings.

MR. MAGOVERN: Would you be willing, Mr. Pfeiffer, to
attempt to respond to some questions that the Committee
might have with respect to ratings?

MR. PFEIFFER: Yes.

MR. MAGOVERN: There were questions that were prompted,
I guess, in part by references to Moody's and earlier to
Standard and Poor's. Dr. Miller has a question.
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MR. MILLER: You were present and heard the various
references which speak for themselves.

MR. PFEIFFER: Yes.

MR. MILLER: Perhaps the easiest way to get into if,
if you don't have some other you prefer, would be to start
where Mr. Mohor left off. He made an observation about the
new practice of the rating services and perhaps you would
care to comment in response.

MR. PFEIFFER: All right, fine. Just for a little
brief briefing, we decided to charge a fee for our municipal
ratings back in March of 1968, the reasoning being that
we are not a philanthropic organization. We were losing
some $200,000 a year. We had the choice of either charging
for ratings or going out of business as far as municipal
ratings were concerned. As you can appreciate, our biggest
expense, of course, was salaries. Municipal analysts are
few and far between. Actually when I have some young people
come in andtry to induce them to go into municipal finance,
their reaction is that there is no romance in it and they
prefer the stock market, which to them is a one-way street.
They subsequently find out differently.

Nevertheless, there has been - I don't like to use
the word pirating, but I guess that is as good as any other
word - in the street for municipal analysts. It takes two
or three years to indoctrinate one, to get him on his feet,
so to speak, and the first thing you know some house downtown
will take him at a fairly substantial salary. So the end
result was that we had no choice but to either charge or
go out of the municipal business.

Our fees are based not on the population, not on the
amount of the issue, but merely on the time consumed. In
other words, you could have an issue, as an example, for
the Port of New York Authority. They will come out with
a $90 million issue. We are familiar with it. It takes
us two or three hours to resolve our rating ideas. On the

other hand, we could have a small gas revenue issue down in

38



Tennessee that might entail even sending a man down to
see the area and the fee is reflected, as I said, in the
time consumed.

MR. MILLER: This everyone understands is a problem.
But I think the key thing iswhat came up a moment ago in
Mr. Dalin's testimony and others we have heard - his wasn't
the only one - about the difference in rating of New Jersey
bonds of apparently equal quality as compared with other
bonds, let's say, in this general area or part of the country.
Can you explain why this is and what we could do to correct
it?

MR. PFEIFFER: Well, I can't naturally explain Moody's
reasoning and frankly, and I wish it were off the record, I
don't go along in their BA situation that they have with the
65. I think we have 1 or 2 in the State of New Jersey at
the present time. I think we look at it more realistically.
I think Moody is still looking back in the '30's when we
were in a different ballgame. I can't see much difference
between the ratings in general in the State of New Jersey and
in other states.

MR, MILLER: That being so - and I don't expect you
to give any off-the-cuff opinion on it - isn't a state or
aren't the municipalities in a rather peculiar position?
You have three rating services. They each might rate and
if one of them rates you down, the other two don't do you
any good. Is there any way of correcting for that?

MR. PFEIFFER: I can't see any at the moment. We are
competitive - Moody's and Standard and Poor's. Now Dun
and Bradstreet doesn't rate issues per se as we do. If
there is a difference of opinion in one rating, that could
happen. That's only natural. When they are two notches
apart, then one of us is decidedly wrong. Fortunately we
don't see that happen very often. When it does occur -- and
Jefferson Township is one in particular that we noted. We

weren't asked to rate the issue. We observed immediately that
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there were two distinct issues and surprised when Moody
put the BA on it. But to get back to your question, if
we watch and we are more than one grade away, one of us
is wrong. What can be done about it? I can't say. We
do everything we can. We look into it. We say, "Did we
make a mistake?" We are human and we do make mistakes
from time to time.

MR. MILLER: Do you rerate issues which come out of
states where they have a state rating agency?

MR. PFEIFFER: Oh, vyes.

MR, MILLER: Do you differ very much with the state
rating agencies?

MR. PFEIFFER: No.

MR. MILLER: You pretty much agree with them?

MR. PFEIFFER: That's right.

MR. MILLER: To your knowledge does the market pay
particularly much attention to a state rating?

MR. PFEIFFER: Definitely, no question about it.

MR. MILLER: Would that be, do you think, any kind
of solution to our problem?

MR. PFEIFFER: I think it would. I think it would
have quite a strong effect on it.

MR. MILLER: Thank you very much.

MR. MOAK: Just one question: You have a pricing
service and you price bonds.--

MR. PFEIFFER: That's correct.

MR. MOAK: [Continuing] -- for ---

MR. PFEIFFER: -- municipal corporates.

MR. MOAK: Primarily, I take it, for evaluation purposes.

MR. PFEIFFER: That's correct.

MR. MOAK: Does that extend only to the issues rated
by Standard and Poor's or does it extend beyond it?

MR. PFEIFFER: It extends beyond it - any issue where
we can get an indication of what the bond is selling for.

MR. MOAK: Thank you.
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MR. DILWORTH: If there were a state rating agency,

would you feel that its ratings would have immediate
acceptance in the market or do you think this is a matter ---

MR. PFEIFFER: A state rating agency?

MR. DILWORTH: Yes.

MR. PFEIFFER: No, it would not have. As a good example,
North Carolina is doing a terrific job. Now it might have
an effect, and I am sure it does,- within the state - with
the banks within the state. But, no, they haven't gained
acceptance.

MR. MILLER: One other question along the same line:

New Jersey is or was one of very few states that had a
strong state-administrative supervision over municipal
budget and borrowing and this over the years since the
*30's, at least. Does this, in fact, operate to strengthen
our municipal credit rating?

MR. PFEIFFER: My feeling is that it does, yes.

MR. MILLER: If it does, and I would assume it would,
why is it that doesn't overcome some of the other features
which apparently - well, you haven't said they have hurt us -
but if we did have other features,would it as a rating matter
help to overcome this?

MR. PFEIFFER: Oh, yes.

MR. MAGOVERN: Thank you very much, Mr. Pfeiffer.

It is quite obvious that there must have been some
mixup in the notice of this hearing and the regulations and
details that went out. We are proceeding without the filing
of statement.

If it should appear when this hearing is over this
morning that some witness would like to reopen or we should
feel the need for a further hearing or an adjourned hearing,
we may do that. At this juncture, however, I think we
should proceed right along this way and I hope it is satisfactory.

Mr. Breen of John J. Ryan, and I believe you have an
associate with you. Would you give your names to the
secretary, please.

[David Breen and Jack Rosenthal identify themselves. ]
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DAV ID BREEN: Gentlemen, I don't know how
perﬁinent this actually is going to be. As I said, I
was not notified until Thursday afternoon. I haven't
prepared anything but I thought that I would perhaps
deliver a talk that I gave before the New York Municipal
Analysts Group some two or three weeks ago, and I think
it might be helpful.

Those of you who are familiar with New Jersey
revenue financing ==

MR. MAGOVERN: Do you have copies there?

MR. BREEN: Yes, I do.

MR. MAGOVERN: Enough for the Committee?

MR. BREEN: Yes, I believe there will be enough.

MR. MAGOVERN: Do you want to file this and just
tell us about it or did you want to read it in full?

MR. BREEN: Well, it seems it may take a little
time. I probably can just talk about it generally and
file it, and then you probably will have some questions
that I hope I can answer for you.

MR. MAGOVERN: Not to digress, but Mr. Pfeiffer,
I believe is also going to file his talk with us. So it
would be helpful to the Committee if you would summarize.

MR. BREEN: I realize that and I will try to do it
to the best of my ability.

Primarily this talk that I gave was based on a
legal opinion handed down by John Trimble of Caldwell,
Trimble and Mitchell, now Mudge, Rose Bond Counsel in New
York And in this statement, Mr. Trimble points out that
New Jersey Revenue Authority Bonds are, in fact, more
secure under the law than are those municipal bonds which
are supported by general taxation, because of various
recourses that bondholders have on the revenue bonds as
opposed ta the general obligation bonds, and the various
ways in which you can act in foreclosure procedings, and
so on and so forth, which are much quicker under this Act

than those are generally under the strict general
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obligation bonds. And I felt that this was very important,

myself, having been a former municipal official myself,
chairman of a utility authority down in South Brunswick.
I have felt very strongly about these things for a number
of years now. And I just feel that it's almost incompre-
hensible today to believe that any municipality can long
exist without water and/or sewer services, especially
sewer service. And, in fact, we know that building bans
are being employed now in various areas of the State be-
cause of the sewer needs.

I do feel very strongly that the sewer revenue
bond need not necessarily be a double-barrelled
obligation, as is done quite frequently now. I think I
should make a distinction here,though, = a regional
sewer authority as opposed to a municipal sewer authority -
because obviously a regional sewer authority couldn't
possibly work unless it had contracts with those
municipalities that it served. So, therefore, the service
contracts are needed. But I don't believe that it should
necessarily follow that, as far as a local municipal
authority, the service contract should be needed as there
seems to be more than enough recourse for the bondholder
to foreclose or go into receivership, or what-have-you, if
it becomes necessary.

I feel very strongly that the sewer revenue bonds
should be independently rated, as opposed to a municipality.
I think they should be placed in a class by themselves.

I guess that's really just about as much of a
summary as I can give. I take it at your own leisure
you can go into it and get something a little more out of
it.

MR. MAGOVERN: I wasn't sure, Mr. Breen, whether
I heard you mention authorities and authority revenue bonds.
Are you classifying authorities into the same group as

authority revenue bonds?
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MR. BREEN: No. 7T don't think you can do that.

I think I'm talking primarily and solely about sewer
authorities. I am not going to classify a sewer authority
in the same class as an electric authority or gas authority
or something like that, which I don't believe we have any
of in the State anyway. But I don't think you can put
them all together., The law isn't written that way. I
mean,the law is written for sewer revenue bonds and this

is what I'm primarily interested in. And, seeing that
we're going to have a great deal of sewer revenue
financing, or what-have-you, in the State in the future, this
I think is some place where a great deal of education is
needed.

MR. MAGOVERN: Limiting it to the sewer authorities,
or sewer revenue bonds you classify there, it wouldn't
disturb you one way or the other whether it was a
separate authority or not? You classify security on the
same basis?

MR. BREEN: Well, as I said, I believe that a
sewer revenue bond under an authority, as set up by
Chapter 138, Laws of New Jersey, 1946, is more secure
than is a general obligation bond, and less likely to
default, simply, as I said, because you can't live
without sewer service. And I think an individual is going
to pay that sewer bill before maybe he will pay his local
school tax.

MR. MAGOVERN: Do any members of the Committee
have any questions of Mr. Breen?

MR. MOAK: Does the extension of the general
obligation pledge to the authority bonds have the effect
eventually of diluting the value of the general obligation
pledge?

MR. BREEN: No, I don't believe so. It has been
a common practice to have, what we call in the business,
service contracts, whereby a local municipality will back
up it's authority anywhere from the required reserves all
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for instance, Bergen County Sewer Authority, = they have
service contracts. I believe each municipaiity levies taxes
to pay a prcporticnate share. Now, 1f you have a BA rated
community, say all seven communities were BA rated, I
doubt very much that their tax coliections wouid go up any
greater just because they have a regional sewer authority.
Therefore, I would say probably not. It weould be a BA.
But I'm talking now where you'‘ve got a local municipality
it's strictly a revenue type of thing. They are empowered
to go in there and levy the rates that are necessary to
maintain that system for debt service and for the maintenance
and operation of the system as well as extensions. So
there is a difference.

MR. JESSER: Where you have your group of communities
involved in a sewer authority, it's inconceivable to me
that the authority could ever enforce any penalty against
a municipality, such as turning ocff or closing the
connection.,.

MR. BREEN: I don't see why you should say that then.

MR. JESSER: Well, because the Board of Health
wouldn't permit it.

MR. BREEN: Well, I think,under the law that the
authority was set up under, they could in fact. But I'm
not an attorney. I believe that they could in fact turn
off that service.

MR. JESSER: Well, I raised this question and it
has come back that the Board of Health would not permit
them to do it, you know, for one hour.

MR. BREEN: Well, would the Board of Health then
permit, or would some State agency then permit the
authority to go into default?

MR. JESSER: Then they would have to work scome-
thing out. It's understandable, though, because there is
no other course.

MR. BREEN: Well, I think, here again, we have
trustees appointed by the various authorities to oversee
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the way up to the actual backing of the bonds themselves.
There are various types of service contracts. I just
don't believe, myself, that there should be a necessity
for a service contract but, as long as bonds are sold this
way, if investors feel that they are more secure, which

I question, then I would have no objection, of course, to
going along with it. I just don't feel that there is a
need for it, that's all, except, as I said, on a regional
basis. Of course, it's obvious you have to have contracts
there.

MR. JESSER: If a sewer authority involves seven
communities and the seven communities, just for example,
all have BA ratings, would it be possible for the authority,
because of the diversification, the fact that you say they're
not going to turn off - they are not going to permit them
to turn off the valves and back up the sewers =-- would it
be possible for the authority to have a rating of A or BAA?

MR. BREEN: I think that's a question for the rating
services.

MR. JESSER: This is your point, though, isn't it?

MR. BREEN: No. I said there's a difference. On
a regional basis it's different than on a local basis. On
a local basis, I think it's an altogether different animal
and I think that they should be rated perhaps higher than
a local municipality. If we have a BAA rating, say for
South Brunswick, I think perhaps the South Brunswick Utility
Authority could have an A rating, because of the recourse
that bondholders have.

MR. JESSER: Well, that's my point, only instead of
having one municipality - up in Bergen County we have five
Oor sixX or seven oOr even more.

MR. BREEN: Right.

MR. JESSER: And the idea is that you get your
diversification, in other words that the authority has
a better credit standing and ratiﬁg than any one of the
average municipalities.

MR. BREEN: Generally speaking on a regional basis -
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MR. MILLER: We've had various suggestions, and
they've been in the Legislature tooc, for the enactment
of a municipal revenue bond law which would expand the
concept. I thought perhaps in ycur exper ience you
might have run into the need for it or the lack of need
for it.

MR. BREEN: No. I can't say that I have because =
I mean, in effect, you could almost - well, it's not a
revenue type of thing but you can go through an assess-
ment program, you can have a user charge for utility
service, where the charge for the service is something
like, you know, an authority would do only what could be
done under a municipal operation.

MR. MILLER: That being so, why should a single
municipality, if there are any left that are going to
have sewerage systems, create an authority just to
serve its own municipality?

MR. BREEN: Well, there may be some areas where
they can't afford a big regional authority.

MR. MILLER: All right, now, but why should they
go to an authority? Why shouldn't they do it as a municipal
utility operated by the municipal government?

MR. BREEN: Well, they would run into problems of
debt limit. I believe that's one of the reasons why the
authorities are created.

MR, MILLER: They're deductions from the debt
limit, if théy're self-ligquidating.

MR, BREEN: Well, if they're self=liquidating.

MR. MILLER: Well, they would have to be if they're
an authority, so they probably would be -

MR. BREEN: Well, if they are an authority.

MR. MILLER: And they probably could still make
themselves liquidating as a municipality.

MR. BREEN: Well, they could do it through user
charges.

MR, MILLER: Yes.
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these things, to prevent their happening. This is

for the protection of bondholders. Actually, it's for
the protection of everybody. That's the job of a good
trustee, qualified trustee to go in there and see that
these things do not happen, that the bills are met when
presented,

MR. MILLER: Mr. Breen, do you have any experience
between, let's say, two different types of parking authority
bonds, those where the municipality did not, at the outset,
pledge its full faith and credit, and thcse where they
did, and any difference in the interest rates?

MR. BREEN: From my personal experience, no.

MR. MILLER: Are there now any parking author ity
bonds issued which do not have the municipal guarantee?

MR. BREEN: Well, I would think there are. I know
of one that is thinking of what way to go, actually, that
I'm talking to. And as we get further into it, I think
we will have to look into it very thoroughly to see which
is going to be their best way. But, again, I am not all
that knowledgeable when it comes down to parking authorities,
My main interest has always been in sewer.

MR. MILLER: Oh, I'm sorry. Well, taking sewer
then, do you have any opinion about the advisability for
New Jersey to enact a revenue bond law so that municipalities
could operate-—particular;y a single municipality could
operate a sewer system under that kind of financing as
distinguished from the need to create an authority to do
it, although I realize it really isn't that necessary.

MR. BREEN: No. And it would Jjust seem to me to
be kind of superfluous, really. But you can do it now.

MR. MILLER: Is there anything, though, about the
remedies, which you point out very effectively in your
paper, which are available to the holder of a revenue bond
under an authority which aren't parallel for revenue bonds
issued by a municipality?

MR. BREEN: I really don't know.
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Scranton, Pennsylvania, had a problem where the city was
not going to pay that which it had promised to pay under
an agreement, a service type agreement, but the trustee
or trustee group of banks stepped in to see that the
monies were advanced to prevent a default. I mean, this
is obviously their job. It's maybe nct their job to lend
the money but it's their job to certainly see that those
rates are increased to a point where they will be self-
supporting again.

MR. MILLER: Thank you.

MR. MAGOVERN: Mr., Rosenthal, you had something
to say?

MR. ROSENTHAL: Well, I started to ask some things
before, in that you were asking same questions of some
people up here that necessarily weren't coming up with
the answers or weren't giving you saome answers and I
thought maybe I could help you at the time on some
specifics.

I'm connected strictly in sales with our firm
and marketing of bonds in the State of New Jersey, in
municipalities, and our past experience, as I said before, -
I think we do as much underwriting in this State as any
firm and we usually manage the syndicates we're invclved
in. And we take a look at these municipalities with an eye
to what we need and how to sell them. And I disagree that
Jersey municipalities sell cheaper than the general run
in the country, as a whole. Sure, we have adjacent states,
like New York and Pennsylvania, that do have state income
tax, where they're more beneficial, let's say, to certain
residents to buy their locals rather than come across the
river and buy Jersey bonds for New York residents. And
being there are more people in New York, they'll stick
with that. Our joint authorities, back and forth between
New York and New Jersey, = we have tremendous success and
they sell much higher, I think, than authorities throughout

the country. The New Jersey Turnpike gets away with murder,
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MR. BREEN: But I don't see any advantage.

MR. MILLER: Well, wouldn't the same user charge
permit municipal operation outside the debt limit?

MR. BREEN: Yes, if it's self-supported.

MR. MILLER: Well, why don't more of them do it?

MR. BREEN: I don't know.

MR. MILLER: Are they being advised to create
authorities when they don't need them?

MR. BREEN: Well, no. I think they're running
into problems. You have local officials who are elected,
on a part-time basis, who consequently can't be cognizant
of all of the things going on. I have to agree with
what Mr. Dalin said before. I think it would be very
advisable for these municipalities to retain campetent,
financial consulting services. And I think, if that were
to happen, a lot of their problems could be solved. I
won't say it's going to happen overnight or something like
that because we've been going on for years now and the
problems are becoming more and more complex. And I
frankly feel for a lot of these local officials who have
to go to business during the day and many times they
are out three or four nights a week trying to conduct
municipal business.

MR. MILLER: That's sure true. One other thing.
You talked about sewer authorities. I take it your
remarks also go to utility authorities which cover both
sewer and water?

MR. BREEN: Right.

MR. MILLER: The same thing.

MR. BREEN: Yes. Well, as you pointed out, they
have to be self-supporting, under law. And the job of a
good, competent trustee is tb see that they ae self-
supporting. If they're not, then some remedy will have
to be worked out, and I think they always have been. It

was brought to my attention here, a city, I believe
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normally, on a bond issue compared to what other
authorities in the country will be going for. The Port
Authority, the same way. When we get into New Jersey here,
sure, we'll have BA loans sell cheaper. That's a fault in
our investment community in the fact that we put Moody's
Investor Service up here (indicating) someplace where most
of us don't believe they belong but, unfortunately, the
bankers in this State, particularly who do the buying, give
Moody's a holier-than-thou position, where Standard & Poor,
and I agree, are very realistic, in recent years, and
Dun & Bradstreet, which very few people lcok at because they
don't put a number on it - they'll say, "better medium grade"
or something but that takes some thinking about what they
mean, We know A, B, C, so it's very easy to say, "Oh,
that's A, I'll buy it. BAA, I won't buy it. BA, the
book says that's below bank credit quality so we won't buy
that." The banks won't buy it other than a local situation.
So we have a problem in marketing these BA bonds
because Moody's has put a BA on them. The fact that Standard
& Poor's has put a triple B on them, it's still - for the
bank examiners, the bankers are scared to buy, they don't
want to be subjected to any criticism. So we have to find
a way to make Moody see the light, maybe, or today, now that
they require a buying of a rating, it's ridiculous that
a municipality goes to them if they think they'll give them
a BA because they're better off non-rated. The banks will
buy non-rated bonds but they won't buy a BA. So, if they
don't go and buy the rating, if they think they're going to
get a BA, they'll just take that non-rating that they give
them for not rating. And many of our top municipalities of
the State are not rated. In the past it has been a non-rating
because they haven't had enough debt to be rated. Now it's
a non-rating because they weren't willing to get up the cash
to buy a rating. And sometimes it's detrimental to pay the

money to get a rating if it's going to be an adverse rating.
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There was another area that you talked about,
things that can be done in this State to help market
bonds, and I am a strong believer that the financial
advisor should be allowed to bid. You asked that question
before. There is no criticism of a financial advisor
buying the New Jersey Turnpike bonds, being the financial
advisor to the Turnpike, - which we were one of them; or
city managers, and tell them when to come to market, give
them the rate, sit down and negotiate, sign the deal as
an advisor and then go ahead and market the bond issue
at the right time, at the right price, go in then. What's
the difference? What's the difference if you're dealing
with the Jersey Turnpike or you're dealing with some
township up in Bergen County or someplace else?

MR. MOAK: Is there not this difference, sir,
that it is presumed that the New Jersey Turnpike has keen
appreciation of the municipal bond market?

MR. ROSENTHAL: Right.

MR. MOAK: Whereas the butcher, the baker, the
candlestickmaker, who sarve as a part-time official on
an authority or municipal board - it cannot be presumed
that they have the same keen appreciation.

MR. ROSENTHAL: It's true. That's one of the
problems we have. We will go into a municipality and
they'll think nothing of inviting investment bankers from
the east - it many times involves the east but strictly
most of them are located in New York and New Jersey, they're
heading the syndicates, - think nothing of going all the
way down to Cape May County, go down on a bond issue, and
they know damn well what rates they're going to get and
they have you drive all the way down there, a man spends
his time and then they'll say we reject the issue, when
they got a better rate than what they could have possibly
dreamed of because the lawyer or the doctor sitting on that
board is a financial advisor, and he doesn't know what's
going on, I mean from a sophisticated standpoint. And

there is no reason why every municipality in this State
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should not hire a financial advisor.,

MR. MOAK: But my point is =-=

MR. ROSENTHAL: They shouldn't be listening to
some man sitting on this board who spends all his time
operating in a hospital or with his accounting books or
as a lawyer in court who really isn't following the market.

MR. MOAK: My question is this. If I am ignorant
concerning this matter and I hire you as my advisor and
you advise me to buy from you at a given price, how do I
know that you aren't taking advantage of me.

MR. ROSENTHAL: This is competitive bidding. There
must be competitive bidding in this State. We are not
negotiating with your municipality. We're coming in there
and you'll probably get = if you're an average municipality
in this State, you'll probably get anywhere ffom six to
ten bids which will involve anywhere from six to maybe
thirty firms that are bidding on your bonds. And the
bids are there for everybody to see. And you can see what
the next bidder is bidding. You can see if your financial
advisor isn't giving you a lot better bid than anybody
else has given you, and in many cases he will. But the
fact that the figures are there. He isn't going to steal
that bond issue from you, not with the competitive bidding
we have today. And I would have to say to you that New
Jersey is probably one of the most competitive areas in
the United States today in the bond bidding business,
in the secondary market and in the primary market. There
is not anywhere that I can think of in this Country where
there is more competition or more firms interested in
buying the bond issue. And the only reason that Jersey
gets lower bids, in some instances, is because of the
rating service,of Moody's reluctance to change its practices
of thirty years ago so that a BA bond issue - like Asbury
Park gets a BA rating and they have never hired a financial
consultant or samebody to try to change tﬁat thing or

present the facts, and some of these municipalities just
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don't get the information in cn time. But Moody's

was burned back in the depression. I think at that time
they had Atlantic City as a triple A bond, if I'm not
mistaken, and they've never forgoctten that, they've
never forgotten that. But on all other issues, our A
rated and our BAA's, I'll put those bids againt any
state in the Union, cther than a few specific states
like Texas and a few others, Virginia where you have

an exceptional situation, taxwise. And the number of
bids that you get here in this State = and I think when
we do go off in bidding it“§ because maybe we've had
more issues come to market in the period, like we see

in New England sometimes, where A rated bonds in this
State will sell much higher than they will sell in
Massachusetts when they've had quite a few come to market
over a short period of time and the banks cannot absorb
them,

So it gets back to the law of supply and demand,
pnd the number of issues coming. We bought an issue
‘just last week of Gloucester County which Moody had
changed the rating on, most recently, to an A rating.
That issue sold higher, probably, than any A rated bond
that came out last week in all of the United States.

MR. JESSER: Do ycu know what percentage of an
issue goes into the bank portfolio and what goes out, in
general?

MR. ROSENTHAL: I know when we buy them,

MR. JESSER: What percentage would go in their
bank portfolio?

MR. ROSENTHAL: What rated bond?

MR. JESSER: Well, an A,

MR. ROSENTHAL: An A rated bond, 90 percent of
the issue will go into the banks in this State, or out of
the State.

MR. JESSER: How many would go into the State, of
the --
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MR. ROSENTHAL: Of the banks in this -=

MR. JESSER: New Jersey.

MR. ROSENTHAL: I would say the banks in this
State do an excellent job of supporting the bond issues.
And there are certain counties in this State, the banks
of certain counties that have a tremendous reputation,
much better than other counties in this State, of backing
the issues, the smaller issues, within the State.

Now I'm not going to get into the counties that
do a good job or that don't do a good job. But I would
say that the bond issues, in my opinion, get excellent
support from the banks in this State. A

MR. MOAK: Wgs this true in 1969 even when,
nationally, the banks absorbed almost no additional
municipal ==

MR. ROSENTHAL: No, it couldn't have been true.
We were in a tight money market and naturally it couldn't
have been true. But, relatively speaking. You're talking
about the support of banks in other states, now?

MR. MOAK: No, I'm speaking nationally. The banks
have about 50 percent of the total holdings of municipal

cbligations. —-—
MR. ROSENTHAL: Correct.
MR. MOAK: =-- which has been increasing, as a

percentage, and has been increasing in dollar volume up
to '68, but in '69 both the percentage of total holdings =
that decreased --

MR. ROSENTHAL: Their ability to buy went down in
that period.

MR. MOAK: And my question is, during that period
were you still successful in .that being your primary
market in New Jersey?

MR. ROSENTHAL: On an A rated bond, yes, no question
about it. Now their ability to buy was not as great and,
of course, that was relative, but the support from the banks
if that's what you're talking about - Jersey banks support

tremendously Jersey bond issues, as a rule. Now as soon
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as a bond issue starts to fall in grade, under BAA,
support goes down and rightly so, probably, from their
standpoint. Not too many bank officers want to take the
risk, particularly outside of their county, of buying a
BA bond - for what? to be subjected to the bank examiners
of this State saying that you have over 5 percent of your
holdings in BA bonds and get rid of them, or don't buy
any more. The pressure cames from there. That's why they
don't buy them. They would love to buy them for the yield.
The yield is great]on BA bonds. And we know, everybody
in the investment community knows, that the credit is
great. Take a bond like Parsippany-=Troy Hills, BA rated,-
who wouldn't want to own that bond at the price it would
have to sell because Moody's put the BA rating on it,
backed by the full faith and creditof that municipality?
' Ask the man from Standard and Poor what he thinks
of Parsippany-Troy Hills - and I've never seen what he writes,
you know. That's the problem. The marketing of bonds?
There's no trouble marketing bonds in this State and we'll
get as good a rate in this State as any other state.

MR. MAGOVERN: Well, would you want to comment
on any view you might have with respect to a state rating
authority?

MR. ROSENTHAL: Yes, I have a few views on that.
My feeling is, you run into one problem, as the gentleman
here mentioned, you start to dilute the quality of the
state itself, if you have them state backed. I don't know
exactly how you plan to have this. And if the State of
New Jersey should ever lose its triple A rating because
now it has these contingencies outstanding =~ we've seen
this happen in other states. It happened in the State of
New York where the rating has gone down because it is
indirectly and morally backing a lot of authorities.
There is a strong moral obligation = housing authorities

and dormitory authorities and one thing or another, so
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that the rating has been dropped because of all these
contingencies. What is the cost to the State of New
Jersey if they go into a bond bank and Moody's decides

to drop them to a double A bond? Now you're talking big
money because if you drop a rating on a state level, when
you're going to come out with some size, and the State
has still got these college bonds = has still got, I think,
about $750 million more to come, right?, on that $900
million program - the State is going to have trouble
marketing its own bonds. And the last two or three times
the State came to market the investors and bankers that
bought the issues took a good bath on them, and they're
not too quick to buy State of New Jersey bonds anymore
and market them.

Now if the State starts to come with many more
issues besides this $900 million program they have now,
I'm wondering how long they're going to keep a triple A
rating. And many people in the investment community
are going to wonder about that.

Then the expense of running this program, I don't
know if you are going to lose more in trying to build
up the things that are the problem of the underwriting,
and these lower rated bond issues = why don't they get
better ratings? = seeing that they get financial advisors,
seeing that they come to market at the proper time.
Timing is so important to save them money. Issuing, the
way to issue; all the things that a good sound financial
advisor would do at almost no cost to them. The cost
to these small municipalities is peanuts. There isn't
a financial advisor in the business that would charge
much money, compared to some of these fees that these
attorneys get, and so forth, that I've seen for some
of these large authorities. Most of the bond houses
work very inexpensively, very inexpensively.

MR. MAGOVERN: Mr. Breen, do you have something?

MR. BREEN: Yes, I was going to say, I've often
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questioned the need for a bond bank, to begin with, anyway,
I understand the idea behind it but if we have local
school districts and local municipalities in this State
that have BA ratings, and I can think of a number cf them
that probably should be rated better, = wouldn't it be
better to follow a formula, such as New York State has
done by instituting an income tax in the State of New
Jersey and thereby giving a more equitable share of the
revenues to these scheocl districts. I don't see why the
credit of the State should be impaired when it could

be done another way completely.

MR. MILLER: The chiject is, of course, to force
more people into buying New Jersey bonds by enacting the
New Jersey income tax. You're before the wrong Task Force
for that.

MR. ROSENTHAL: I think it would be easier to
pass the bond bank.

MR. BREEN: At the same time, this may be so but
I think we've got to lock at it realistically tco. I
mean, New Jersey has had an horrendous history of
extremely high property taxes. I mean, I pay my taxes
so I know,

MR. MAGOVERN: It will be part of the rececrd that
maybe we should forward a section of this record to the
proper Task Force.

MR. BREEN: I would 1like to say one thing further
in regard to a question that was raised before on
bond anticipation nctes. I think bond anticipation notes
very definitely serve a purpose. I think a lot of people
confuse them. I do agree, however that they should not
go out indefinitely. I think a three year period of time
is sufficient, myself, because there is nothing to say
you're not going to play Russian roulette with these things.
You go out at the end of five years and you find yourself
in a bad bond market, what do you do? run down to Trenton
and say, "Look, fellows, I need two more years,"
58

or something



like that? We've got to be realistic in that regard.

I think at the end of the three year period they should

be getting those bonds permanently financed, those notes.
But I think during the period of construction if they

are in a bad bond market I think they should very definitely
go to bond anticipation notes in the hope that the market
will change. Anything can happen over a twelve month

period of time, or longer, - to have them come out and

issue a permanent financing at that time.

MR. MAGOVERN: Could I get back for a moment to
your views with respect to a state rating authority as
contrasted to your views on the state banking system.

MR. ROSENTHAL: My views?

MR. MAGOVERN: Yes,

MR. ROSENTHAL: I don't think the state rating
authority will affect one thing. The only area where it
may help us is possibly in the area of, if the State
Examiners will approve of the state rating, then it would
be worthwhile, just for that alone. Otherwise, the general
investment community - it won't have any effect at all.
They are not concerned with what Dun & Bradstreet rates
the bonds; they're not going to worry about what the
State does. But if the banks will recognize it and
respect it, it will be a wonderful thing.

MR. MAGOVERN: Any members of the Commission have
anthing to add?

MR. JESSER: I would just like to say this, if a
bank buys a BA bond but it backs it up with a credit
analysis, as it would on a loan, where it makes its own
independent credit judgment, the bank examiner certainly
has to take a look at that. He won't say that any bonds
you have with a BA or less rating -=-

MR. ROSENTHAL: True. But put yourself in the
position of the average banker, not the man that stands
up here who has a little backbone and does what he thinks

is the thing to do, but the average banker. The average
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banker does not want to be critized for his actions. It's
not worth the action. He can buy the bonds. Why does he
have to stick his neck out that possibly he was wrong or
to go to that effort, other than he's getting deposits
from the local community in his bank, in that area, you
see. And there's a secondary reason for buying local
BA loans. But in order to sell a $5 million BA loan,
you need more backing than just the local bank, you need )
them throughout the whole State. But the banker at the other
end of the State he's not going to stick his neck out for
some community up in Bergen County that has a BA rating,
if there were one, and subject himself to that problem -
Why? to buy $50,000 worth of bonds? The heck with it,
we just don't buy it. Or to the board of directors breathing
down his neck at the next board meeting - Why did you buy
those bonds? You're dealing with a human being. It's
easier to play it safe.

MR. MAGOVERN: Does any other member of the Committee
have any questions? (No questions.)

Thank you very much, Mr. Breen and Mr. Rosenthal.

We have one more registered witness and that is
the New Jersey City Management Association, Mr. McHugh and
Mr. Meholick.

We will take a five minute recess.

(Recess)
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After recess _ , '
' MR. MAGOVERN: Mr, McHugh and Mr. Meholick. Is
Mr. McHugh here? -

MR. MEHOLICK: Unfortunately, he could not attend
so I will present the statement.

MR. MAGOVERN: All right. Mr. Meholick.
GEORGE T. MEHOLTICZK: I am representing
the New Jersey City Management Association as one of its
Past Presidents. (For statement, see p.116)

MR, MILLER: Aren't you also the Business
Administrator of the fastest growing township in New Jersey?

MR. MEHOLICK: Yes, I'm also that.

MR. MILLER: About 100,000 population isn't it?

MR. MEHOLICK: If you say so, I will agree.

SENATOR CRABIEL: I want you to know this is
Middlesex County day.

MR. MEHOLICK: I am representing the New Jersey
City Managers, -State of New Jersey City Managers.

I will try to briefly summarize my statement. I
made it into three components, namely, introduction, -
some of the things that we ought to know and talk about,
some of the problems that I see, and then recommendations.

In the introductory remarks I call attention to
the problems of the '60's, in terms of municipal financing,
and I say that they are still here and have become very
critical. In fact, while the sixties were dubbed as
the decade of protest and unheralded confrontation,
the very foundation of local government was being shaken
and the viability of our being able to meet this challenge
was questioned. .

I do want to call your attention to the fact that
municipal debt has reached an all-time high; interest
costs are at the highest levels in history; and urban
needs are critical, the most critical now, with the
greatest stress, as you know, being placed on the

conservation of our natural resources, human ecology, etc.
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I also, in the introductory remarks, make
reference a Dr. Paul Ehrlick in his recent book titled
The Population Bomb. He states that if we continue to
grow at our present rate, we will double our population
within the next thirty years and that we will have to in
effect double the capital improvements that have been built
since the days of our founding fathers.

So, as a broad overview, it appears to me and it
appears to our organization of city managers that we must
be cognizant of this fact that we have a tremendous
problem and a backlog, so to speak.

We feel that technology and science got us where
we are, hopefully they will take us out of this problem.

I state, starting with page two, some of the
problems that city managers run across. We state that
if the decade of the '60's saw the greatest growth in
municipal debt - and you will see that on page three -

I have an exhibit there where I show for approximately
ten years, from '56 or '57 through '67, a growth of
$17,560,000,000 to something 1like $37,500,000,000, or
almost double.

We feel that in the decade of the '70's it is
safe to predict that you haven't seen anything yet in
terms of capital needs. I list some of the ones that
we have talked about in our Association meeting. They
comprise such things as housing, public works programs,
transportation, and the like.

' Now, getting down to the recommendations. Before
I get into that, I would like to put into the record

this paragraphrthat I have on page 4, about the center

of the page:

"These are some of the constraints and problems
that confront local administrators today and in the
future. In addition, the competitive money market
requires, indeed mandates, that the finance administrator
of today be very knowledgeable about the municipal bond
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market, its trends and marketing techniques so that
municipal bond sales will be sold at costs which local
governments can justify and afford to pay."

Now, going into the recommendations. I have
something like 12 recommendations = I should say "we"
have, the New Jersey City Management Association.

Exhibit "A", as I indicated earlier, outlines
the latest figures on municipal debt which is, in a sense,
doubled over the last ten years. New Jersey municipalities
pretty well follow this trend. Therefore, we respectfully
submit the following for your study and review:

l. Since approximately one=third of the
municipal debt in Exhibit "A" is revenue bonds, we feel
that self-liquidating bonds should be encouraged but the
pledging of the full faith and credit of the municipality
is essential if these bonds are to be successful in the
bond markets of the future. A good example is the New
Jersey statutes that you have now on the books concerning
swimming pool facilities, acquisition and operation, - a
self-liquidating utility, pledging the full faith and
credit of the municipaiityo

2. We feel that municipal bonds should be exempt
from all or any State or Federal taxes. A recent attempt
has been made to remove such exemption.

3. While pay-as-you-go ig a laudable principle
and should be used when a community is wealthy enough to
utilize this means, we find that the very great majority
of local governments must continue to look for short and
long=term borrowing or fall far behind in needed capital
construction and equipment.

4, I strongly urge the creation of a central
credit agency which will serve all New Jersey municipalities.
This agency would assist all communities who are considering
bond issues and, in particular, many New Jersey communities

who have no knowledge of marketing.- I guess that has
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already been brought up very emphatically here. - no
knowledge of marketing procedures and time after time
fail to receive any bids.

This central credit agency could very well become
a part of the debt management program that the Department
of Community Affairs already administers through the
Division of Local Finance.

I might digress and say, it is our opinion, the
opinion of the New Jersey City Management Association,
and I am sure shared by the New Jersey Finance Officers
Association, that this debt management program is indeed
a wonderful thing and should be enlarged and retained.

5. The present high interest rates on municipal
bonds must be reduced. It appears it may be several years
before municipal bond investors will feel free to purchase
long-term municipal bonds with confidence that the income
will be tax exempt throughout the life of the municipal
bond.

We are saying that something will have to be done
to continually reassure this. One way to do it, possibly,
is to establish a permanent and unequivocal tax exemption.
We also suggest the possibility of say a federal urban
bank - rather than use the word "bank" a depository or a
system to back up municipal bonds by guaranteed interest
payments until refinancing needs are met. We're talking
here in cases where refunding needs have to be met or
where there is a dire need to fill a community need and
the financial facilities are not available.

6. And this was discussed earlier in the meeting.
I believe your Consultant brought this out, that the Joint
Economic Committee of the Congress of the United States,
in a study published in December, 1966, estimated that
the total needs of local government would rise from about
$33,560 million in 1965 to more than $65,000 million in
1975. Thus the inter-relationship of short and long
term financing, interest costs, available and interested

markets and the ability of local government to raise needed
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funds should be very carefully examined as never before
in the light of the expenditures of this magnitude of
money. Therefore, it seems to us that one ought to
seriously consider the continuance and expansion of the
Debt Management Program presently limited in scope,
funding and areas of responsibility. I further suggest
that the following matters be examined by the Debt
Management Group and request that they report to you
their findings, both pro and con.

Now we list here something like seven areas that
we feel ought to be considered, in addition to the ones
I have mentioned earlier. And you've heard some of these
already:

Increase state and federal grants=-in-aid
to local governments, particularly where urban decay and
financing for capital improvements for same are impossible
and improbable by local revenue sources. This, again,
is the possibility of the Federal Bank coming in or the
State Urban Bank.

(b) Investment of state and local government
pension and retirement funds, along with other funds not
needed in short and long term municipal bonds. This is
an attempt to get additional money out into the marketplace.

(c) Improving your marketing programs., This may
mean a program of inducing individuals of modest means who
have been buying taxable securities to choose tax exempt
municipal securities as part of his investment choices,

(d) A possible revision of the statutory debt limits
for municipal and school financing. In particular, the
provision of averaging out the last three years of assessed
valuation seems ultra-conservative., By that I'm referring
to when you have your community reassessed or revalued,
before you can get the full impact of that revaluation
you must wait almost four years because each year you

get a succeeding third added on. The benefits of
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revaluation are not realized until almost four years have
gone by.

(e) That a State-wide revaluation program be
instituted. In my opinion, there are startling differences,
to say the least, not only in method and approach but in
the equalization program.

v (f) And this is one I think ought to really be
examined carefully because of the kinds of money we are
talking about in the next ten years. Insist that the
five-year capital programs be implemented énd meaningful.
Projections of not only capital program costs but a pro-
jection of financing costs which would include temporary
financing costs of notes and other related costs should
be included. PPBS, or Planned Program Budget Systems
should be encouraged which would include alternative actions
concerning the proposed capital expenditures and utilize
cost-benefit techniques along with PERT techniques. For
example, the decision not to build a library because of
one alternative not being available, namely that since
construction costs go up one-and-a-half percent per month
what would be the impact of delaying a needed library
construction for one year for some other alternative.

In other .words, the alternative may be that the market
may seem too high. When you consider the possibility of
paying higher construction costs the following year, over
what your increased interest cost would be, you may well
decide to take the former and pass the ordinance and
build the library.

(g) Provide local governments with capable and
trained consultants who can analyze capital needs and the
ability of a given community to finance same. This was
talked about earlier this morning. These consultants can
be made available from the Central Credit Agency or from
the Debt Management Program. In any case, however, this
will mean additional state personnel to do this kind of
work. |
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As a result, we feel that while we are talking
about spending this kind of money we kind of end up
saying somebody must be the watchdog of the treasury.
And all of this must be done, of course, with the ability
of not only the given communities but the State, through
it's total municipalities, .to pay the:bill. '

This, in substance, is the text of our offer.

MR. MAGOVERN: Mr. Meholick, in your item four
you speak of an agency that would deal with debt manage-
ment. You do not go so far as to suggest or recommend
any start of a state bonding authority that would act on
behalf of municipalities. Would this debt management
eventually encompass any such thing as that?

MR. MEHOLICK: It could. However, I don't want
to rule out the possibility of help coming from the private
sector as well as the municipal sector. I think there is
proprietary, as well as municipal, interest involved.
And I feel that the creation of a central credit agency
in terms of its programming ought to be studied by people
who know the business. And I would suggesk, as I believe
I did earlier, that possibly this should be reviewed by
your own debt management people or by somebody who is
knowledgeable in the field.

MR. MAGOVERN: This does not, however, as recommended
here, encompass a state bonding authority.

MR. MEHOLICK: No, sir. It could very well be.
I do not envision that.

MR. MAGOVERN: I'm not sure that I understood
your item five where you recommend that there be a backup
of municipal bonds by some sort of a federal or state
banking undertaking. Apparently it would not be only in
the event of the tax status changing but would be in the
event of default of any kind?

MR. MEHOLICK: Yes, sir. One of the prime factors,
and you've heard it over and over and I will repeat it be-

cause it certainly is worth repeating, is, during the
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'20's ‘and '30's, when many, many cities in New Jersey
defaulted -the municipal bond rating people are very
conservative in changing rates. You can notice, and
you have already noticed, I'm sure, in previous testimony,
the many constraints placed upon this kind of rating.
The consideration of some kind of an urban depository -
I don't want to use the word "bank” - I talked to Dr.
Miller earlier and I said, "What shall we call this
thing?" - a backup, a backup source, very much as the
banks operate, they have it right on" théir window -

"We insure your deposits up to $20,000. Don't worry,
we're good. Uncle Sam is going to take care of you,"
I'm suggesting possibly a similar situation. Maybe we
ought to guarantee certain kinds of basic costs. They
may be interest to carry on the principal, or refunding
issues of some kind.

MR. MAGOVERN: Using that example, this would be
in effect a charge against the municipalities for the
creation of a source of guarantee? Is that what you mean?

MR. MEHOLICK: Yes.

MR. MAGOVERN: Like a re-insuring corporation?

MR. MEHOLICK: Yes, because of the consequences,
again, using an analytic technique of an entire system.
What are the consequences if you don't do that? We
already heard the consequences. I'm trying to make some
constructive suggestions that may or may not, you know,
work. I'm not sure that they will work. Our intent,

I may add, is purely to make recommendations. We know
some of them aren't so good. We don't like to think they
are many in number and few in excelleﬁce, but we would
like to suggest that these are some of the things that we
talk about and this is our first opportunity to express
them frankly.

MR. MAGOVERN: Since this is aimed at reducing
interest rates on municipal securities and would, in effect,
be a charge against the municipality, do you vizualize
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over the period much of a saving to the municipality?

MR. MEHOLICK: It could very well be, depending
upon the circumstances of the offer. It could be.

MR. MILLER: Along the same line, if the tax
could mean instability created by threats to tax
exemption is costing municipalities money, if you believe
that those threats will never be more than that, are you
suggesting that maybe the municipalities would be well
~advised, with statutory authority, to comment that in
the event that tax exemption is lost that they will accept
a new interest rate charge to make up the difference?

MR. MEHOLICK: That's a good idea.

MR. MILLER: Kind of their own guarantee that they
will never have to make good on it, they hope?

MR. MEHOLICK: Right. That's an excellent idea.
I think that ought to be thrown into the hopper.
Certainly it does give the guarantee to the investor
into the market and that's who we're concerned about.
It was very revealing for me this morning to hear the
market speak one way, and they are. in the field constantly
meeting and talking with people, dealing with municipal
officials, - to state that they feel some of our ratings
are indeed too conservative and don't meet the needs of
the present time because of defaults. And there are so
many things that have happened since the 30's to improve
the cash basis, for example, of your municipal budget
systems. And, Dr. Miller, you know, as well as I, - we've
gone through many of these in our seminars = that those
fears are pretty well gone or should have been gone.

MR. MILLER: Of course, I agree with you.

MR. MAGOVERN: Does any member of the Committee
have any questions?

SENATOR CRABIEL: Mr. Meholick, addressing yourself
to the urban bank you're talking about, wouldn't your
proposal increase cost to municipalities? Wouldn't we

be much better with the bond bank proposal where only
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those municipalities that really need nhelp go to the
State and get support from the State rather than charging
municipalities, whether they need it or not, a fee?
MR. MEHOLICK: That's an interesting thought
and one that certainly ought to be looked at more or
less by a benefit cost ratio, if you want to use that
approach. Tnere is some value, some intrinsic value,
it would seem to me, and some moral support value, if
you want to use that word, - I've heard that used here
quite a bit, morally, - that if all municipalities,
whether they needed this or not, in terms of some of
the initial programs. [t may well be that in the future
they may design some programs that could be beneficial
to all concerned. But I think the most crying need
throughout the State is marketing procedures to many,
many municipalities. I think that municipality after
municipality will tell you of the need for marketing
procedures. Most finance officers and staffs, administra-
tors and city managers, are so busy - they just have to
take time out, as we stated in our message, to do this
now. But really this could very well be performed by
this debt management team and enlarge this concept.
SENATOR CRABIEL: Doesn't the State also work
against itself when you talk about investing pension
and retirément funds in municipal bonds? Isn't the
intent of the pension funds to get the most for the --
MR. MEHOLICK: That's right. So I say that's
a provocative question. And I think I mentioned earlier,
a lot of the things that we put in there aren't necessarily
What we advocate very strongly. I feel that we ought to
suggest that these are some of the alternatives that we
hear that maybe you might not have heard and no one would
tell §ou. These are things that we hear all along - Why
don't you use the pension fund? You know, that's always
tossed out. I think we ought to set it to rest one way

or another.,
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SENATOR CRABIEL: And, thirdly, do I understand
that you approve of some sort of credit borrowing controls
but you think that the present controls are not realistic -
limits, I'm talking about, debt limits.

MR. MEHOLICK: Yes. The debt limits, I feel, of
something like 7 1/2%, I guess, for schools, plus the
municipality. Now, for example, a given community can
exceed its school debt limitation but not its municipality,
but when you add the two together you're ﬁnder 7 1/2.

I feel, you know, you ought to put a total of all -
library; fire districts,,if you have them; school districts;
and municipality = and say put a ceiling of - I don't know,
toss it out here, there are a lot of bond people here -
10%, would that be too high? 10% of assessed valuation
being the absolute maximum? Because, as you now have it,
once you exceed your local limit you go down to the
Director of Local Government and request respectfully

for reasons that you have and can show capability and

need, and more than likely he will grant you the right to
exceed your debt limit. I think, from an over-ald
marketing point of view, the present ceiling is now,

I believe, 7 1/2 with both. The question ought to be,

do you wént to go above that and, if so, state right

out that it ought not to exceed say a combination of
library, municipal needs, fire district needs and school
needs, etc. I don't think.:10% is unusual.

MR. MILLER: You said 10% of assessed, you mean
10% equalized, don't you?

MR. MEHOLICK: 10% equalized, yes, in light of
the statistics that I seem to have been reading as to
the costs of the programs and the scope of the programs
in the next decade.

SENATOR CRABIEL: Now you also talked about
putting the faith and credit of a municipality against
such things as a swimming pool.

MR. MEHOLICK: Yes.

SENATOR CRABIEL: Isn't there same sort of limit
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that the faith and credit ought to be put against things
that are unanimously agreed as essential? I mean, where.
one municipality will argue for a swimming pool, another
municipality might not think that's essential, and it
would get you up into a debt limit and later on you're
going to need sewers or samething else.

MR. MEHOLICK: Absolutely. The matter of
priorities and the matter of scale is a continuing policy
decision problem in the governing bodies. Hopefully we
try. This is why I stress very heavily the need of the
five-year capital improvement programs and that when they
are filed that the municipalities be required to live up
to them. You know, a lot of them file them - I'm not
saying they think of them as a joke, they take them as
procedural. I think they should be not only procedural
but they should be operational, or why bother?

MR. MAGOVERN: Any other member have a question?

MR. JESSER: Yes, one short question, please.

On page 7, paragraph (c) - improve marketing
programs by having individuals of modest means who have
been buying taxable securities choose tax exempt.

Do you have any idea how you would implement
that program?

MR. MEHOLICK: Well, again, that was a provocative
suggestion but a possibility because we are getting more
and more people in the so-called middleclass, the affluent
class, and many of them want to create trust funds for
many reasons, somehow or other, not directly from a
municipality but possibly through our marketing people,
or possibly, if the debt management program becomes say
the marketing system for our State, that we ought to try
to sell this idea, that there is nothing wrong with a tax
exempt'municipal bond, if you are going to buy and set
up these bonds for an educational trust fund, for your

children, for marriage or whatever it is.

72



MR. JESSER: I think we must say there that if
you want to really implement that the rate would have to
be compatible. Somebody in the 20 or 30% income:.tax
bracket you're not even going to get them to switch from
corporate bonds into tax frees unless it made sense
because of the increase in yield,

MR. MEHOLICK: Well, I don't know how much money
this would mean but it has been talked about that
possibly we have not done a good job on it. But we do
know that the people who buy our bonds market into trust
accounts with these same people. It's an idea. Again,
it should be looked into and either laid to rest or
tossed out.

MR. MAGOVERN: Any other questions?

Thank you very much, Mr. Meholick.

Mr. Rochlin of.Tecott Jackson & Company
ARTHUR ROCHLIN: My name is Arthur Rochlin,
Principal in the firm of Tecott Jackson & Company, dealers
in municipal securities, located in Newark.

First of all, to my knowledge we did not receive
any official notice of this sitting of the Committee. I
would appreciate it if we would be notified of any such
sitting in the future. And since we did not have any
notice and did not hear of this sitting until, I believe it
was Friday, I would respectfully request, on behalf of
myself and some other gentlemen in our industry, that
rather than closing the hearing at the end of this meeting
that you consider adjourning. I believe that there would
be some statements forthcoming from them, as well as from
my firm, with a little bit more preparation.

I would like to direct myself to a number of
things that were stated here by various of your witnesses,
particularly concerning, first of all, the bond fund.

I'm not really that familiar with it but my understanding
is that it would be a state agency which would sell its
own obligations and, in turn, purchase the obligations of
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those municipalities from the state that needed this
type of financial help.

I don't think that this is a fine solution to
the problem. There are about 60-odd municipalities in
the State which are rated BA by Moody's. A large
percentage of that, I believe, is school district bonds.
And I think that the problem of selling these bonds
at a more realistic interest rate relative to their
absolute quality, on the basis of analysis, might be
solved by a more constructive approach to analysis.

Before, one gentleman was talking about the
value of New York State School District Bonds because of
the laws pertaining to them, which give the bondholder
a great deal of protection. The laws pertaining to school
districts in New Jersey are also extremely strong. However,
I don't think they have been as well publicized.

It seems hard for me to understand why a school
district, any school district, in the State of New Jersey
would be rated lower than BAA, considering the various
State laws applicable to their debt. In addition, fhe
volume of bond issues of this lower quality, the total
absolute dollar amount over any given year is not that
great. And really, I believe, we're dealing with what
is a local problem, a problem to be handled within the
State.

When you create a State agency, such as Pennsylvania
General State Authority or any of these others, you are
taking the financing to what we call the general market.
There are local markets for municipals and there are
general markets for municipals. General markets are
generally - what we call general market bonds are
generally bought across the country by various banks and
institutions, usually your larger banks and ins titutions.
And I somehow doubt that there would be enough of a
volume of these types of issues that we're discussing

in order to generate the need for something that would be
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of a size to be general market, because here we're
talking about issues of $50 million and $100 million

at a clip; we're not talking about five, ten or fifteen
million dollars. Don't misunderstand me, that's a lot
of money too, but I believe it can be raised locally.

Most of your school district bonds in New Jersey
are sold within the State. Most of your BA bonds,
school district or non-school district, are sold within
the State. They are sold to individuals. They are sold
to local banks. And these individuals and banks have
been able, up until now, to absorb virtually all of the
bonds that have come to issue.

On the negative side of the coin, as far as a
state bond bank is concerned, in the two states that we
call neighbors, New York and Pennsylvania, they have set
up state agencies to do additional financing which they
did not want to do directly.

There are not too many people in the industry
that would disagree with me when I say that I feel this
has definitely hurt the credit of the state as far as
selling their own general obligation bonds.

When you have something like the New York State
Housing Finance Agency, which is generally cansidered to
be a moral obligation of the State, and we are talking
basically about an agency which I believe would be con=-
sidered along the same line, it does have an effect on
the way bond underwriters look at the total outstanding
debt of the State of New York, and it would have an
effect, albeit since this would probkably be relatively
small, a small effect on the State of New Jersey,

The State of New Jersey, I think, has same very
pressing needs. It's a fast-growing state. And many of
these things will probably be able to be done best on the
State level, which will entail State financing. I think
the cost of having the rating of the State of New Jersey

reduced would be more than the value to be derived from it
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in reducing the interest rate to be paid by 60-odd
different municipalities in the State, on a net basis,
I have not looked at the figures. I'm just thinking of
it in general terms and, of course, the necessary
administrative costs of having the agency.

The other possibility that occurs to me, with
having a fund which would absorb the new bonds of these
smaller municipalities, is there might possibly be a loss
of foresight on the part of some of these small municipal-
ities as to what there "needs" are. And there might be
some financing done because of the increased ease of
financing which might not be in the best long-term
interest of the municipality.

We have, over the past several years, been
financing not only roads and schools but swimming pools,
golf courses, and various other recreational facilities
in municipalities. There is a demand for it. But when
you look at same of the other problems that we have,
where monies can be spent in this State and throughout
the country, I personally sometimes wonder whether or not
using the borrowing capability of state and local
governments for these purposes is in the long-term best
interests of the community.

Now, let me skip on to some discussion that we
had about sewerage authorities and municipal utility
authorities.

One of the big problems that we have, as far as
having new sewerage authorities, of which there is a
great need in this State for them, is that there is a
time lag between the time that the bonds are issued and
the authority is functioning. This generally runs two
to three years. Now during that period of time the
sewerage authority must pay interest, in addition to which,
until the authority is running at such a level that it is
a self-supporting entity, it may range anywhere from five
to ten to fifteen years. As a result, when we in the
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industry go to market these various bonds all that the
buyer, the insurance company or the bank or the trust
department, has to go on, if it is a straight revenue
bond, are the engineering projections. Certainly there
are laws per taining to how much of a rate you must charge,
etc., However, the ultimate investor basically has to go
on engineering projections. And there is a significant
difference, in our experience, between having a mﬁnicipal
utility authority or a sewerage authority with some kind
of a service contract with a municipality which, in effect,
guarantees the bond, and just having a straight sewerage
revenue bond, a significant difference in the rate that
the authority must pay.

Just as an aside, if my memory serves me correctly,
the laws pertaining to municipalities, utility authorities
and municipalities and between sewerage authorities and
municipalities are somewhat different. I don't know
whether this is an error of omission or whether it was
intended to be written this way. But it does make it very,
very difficult for a municipal.utility authority, under
the present law, to have an unlimited service agreement,
in other words, a service agreement which will back the
sewerage authority, where the municipality will back the
sewerage authority to an unlimited degree. However, -
pardon me, that would be a municipal utility authority.

In sewerage authorities these agreements are perfectly fine.

One other comment about these various new
authorities which are being set up to solve the sewerage
problem, etc.

Many of these sewerage authorities, parking
authorities, various other types of revenue or quasi
revenue bonds that we have in the state are sold primarily
to institutional purchasers throughout the country. The
reason for this is that they are generally considered to
be more risky and they are generally considered to have a
higher rate of return, or they generally do have a higher
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rate of return. And it takes a more sophisticated investor
to look at them and understand them. Also, most of them
are of fairly long duration to maturity. Your local bank
and your individual investocr generaliy tends to favor a
shorter term okligation rather than 30 or 40 years to
maturity.

As a result, these bonds are general market bonds
in the sense that they are solid all across the United
States, not just here in New Jersey or in the surrounding
area. And the value, in terms of selling these bonds, of
having same kind of a service agreement with the municipality
where there is a backing, when you're talking to a man, in
let's say the State of Illinois, should be quite obvious.

Thank you.

MR. MAGOVERN: Thank you very much.,

Does any member of the Committee have any questions?

MR. MOAK: I wanted to ask a guestion on that
matter that you're emphasizing. Let's take a municipality
which on the one hand would have $10 million of G.O. debt
outstanding, up to its limit, we'll say. If that's its
limit, it has that committed. Then it comes along with
$5 million of sewer authority bonds. Now, if you extend
the G.O. pledge, in effect, to that, through contracts or
otherwise, how much are you downgrading the value of the
G.0. bond?

MR. ROCHLIN: Most of the service agreements that
I have seen, and this is not all of them by any means,
do not extend a G.O. backing per se; what they do is they
state that they will make up any and all deficiency in
revenues that the sewerage authority does have at any
given time.

MR. MOAK: Even if it's not a G.0., even if it's a
commitment, it's nevertheless a financial commitment that
is bound to have some effect upon the credit of the man
who makes the commitment, A man who has no commitment versus

a man who has a contingent commitment is in a different
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positione.

MR. ROCHLIN: We have found, as dealers in bonds,
that the effect has been relatively insignificant. The
reason. for this is that most muninicipal utility authorities
and sewerage authorities are set up to be self-liquidating.
In my expereince, the effect of the back-up commitment, as
it were, on the over-all credit of the municipality has been
slight, at worst.

MR. MOAK: Even if they have signed a note which
could, under any adverse circumstances, equal 50% of that
G.0.P.?

MR. ROCHLIN: You are presuming, in your question,
an entire default on the part of the system. I don't
that that is realistic because if there was not a need
for the system persumably it would not have been formed.

So they are going to have some revenues. And not only that,
our laws in the State require that sufficient rates be
charged in order to cover the various expenses. In addition
to this, most of the sewerage authorities and municipal
utility authorities that I have seen, in the trust
indenture require rates to be charged at a rate in excess
of one times coverage for additional protection, in this
case of both the municipality, who is in effect under-
writing the debt, indirectly, and the bondholder. And
these are some of the reasons why I say in our experience
there has been very, very slight, if any, effect upon the
rate received by the municipality as a whole.

MR. MAGOVERN: Are there any further questions?

Thank you very much, Mr. Rochlin.

We have a gentleman from Fidelity Union Trust
Company who wants to file a statement.

WALTER H. S TOL LY I do not have any formal
statement to make, not having heard about this until late
Friday afternoon, but there were several comments made

this morning that I would like to comment upon myself.
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First of all, as you will recall, the question
came up about Jefferson Township. I am not a lawyer. I
was asked in the Bank to interpret Assembly Bill No. 938 -
this is the one that has to do with the dual bond issue of
Jefferson Township. And in making up my statement for
the Bank, I did clear this with a well known bonding firm
in New York City which agreed that it was substantially
correct.

I will read that to you so you will know what it
includes: "An Act known as Assembly Bill 938 was adopted
amending New Jersey Statutes, P. L. 1968, Chapter 177.
This Act provides that a sum not in excess of $90 million
can be used to assist school districts not able to provide
necessary facilities under 18A:33-1. This will be
allocated on the basis of not exceeding $25.00 per student
enrolled on September 30, 1968, provided same is approved
by the State Board of Education, the Commissioner of
Education, the State Treasurer and the Local Finance
Board. If a resolution of the State Board of Education
was adopted prior to April 1, 1970, determining the
allocation of State School Building Aid, it will be
construed to be a reference to resident enrollment on
September 30, 1968. If the local school board applying
for aid had adopted a resolution and/or ordinance becoming
effective prior to January 1, 1968, it will not obtain
the benefit of this Act. The amount of allocation under
this Act shall be used only for the payment of debt
service, principal and interest. If permanent bonds were
issued under this Act prior to January 13, 1970, they
would not qualify. "

"In my opinion, any bonds issued under this Act
should get a better rating, but that depends on the
services.”

That, I hope, will clarify the dual situation
insofar as Jefferson Township is concerned.

Now, some other questions were brought up about
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short-term financing ==

MR. MILLER: May I ask, before you go on, did
you read the notice of sale in this particular issue and
come to the conclusion that it didn't indicate the
support that it had?

MR. STOLL: At the time - we bid on the Jefferson
bonds,by the way. In our own particular syndicate meeting,
in the absence of another rating, we had no other choice
but to bid the same rate as we did for the other bonds,
although‘intrinsically we felt they were worth more,

MR. MILLER: And only because of Moody's rating =«

MR. STOLL: That's right. If Moody had changed
the rating, then it would have made a big difference.

MR. MILLER: Suppose they rated them much too high?

MR. STOLL: Moody kept it the same, they didn't
change the rating. We have since, incidentally, sent
copies of this to Moody and we are hoping they will take
some action on it, but at the moment we have heard nothing
favorable as yet.

MR. MILLER: Is Moody's responsible for mistakes?

MR. STOLL: Pardon?

MR. MILLER: 1In your view, is Moody's responsible
if they give you a rating and you follow it and then it
turns out to be a bad bond, do you hold Moody's
responsible?

MR. STOLL: No. We cannct hcld - after all,

Moody puts a rating on the bond and we can't hold them
responsible. We can put our own interpretation ==

MR. MILLER: Would you hold the municipality
responsible for Moody's error?

MR. STOLL: No, we don't hold a municipality
responsible. We can put our own interpretation on this
but when we underwrite bonds we have to be careful that
we serve the wants of the investing public.

MR. MILLER: I guess, because the label that's

on it, you can't ==
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MR. STOLL: Well, we can think it's an A and
Moody can put a BAA on it. We can tell the customer
that but nine times out of ten a customer says, "Well,

I still want an A bond.” If Moody puts an A on it, he
wants the Moody rating.

MR. MILLER: It's a label.

MR. STOLL: So, nc matter what we think, it doesn't
always count.

Now on the question of short-=term bond anticipatio
notes, I feel that there shouldn't be any ceiling rate as
to limit on interest rate. I do feel this, however, that
when the bond anticipation note is issued for one year
and it's renewed then at least one year's downpayment
should be put in the following year's budget for each
they extend it beyond that. For example, if a municipality
plans to issue a million dollars worth of bonds over
20 years, theoretically they would be paying off $50,000
a year. Now, if they were to issue bond anticipation notes
for the first year, the second year I think they should
pay off $50,000 in the general budget and borrow $950,000;
and the third year, put another $50,000 in and borrow
$900,000 until the time runs out.

Now the other question came about the New Jersey
Finance Agency. I went through the bill and there were
several - I think that's known as Senate No. 858. On
page 9, line 53, paragraph (e) - it says: "Bonds or notes
of the agency may be sold at public or private sale at
such price or prices as the agency shall determine."”

I think that's a little dangerous. I think it leaves itself
open for corruption or graft or bribery, perhaps, by
having a private sale.

On page 15, line 1, paragraph 15: “The agency
shall have power to purchase bonds or notes of the
agency out of any funds or money of the agency available

therefor.” It doesn't tell how. I'm thinking now back
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20 or 30 years ago when we had the scandals in Trenton.

Page 17 = I think this is important = line 24,
paragraph (c) "To the extent that the State Treasurer
shall be the custodian at any time of any funds or moneys
due or payable to a governmental unit at any time sub-
sequent to written notice to the State Treasurer from the
agency to the effect that such governmental unit has not
paid or is in default as to the payment of principal of cr
interest on any municipal bonds of such governméntal unit
then held or owned by the agency, the State Treasurer may
withhold the payment of such funds or money from such
governmental unit until the amount of such principal or
interest then due and unpaid has been paid to the agency.”

My question is, why should the New Jersey Finance
Agency have a priority over a general obligation bond
that might be in default, that the State Treasurer would
withhold funds to pay just the state agency and not the
other holders of obligations?

On page 20, line 1, paragraph 28. In essence,
that whole paragraph bypasses every statute on the boocks
for limiting rates of interest or cost to maturity or
other factors. In other words, they can do no wrong.

Page 23, line 9, paragraph 36: “All municipal bonds
at any time purchased, held or owned by the agency shall
upon delivery to the agency be accompanied by all
documentation customary in the municipal bond market,
including approving bond opinion.” I think that should
be spelled out, either local or recognized New York
municipal bond attorneys. There is a big difference.

A lot of investors will not buy a bond issue where you
have a local opinion. I've even had cases in the past
where we've had issues turned down when Arthur Vanderbilt,
who was formerly President of the American Bar Association,
had his own law firm in New Jersey and had bond issues
turned down because it was not a recognized New York

municipal bond firm.
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My last point = & question came up about the
possible deterioration of credit of the State of New
Jersey. I refer to Mocdy's Bond Survey of March 11,

1968, in commenting on the State of Pennsylvania:

"The Authority was originaliy conceived to
finance predominantly rural districts lacking reccgnized
credit stature. However, iike many bureauracies, the
Agency has expanded its activities and now competes with
underwriters in negotiating loans to any school authority
borrowers.” It goes on for another two pages and they
finally end up by saying: “In view of the continuing
diminution of state credit occasioned by a spiraling
indebtedness with no prospect of a near term reversal
in the trend, the general obligations of the
Commonwealth are now rated A.” They were dropped.

The State of New York had a similar situation in
1964 where Moody's said: "In reviewing the over-all
picture and giving due credence to the preferred position
of the State's direct debt, it is our opinion that general
obligation debt now properly falls in the high grade
rather than prime gquality category. Effective today,
our rating on the State's general obligation has been
reduced to double A.,"

I can see the same problem happening in New Jersey.
We still have quite a few of the $900 million, believe it
or not. I don't like to see bond issues. It costs money to
borrow. By the time that $900 million is paid off, it will
have cost the State pretty close to a billion and a half
when you add almost $600 million for interest charges.

Thank you very much.

MR. MAGOVERN: Are there any questions by the
Committee?

MR. MILLER: Mr. Stoll, may I ask you just one
question. In this change of rating, do you have any way
of knowing what the actual cost to the Commonwealth of

Pennsylvania was, or to the State of New York, as a result
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of the change?

MR. STOLL: I will have to go back to those
specific years, which I did not check, but I will say
this, that in today's market = and, incidentally, a lot
of these problems that came up in connection with the
bank bill was when we had a tight money policy. You
know, a lot of that has changed. Conditions have changed,
money is easing. I would say that if the State of New
Jersey - well, we had difficulty selling $75 millicn
here back in early October at a 6% level. I think they
sold at 5.99.

MR. MILLER: That's a better rated bond ==

MR. STOLL: That's a triple A rating. I think
if they had a double A at the time, they wouldn't even
have been able to negotiate, under our present ceiling.

MR. MILLER: I don't know whether there have been
any recent issues of Pennsylvania or New York State bonds,
but would they sell at any different price =--

MR. STOLL: They had same recently, although,
frankly, I've been out of touch with the market for
three weeks, I just got back from Mexico.

MR. MILLER: Lucky you.

MR. STOLL: I didn't see a newspaper, radio or
television, or anything.

MR. MILLER: Well, would you happen to know
whether there is any difference in the price at which
they sell new issues now, as compared with New Jersey?

MR. STOLL: Well, I would say, if the State of
New Jersey sold bonds today -~ there, again, you have to
go by the maturity schedule. If it's a long-term
bond issue ==

MR. MILLER: Under the same maturities.

MR. STOLL: Say the average?

MR. MILLER: Yes.

MR. STOLL: I think they could pretty nearly do
5.75 or 5.80 in today's market.
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MR. MILLER: And what could the Commonwealth of
Pennsylvania or the State of New York do?

MR. STOLL: 6.25. That's Pennsylvania.

MR. MILLER: This is attributable to the difference
in the rating?

MR. STOLL: The State of New York would be nearer
New Jersey prices, because New York dces have a certain
preference with all the money in the New York State banks.

MR. MILLER: Pennsylvania, however, you would
account for that by the difference in the rating?

MR. STOLL: Well, sometimes ratings make a difference
and sometimes they don't. Most often, - for example, the
State of West Virginia has a single A rating, and sametimes
they sell at double A prices because there's a scarcity.
But, believe me, there will be no scarcity of New Jersey
bonds. 1I'll say this, I think the State of New Jersey's
investment .banking fraternity has done a wonderful job.
When you realize in the period fram September 15th to
October 30th they had tc handle close to $100 million to
$150 million worth of state, county, municipality, and
school district bond issues. That's a lot of underwfiting.

One other thought. On the question that came up
here about the various interest rates as against a single
rate. I don't thing there is anything in the present
statutes that prohibits a municipality from issuing bonds
under various interest rates. I know Hoboken has done it
a couple of times. But, by and large, you've got to bear
this in mind, when you're asking for different rates,
sometimes you might get a 12% coupon on that the first two
or three years, and maybe a tenth of 1% on the last year.
And the poor politician who is in office when he gets
the 12% interest charge to pay for the first year gets
awful mad. So, unless there are certain limitations on
coupon rates that can be issued, I'd say stick with the
present system which has worked very well.

MR. MILLER: Speaking of that, do you see any
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great advantage or disadvantage of present statutory
provisions with respect to selling at a discount, issuing
at a discount?

MR. STOLL: Advantage in what?

MR. MILLER: Selling at a discount.

MR. STOLL: There is no advantage in selling at
a discount because the discount is subject to capital
gains taxes.

MR. MOAK: Is there an advantage in terms of the
issuer? You have the option of the issuer selling at
par, the syndicate having to put high coupons on the first
few maturities in order to pick up its profit, forgetting
about the deep discounts --

MR. STOLL: I'll put it to you this way.

MR. MOAK: Wait till I finish. You have the
option of selling at par with say an 8% coupon on the
first six maturities in order to develop your profit,
therefore, they have to be reoffered at premium; versus
selling at a discount equal to the profit which the
syndicate hopes to develop. As between those two alterna-
tives, do you see any advantage one way or the other?

MR, STOLL: Basically, I don't think there is
much difference. If you were to take one serial bond
issue, say running out in 20 years, and you put a single
coupon on it - let's assume you come up with a 6.70
yield or a 5.70 coupon - and you take a multiple coupon,
a various coupon arrangement, you might come up to 5.69.
Is that .01 worth the difference? It can be for
sharpening the pencil, that's all.

MR. MOAK: Thank you.

MR. MAGOVERN: Thank you very much, Mr. Stoll.

MR. STOLL: Thank you.

MR. MAGOVERN: We have one clarification, for
purposes of the record. Please identify yourself, for
the record.

JOSEPH F. HUGHE S: Joseph F. Hughes,
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Finance Director of the Township of Edison.

Speaking about the bond attorney's fees, I
may have given the impression that I thought that each
time bond anticipation notes are issued the original
bond attorney's fees doubled, tripled or quadrupled.
I didn't mean that. I meant that we are exposed to
additional charges each time we issue bond anticipation
notes prior to issuing the permanent bond itself. It's
not necessarily doubling, tripling and gquadrupling.

MR. MAGOVERN: Thank you very much.

Gentlemen, there are two things I regret - one,
I regret having kept you so long but we felt we were
coming close to the end of this hearing and decided
that we would run through until it was over, rather than
coming back; and, more importantly, the Committee regrets
that there was some mixup in the mailing of notices
and the giving of adequate advance notice of this hearing.

We will keep the record open for the purpose of
receiving any statements which anyone wishes to file. If
it appears, after reviewing the record, or if we get
requests for an additional adjourned hearing, we will
reschedule a hearing. Although that would be a matter
of attempting to determine how extensive such a hearing
would be or what it would accomplish.

Thank you all very much. We appreciate your
help.

* * % % %
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SUBMITTED BY TRISTAM B. JOHNSON, Management Advisory Board,
Hornblower & Weeks - Hemphill, Noyes

Gentlemen:

Those of you who are familiar with New Jersey Revenue Pinancing are aware that
such financing is accomplished by means of Authorities created for that purpose.
As my subject has to do with sewer and/or water revenue financing, I shall con=-
fine my comments to that particular type of Authority. Under the Sewerage
Authorities Law, Chapter 138, Laws of New Jersey 1946, amended, it is evident
that sewer authorities in New Jersey have greater financial protection in respect

to revenue security than do their parent municipality.

Tax bonds of counties or municipalities in New Jersey, for which unlimited ad
valorem taxes are pledged, have steadilf risen in recent years in their standing
in municipal market and are today rated among the best municipal credits in the
United States. However, there are,certain additional legal rights and remedies
authorized by the Act under which Authority bonds are issued which, in many
respects, make such bonds an even better security than such ad valorem tax
bonds. The reason for the uhusual legal security and remedies of such Authority
bonds are as follows:

1. THE BONDHOLDER'S SECURITY IS GREATER THAN THE SECURITY FOR MOST AD VALOREM

TAX BONDS.

The Act provides nourced and means for assuring the payment of debt service on sewer
revenue bonds which give the holder of sewer revenue bonds a maximm of legal se-~
curity, as follows: The Act provides in Section 8 that service charges must be
collected for the use of the sewer system which must c;mply with any contract with
bondholders, and 'will at all times be adequate to pay all expenses of operation |
and maintenance of the sewerage system, including reserves, insurance, extensions,

and replacementl.'nnd to pay punctually the
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principal of and interest on any bonds amd to maiw:zids such reserves or sinking funds
therefor as may be required by the terms of ary centract of the sewerage authority or

as may be deemed necessary or desirable by the cewerage zuthority.

These service charges constitute the basic source of payment of debt service on sewer
revenue bonds, and the mandatory duty of the Authority to fix and collect sufficient
charges for all debt service and reserves, in addition to expenses of operation and
maintenance and other required payments, assures the holder of sewer revenue bonds of
adequate revenues for the payment of such bonds, as any bondholder can compel the
Authority, by legal proceedings, to raise such service charges, whenever necessary to
the required extent, to comply with all debt service, reserve and other payments re-
quired by the bond resolution, trust indenture or other procgedings which authorized

the issuance of the sewer revenue bonds (hereinafter referred to as '"bond proceedings").

The quality of the security of service charges should be apparent to any investor in
public securities, and was amply demonstrated during the economic difficulties of the
1930's. In that period, tax bonds of many municipalities in New Jersey and other

states defaulted in payment of debt service on tax bonds for varying times, due to

the low percentage of tax collections and the inevitable necessity of using available
tax receipts for the continuance of essential governmental operations and services with-

out which such municipalities could not have continued to exist.

Service charges during the same period, however, for municipally owned essential
public utilities such as water, electric and sewer systems, were collected in many
defaulting municipalities at a much higher percentage than real estate taxes. This
higher percentage of collections was due to the very nature of the services of essen~-
tial utilities without which people cannot exist in modern municipalities, and: the
effective remedies for quick collection service charges. The true test of the value
of a security, as far as prompt payment of debt service charges is concerned, is its
collectability in periods of depression as well as in periods~of prosperity. In many

instances in the 1930's municipalities defaulted in payment of tax bonds but not in



payment of bonds payable from the revenues of essential municipal utilities,

(b) LIEN FOR SERVICE CHARGES ON LANDS SERVED BY THE SEWER SYSTEM.

In addition to the security of service charges,

. C . - the holder of sewer revenue bonds has the
additional security of all the lands served by the Authority in its area of operationm,
which in New Jersey is usually the same as the area of the municipality or munici-

palities creating the Authority.

"~ Under the Act the sewer service charges are a lien upon the lands served if not paid
as and when due, which lien is superior and paramount to the interest in such land

of any owner, lessee, tenant, mortgagee, or other person excépt the lien of municipal
taxes and is on a parity with and deemed equal to the lien on such lands of the
municipality where such lands are situated for taxes thereon due in the same year

and not paid when due, in the manner provided in Section 21 of the Act.

Most tax bonds, in the final analysis, are secured only by thg lien of the ad valorem
taxes levied for the payment of such tax bqnda on the lands of the municipality and
the mandatory obligation of the municipality to levy And collect such ad valorem
taxes without limit as to rate or apbunt. As sewer revenue bonds are, in most

cases, payable from service charges on substantially the samellands on which ad
valorem taxes for the payment of tax bonds must be levied; the holder of a sewer
revenue bond has, for all ?racticable purposes, the same security of the value of the

lands in the area served as the holder of a tax bond.

‘Since the holders of sewer revenue ﬁonda have substantially the same security on

the lands in the area served as the holders of tax bonds, and the additional security
of mandatory and legally enforceable service charges adequgte for payment of the
sewer revenue bonds, the security of the holders of such ;éwar revenue bonds is

. grester thac cthe security of the héﬁd@ra of most tax bonds.
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(c) Sewer revenues are segvegated frust fonde
Under Section 16 cof the Act 2nd the bond nvoeesdines 11 funds of the gever syatem
are trust funds, and the holders of sewver rvevenua bonde have 2 llen on suchi funds until
applied in the manner provided in the Act and bond procéedlngs. This, in effect, means
that all revenues of the Authority are segregated trust funds which cannot be used
for any general purposes of the municipality, but wust be usged by the Authority only in
the manner provided in the Act and the bond proceedings which authorized the issuance
of the sewer revenue bonds,
Bonds payable from ad valorem taxes, except for a fe& exceptions, do not have any
specific lien on any funds of the municipality, nor is the municipality required to segreg:
its tax revenues for the payment of such bonds. Consequently, if the tax collections
are insufficient to provide for all the purposes for which the taxes were levied, there
is no legal assurance that the holder of an ad valorem tax bond will receive full pay-
ment of his principal or interest, as a muncipality must fulfill its essential services and
functions in order to continue its existence.
If the sewer revenues collected are insufficient for payment of all costs of operation
and maintencance, debt service on sewer revenue bonds and other payments required bythe
bond proceedings, it is true that the bondholder might not receive payment of all his"
principal and interest.punctually. In such event, however, the holders of competent
jurisdiction, require the rates of sewer service charges to be raised sufficiently to
provide for all operating and maintenance costs, debt service, reserves and other pay~
ments provided for in the bond proceedings, including any deficiencies for prior
payments. Since the Authority will, ir practically all cases, have a substantial
monopoly on an essential public utility, the mandatory obligatiqn of the Authority,
both under the act and the bond proceedings, to raise its rates for sewer services to
whatever extent may be necessary to comply with the Act and bond proceedings, is, in
most cases, a more effective security than is generally available to the holders of

tax bonds.
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(d) Reserve Funds.
The Act authorizes the Authority to covenant and agree with the holders of sewer
revenue bonds to provide for rates sufficient to include reserves for debt service
as well as maturing payments of principal and interest, which covenants may be enforced

by any holdr of such sewer revenue bonds. It is customary in the bond proceedings

authorizing the issuance of sewer revenue bonds to provide for an adequate reserve fund

for debt service.

If the issue of sewer revenue bonds is soundly conceived in its inception, the reserve
fund will enable the sewer system to overcome temporary economic difficulties, which is an
important advantage to the bondholder and the Authority, and an additional security

for the holder of a sewer revenue bond.

2. THE REMEDIES FOR COLLECTION OF SEWER SERVICE CHARGES ARE EFFECTIVE AND QUICKLY

ENFORCEABLE.

The Act provides quick andieffective remedies for the collection of sewer service
charges and the enforcement of the rights of the holders of sewer revenue bonds which,
in many cases, are not available to the holders of other municipal bonds. These

collection and enforcement remedies are substantially discontinuance of sewer

- gervices.

(a) The Lien of sewer.service charges is more quickly enforceable than the lien
of ad valorem taxes. |
Section 21 of the Act provides that the lien of sewer service charges on the premises
served may be foreclosed or otherwise enforced by the Authority by action or suit in
equity as for the foreclosure of a mortgage on real property.
A mortgage on real property in New Jersey can be foreclosed in a much quicker period
of time than such real property can be foreclosed for the lien of ad valorem taxes.
The lien on real estate for ad valorem taxes cannot be foreclosed as a general rule until
the year after such taxes become delinqunnc. wvhereas the lien on real estate for

delinquent sewer service charges can be foreclosed under the Act as soon as such

P A e e

charges become delinquent.
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(b) The right to appointment of a receiver of the sewer system.
Not only can the holder of a sewer revenue bond enforce any of the provisions of the Act
or of the bond proceedings in any court of competent jurisdiction, but such holder,for any
defaults in payment of principal or interest on his bond, or in compliance by the Author-
ity with its covenants in the bond proceedings, is entitled, under Section 18 of the Act, as
of right to the appointment of a receiver of the sewer syatem by a court of competent jur-
isdiction to operate the sewer system under the supervision of such court until all such
defaults have been cured and made good and such right is cumulative as to subsequently
recurring defaults.
This right is an important remedy for the holder of a sewer revenue bond. Not only can
-the Authority be compelled to charge sufficient sewer rates to pay the sewer revenue
bonds and comply with the bond proceedings, but the possession and control of the "
sewer system itself can be taken away from the Authority and operated under the
terms of the bond proceedings by the courts, thus further insuring compliance by
the Authority at all times with the bond proceedings.
The value of this remedy is often not recognizediby investors in municipal bonds. ,
If the sewer system is an economic failure it is true that a receivership will not \\;
be of much benefit as obviously a receiver cannot collect exhorbitant sewer service chatgeé
any more than the Authority itself. However, since sewer services do constitute an
essential public servicd, and experience has demonstrated that most public sewer
systems in areas with a reasonable density of poéulation are economically successful
enterprises, the power to enforce strict compliance with the Act and all the covenants of

the bond proceedings gives the holder of sewer revenue bonds an extremely valuable remedy.

3. THE SEWER SYSTEM MUST BE OPERATED AS A SEPARATE UTILITY ENTERPRISE.

One of the greatest advantages of a sewer revenue bond, from the standpoint of legal
security, is the requirement of the Act and the bond proceedings that the sewer system
must be operated as a separate utility enterprise, and if the bond proceedings are
propetly prepared, usch enterprise must be conducted upon an efficient business basis,

and is not subject to the same influences which may affect the security of tax bonds.
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The holders of tax bénds have little control over the general activities of the
municipality which issued them. Such municipality may also levy taxes for any other
purpose without limitation, may issue additional tax bonds in amounts permitted by
law, may have wgeeeful budget practices and inefficient administration, and may embark
upon new and unnecessary projects or purposes, all of which may affect and dilute the
security of the holdér of such taxbonds.

Since the sewer system under the Act is a separate utility enterprise conducted on a
business basis, and the method of operation and application of revenues and the rights
and remedies of the holders of sewer revenue bonds are fixed by the Act and bond
proceedings and can be enforced by such bondholders, the source of their security
cannot be impaired of diluted by the general acts or activities in the municipality
served by the Authority to-the same exte;t which is possible in the case of tax bonds.

4. COVENANT OF THE STATE OF NEW JERSEY

Not only does the Act provide for legally binding and enforceable covenants of the

Authority, but also contains a covenant of the State of New Jersey itself reading

" a8 follows:

"Pledge of State to bondholders:
The State of New Jersey does hereby pledge to and covenant and agree with the holders
of any bonds issued pursuant to a bond resolution of a sewerage authority that the
State will not authorize or permit the congtruction or maintenance of any system of
sewers or sewage disposal plants which will be competitive with the sewerage system
‘of the sewerage authority, and will not limit.o:VQlter the rights hereby vested in
the sewerage authority to acquire, construct, maiﬁtain} reconstruct and operate its

sewerage system, and to fix, eatabli@h, charge and coilect its service charges and

E
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to fulfill the terms of any ag:éement}gadg\giﬁh ;q; hpldérs,of such bonds or other

. obligations and will not in any way impair Ehc'riﬁh;s éf remeQies of such holders,
and will not modify in any way the exemptions from taxation pro#ided for in this act,
until the bonds, together with 1n:cf00t thereon, with interest on any unpiid
installments of interest and all cqstn‘and,cxﬁenoec iq,éonpection with any action
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'whereby the m

or proceedings by or on behalf of such holders are yuily met and discharged."

Much of the above was supplied in an opinion writter by John Trimble of Caldwell,
Marshal, Trimble and Mitchell, now Mudge, Rose Guthrie & Alexander, in 1957 and who
has given me his permission to use excerpts from that opinion, and I here and now
express my appreciation.

Since then many authorities have entered into various types of Service Contracts which,

in varying degrees, act as an agreement between the Authority and its parent municipality,

unicipality agrees that for services rendered, it will guarantee anywhere
from the required reserves of the Authority, under the Trust Indenture up to and including
a guarantee of the bonds themsélves, by means of taxation. This is genmerally accepted

as the most secure obligation. However, I question whether it is even necessary.

This is the crux of my argument. If , as the Authority Act states, the authorities have
even greater recourse than does the municipality, why should a service contract be
necessary.at all. Unless, of course, it is viewed merely as a reaffirmation by the

municipality of intent which was made by it when it created the authority in the

first place.

This same argument is, however, not necessarily true in the case of
Regional Sewer Authorities. Here we have a different animal in that is is created
solely as a treatment unit and can only construct trunk lines for collection
purposes to the municipal boundary line. If the R. S. A. constructs internal
- collection lines, it does so only on a contributory basis via a contract as a
participant in the cost not only of the internal lines and outfall lines but
also of the trunk line and treatment plant as well., If an Authority is
created on the basis of contribution, I would think it only differs
with a municipal unit in size and scope but not in operation or iesources.'
If, on the other hand, an R. S. A. 18 created on a customer basis; it has no recourse

or legal position, I would think, except via a contract.
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I believe that, in this day and age, it is inconceivable that a populace can long
endure without public sewer service and the effective treatment thereof. This
fact is well recognized by every public agency involved in pollution control and
abatement. It is because of this recognition and because of the arguments pre«
sented here that I believe that Authorities in New Jersey and, per haps in the
nation, should be rated in a manner separate and distinct from the method em-
ployed in rating general tax obligations. I would appreciate your comments in
writing, if possible, whether pro or con, in order to prepare a paper for

submission to the rating service.
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SUBMITTED BY JOHN K. PFEIFFER, Standard & Yoor

FACTS AND CONSIDERATIONS IN BOND RKATLNGS

Remarks prepared by John K. Pfeiffer for presentation before the
County and Municipal Bond Rating Seminar sponsored by the North Carolina
Local Government Commission and the Institute cf Government at Chapel
Hill on Friday, Dec. 19, 1969.

Standard & Poor's municipal bond ratings are "quality ratings" as
opposed to "market ratings". A quality rating is not a recommendation
to buy or sell; it is a comparative rating which attempts to measure
the relative investment quality of one municipal obligation to another.
It is not merely a measure of safety of interest or principal. If it
were, then municipal bonds would be rated yes or no: default likely or
unlikely. The function of ratings, therefore, is to attempt to provide
the investor with a distinction between the quality of the credits
available to him for investment.

One of the basic requirements for investments by banks, for ex-
ample, is that of marketability and liquidity. Bonds with certain qual-
ity ratings are considered readily marketable, and principally for that
reason, bonds with these ratings are not gquestioned by bank examiners
as to marketability and book value. With the passage of time, ratings
began to be used for the purpose of appraising relative investment qual-
ity by investors, underwriters and dealers as well as by personnel of
government agencies such as the Controller of the Currency and the FDIC.
I respectfully submit that these ratings have obviously established some
enduring merit, or they would never have enjoyed the use to which they
have been put and the respect which has been accorded them.

. The issue of the adequacy of the municipal bond rating systems

used by the major rating services has not been questioned for most of
the twenty years during which the Standard and Poor's Corporation has
been grading municipal credit. But over the past years of rising in-
terest rates the issue was spotlighted, to the tune of two congressional
hearings and the introduction of bills (by Representative Patman and
Senator Proxmire) which, by producing a Federal Guarantee on State and
Local Government Debt, would have effectively ,eliminated the need for a
rating system. It seems appropriate, and timely, to review the factors
behind the rising interest in this subject. There would seem to be two:

1. Interest costs of local governments will
soar over the next decade because of vest
public facility needs. Also in areas where
needs are greatest (the coke cities), credit
ratings are in many cases low.

2. Ratings are determined subjectively and con-
sistently at best, but in any case the exact
methods or rationale used in evaluating a
government's credit standing are not always
articulated. Rating has been an art, not a

science.
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Three basic questions can be raised: (a) What is the evidence
that ratings determine interest cost differentials, (b) What are the
expectations for rapid increases in state-local interest costs and
(c) What are some of the innovations that make up the new look in
Standard & Poor's municipal ratings?

Underwriters will quite correctly tell you that the difference in
interest cost between a bond rated AAA and BBB can be tremendous. I
didn't - and they won't - say it is all due to rating, but they will
say there is a fantastic spread. It can immediately be proven that it
is not all due to rating. Last month various local public housing
authority bond issues sold, all at the same time. All the issues were
rated AAA because of the Federal backing. However, there was difference
of almost 20 basis points of interest cost between the issues, despite
the uniform AAA rating.

My point is that several factors influence interest cost; rating,
volume, secondary market supply, buyer acceptance, the underwriters'
liking for the bond and their anticipated results of distributing it,
and so on.

Assuming that quality ratings do determine some amount of dif-
ferential in interest costs, the rating methods take on a significance
for the Federal government for two reasons. First, because of projec-
tions of unprecedented expansion of state and local capital plants, and
because of the major role the Federal government will play and must play
in financing the improvement of local facilities, interest costs per se
will be a vital concern. Second, because of the Federal committment to
attempt equalization of public service levels, there is a special concern
with the nature of the differential costs imposed by nationally recognized
ratings. Underlying these two basic reasons for Federal concern is the
premium which has necessarily been placed on efficiency in government
operations and which naturally leads to a search for methods to reduce
governmental costs without to a search for methods to reduce govern-
mental costs without affecting the quality of services. Viewed in this
perspective, such a question as "Why is New York City BBB instead of A
or AA?" seems most appropriate.

Total and Per Capita State and Local government debt outstanding
have increased at a rapid rate since 1946, even more rapid than the in-
crease in population. Comparisons of numbers show the 1968 level of
total new debt issued to'be double the 1960 level. Moreover, prospects
are for even more rapid increments as estimates of public facility cap-
ital outlays place the increase between now and 1975 at approximately
100 percent. Under the assumption that long-term borrowing will account
for about 50 percent of annual capital outlays (requirements), total
new debt issued is ‘expected to rise from the 1968 level of $16.3 billion
to $22.7 billion in 1975. Then total debt outstanding will have grown
from $100 billion at the end of 1965 and $113 billion at the end of
1968 to almost $200 billion at the end of 1975.
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While the volume of debt outstanding ds ihes the overall level
and burden of debt, an examination of n
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the wr and pattern of interest
costs gives a general picture of the drain on the current budget. Two
factors may contribute to the greater claim of interest cost on local
budgets. The first 1s the rising levei of debt described above. The
first is the rising level of debt described above. The second is the
generally rising level of interest costs that state and local govern-
ments 1n this country have experienced since about 1950. The average
interest rate on bonds in 1950 was 2.0l percent; in 1960, 3.53 percent;
and currently around 6.85%.

a

Compounding the concern with rising capital facility needs is the
possibility that the rating systems induce a "counter-equalizing'" effect
on local government costs, since lower ratings are (and in many cases
should be) assigned to those local governments least able to afford the
higher interest costs. For it must ultimately be agreed credit ratings
reflect different probabilities of default, and default would seem most
probable 1n communities with high and increasing public service needs,
inadequate and declining tax bases, low levels of income, etc. Then
high default probabilities and consequently high interest costs may well
characterize American central cities. Securities of the poorest of the
central cities have the lowest quality ratings and perform poorest in the
market. At least part of the greater level of Federal assistance being
channeled into these urban areas is offset by higher interest costs.

We at Standard & Poor's began recognizing the problems caused by
growth several years ago. We bolstered our municipal rating department
with additional personnel to cope with the increasing demands. But the
shecr volume and complexity of new issues forced us to reappraise dras-
tically our position. Back in 1949 we volunteered to rate municipals;
no one asked us to. The task we volunteered for became huge and to handle
it caused us losses which became unbearable.

These spiraling demands being thrust upon us by the greater munic-
ipal financing activity and the extremely tight municipal analytical
labor market strongly suggested the desirability of change. 1In the
light of the losses whicn we were suffering in the rendering of this
service, we felt compelled to make a basic modification in policy.

On January 24th, 1968, we announced that we would no longer rate
municipal bonds voluntarily but, rather, would assign ratings only upon
request and payment of a fee to reimburse us for the time and expense
required in analyzing the issue, This change was announced in a state-
ment which was given intense national distribution. Since that time,
there have been minor changes in our policy in accordance with sug-
gestions from the Investment Bankers Association and the Municipal
Finance Officers Association.

Our fee basis rating system has accomplished already many things. It
obviously reversed the loss situation and in turn has allowed us to
launch new areas of improved service. We now have resident municipal bond
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analysts - men living in particular areas of the country who gather
information and work on the credits in their areas. More will be

added as qualified people are recruited and placed. We have greatly
enlarged our staff in New York. Perhaps most important, we have vir-
tually completed a research study of our systems and methods and are

now implementing some of these conclusions. The study was conducted
with the assistance of the Maxwell School for Urban Studies at the Uni-
versity of Syracuse along with other representatives from other parts of
the academic and federal government areas. It is virtually completed,
clearly demonstrating "The New Look in Quality Bond Rating."

As a first step in re-evaluating the rating process, Standard and
Poor's rewrote its definition of municipal bond ratings. The reference
to market performance which was contained in the description of ratings
has been dropped and it should be made clear that market factors are not
considered in arriving at a quality rating. Since there are many factors
which enter directly and indirectly into the rating process, and since the
reasons for any given rating should be: publicly available, Standard &
Poor's will make available (a) a summary description of the methods and
measurements generally used in deriving ratings, (b) the important sta-
tistics used in deriving ratings, and (c) an explenation of the reasoning
behind each rating assigned. The purpose of Standard and Poor's munic-
ipal bond rating is to group and rank communities according to the pro-
bability that they will not be able to meet principal repayment and in-
terest obligations. Market considerations are irrelevant to this ob-
jective and therefore are not considered in the determination of Standard
and Poor's quality ratings.

All municipal debt is broken into two general groups - "investment"
grade (AAA to BBB), and "speculative" (BB and below). Since, virtually
all of our ratings fall into the first four grades, I will limit myself
today to the definitions of only these categories.

The four grades reflect estimates of differing probabilities of
default under alternative assumptions about the future. As the approach
~here is consistently pessimistic, we are most concerned with how poorly
the community might do under the worst circumstances and not with how
well it might do under the best circumstances. Our analysis involves
assessment of (a) the expected performance of the local economy in a per-
iod or natidnal decline; (b) the expectations that the local economy will
undergo some kind of local decline apart from national cyclical movements;
and (c) the expected ability of the local government to meet principal
and interest payments under ejither of these circumstances.

There are four grades of probablllty of default, while the post
World War II history of defaults shows the probablllty of actual default
for any to be effectlvely zero. At Standard and Poor's we have had only
one default of a bond issue rated BBB or better, and even this default is

minor and in the process of belng cured.

The following are the definitions of Standard & Poor's rated classes
of "investment" grade securities:
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STANDARD & POOR'S MUNICIPAL BOND RATINGSY

Standard & Poor's Municipal Bond Ratings cover obligations of
all states or sub-divisions. 1In addition to general obliga-
tions, ratings are assigned to bonds payable in whole or in
part from special revenues.

AAA-Prime -- These are obligations of the highest quality.
They have the lowest probability of default. In a period of
economic stress the issuers will suffer the smallest declines
in income and will be least susceptible to autonomous de-
cline. Debt burden is not inordinately high. Revenue struc-
ture appears adequate to meet future expenditure needs.
Quality of management would not appear to endanger repayment
of principal and interest.

AA-High Grade -- The investment characteristics of bonds in
this group are only slightly less marked than those of the
prime quality issues. Bonds rated AA have the second lowest
probability of default. : '

A-Upper Medium Grade - Principal and interest on bonds in this
category are regarded as safe. This rating describes the
third lowest probability of default. It differs from the two
higher ratings because there is some weakness, either in the
local economic base, in debt burden, in the balance between
Hevenues and expenditures, or in quality of management. Under
certain adverse circumstances, any one such weakness might
impair the ability of the issuer to meet debt obligations at
some future date.

BBB-Medium Grade - This is the lowest investment grade secur-
ity rating. Under certain adverse conditions, several of the
above factors could contribute to a higher default probabil-
ity. The difference between A and BBB ratings is that the
latter shows more than one fundamental weakness, whereas the
former shows only one deficiency among the factors considered.

BB-Lower Medium Grade - Bonds in this group have some invest-
ment characteristics, but they no longer predominate. For the
most part this rating indicates a speculative, non-investment

grade obligation.

B-Low Grade - Investment characteristics are virtually non-
existant and default could be imminent.

D-Defaults -- Interest and/or principal in arrears.
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As in all descriptions of the rating process, the basic considera-
tions are, and remain, economic base, debt burden, fiscal management and
revenue-expenditure balance. But there are two differences between this
and the traditional statement of the approach to municipal bond ratings.
First, the specific attributes constituting each of these factors will be
enumerated. Thus, a reference to "economic base" considerations means
specifically industrial diversification, relative employment in durable
goods and tourist-oriented industries, projected growth in local economic
activity, the current and projected growth in population, and (for metro-
politan central cities) population growth relative to that of the larger
metropolitan area.

The second difference between our new approach and the traditional
approach is that the comparative - high, lower, above-average, etc., -
has specific meaning in this procedure. That is, via a computer based
comparative analysis we are able to isolate those communities which have,
e.g., and inordinately high or low debt burden.

Also, there has been developed a more standardized procedure for
the Standard and Poor's analysts to follow in evaluating the credit of a
local government. Procedures have been devised encompassing the same
fact gathering techniques so that all analysts start at the same point,
deviating from the general review only in predetermined methods to the
conclusion of the factual analysis. After combining these data and re-
viewing the bond prospectus, the analyst formulates a rating. He then
submits (a) the standardized comparative data sheet, and (b) a written
summary of the basis for arriving at a given rating. Detailed explanation
is needed primarily to clarify any subjective considerations.

The written report is reviewed by the senior staff and a meeting is
held to accept or reject the conclusions of the analyst. If accepted, a
copy of the report enumerating the specific factors which contribute to
the credit weakness of community is made available to all interested
parties. ’

The use of the standard analysis form markedly increases the consis-
tency within the ratings department and reduces overall subjectivity of
the process.

To accomplish the standard analysis we have developed and con-
tinuously update a data bank for municipal analysis, and a data retrieval
system which makes extensive comparative analysis possible. The systém in-
cludes relevant and detailed data from the Censuses of Population,
Government, Housing, and Business, and is updated annually from the Com-
pendium of City Finances and other more regularly published services.
Perhaps more important, it is used to store all data collected from con-
tracting local governments - since statistics such as overlapping debt,
true valuation of property, and debt repayment schedules are not readily
available elsewhere.

The data received directly from the local government is coded and
kept current.
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These improvements came about because of our awareness that if
ratings are worthwhile, if they are necessary and beneficial to the
smooth conduct of marketing municipal bonds, then the municipal indus-
try deserved the best, the best in analysis, research, independence, and
thought. To do this required effort and money. If something is worth-
while, if it is good and well done, if it has merit, it should cost
something. This is why we felt it imperative to alter our policy and
charge a fee for our services.

khhkkkkhhhhkhhhkhhkhkhhhkhkhhkhhkhhhhhkhhhhhdhhhhhkhhhkhkhkhkhkhhhdhhhhhhrhhhbhhhhkhhhhkk

STANDARD & POOR'S MEMORANDUM RE MUNICIPAL BOND CONTRACT RATINGS AND
INFORMATION REQUIRED FOR BOND RATINGS PURPOSES APPEAR ON THE FOLLOW-

ING PAGES
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% - STANDARD & POOR'S CORPORATION

|
E 345 HUDSON STREET, NEW YORK, N. Y 10014
i

MEMORANDUM RE MUNICIPAL BOND CONTRACT RATINGS

Standard & Poor's Corporation no longer rates municipal bonds
voluntarily, but only upon request and payment of a fee to re-
imburse us for the time and expense required to analvze the iss-
ue. The fee is payable upon completion of the analysis and will
take into account the amount of work necessary to arxrive at the
rating and the anticipated work in keeping the rating under sur-
veillance.

We will maintain continuous rating surveillance on the issue for
an indefinite period or until the next bond sale, at which time
the contract may be renewed by mutual agreement.

The request for contract rating analysis may come from the issuer,
underwriter, consultant, institution, etc.

The party requesting the rating should submit all necessary in-
formation and agrees to supply later or current information on
request. We rely on the person submitting such information for
its accuracy, completeness and substantiation. Standard & Poor's
reserves the right to withdraw from any contract if it feels that
proper and sufficient information is not being received.

S & P reserves the right to advise its own clients and subscrib-
ers of such rating, or to publish the same at any time, in its
publications or otherwise.

It must be understood that in providing such rating S & P nec-
essarily relies on the information then before it and not on any
later information. Further, it must be understood that S & P
cannot guarantee the accuracy or completeness of the information
upon which the rating is based, and that such rating is subject
to change or withdrawal at any time without notice. Parties to
contract ratings should also be aware that S & P reserves the
right to enter into any future contract rating relative to the

same issue or debt.

June 3, 1968
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Q()  STANDARD & POORS CORPORATION

| 345 HUDSON STREET, NEW YORK, N.Y. 10014

JOHN K. PFEIFFER INFORMATION REQUIRED FOR BOND RATING PURPOSES

Assistant Vice President

Gentlemen:

We have received your inquiry regarding the forthcoming sale of

municipal bonds by your unit. We do not require the submission -
of information in any special form, but we would like to receive

the following information for bond rating purposes:

1. Debt statement, including maturities, wi*h bonds segregated
as to security; overlapping debt, which is this unit's share
(on the basis of proportionate valuations) of the debt of over-

lapping taxing units.

2. Assessed valuation for the last four years, segregated as to
realty and personality, and as to industrial, commercial, utili-
ty and residential; basis of assessment.

3. Tax collection statement for four years including amount of
current levy, amcunt collected on that levy in ensuing year, and

amount collected to some recent date. Statement of this unit's
tax rate and the overall tax rate for the past four years.

4. Recent population estimate.
5. Copies of the past two annual reports and the latest budget.

6. List of the ten leading taxpayers with their assessed valua-
tions, including the number of employees for industrial taxpayers.

7. Brief description of the economy of the area, including the

character of development, the level of building activity, and the

value of homes (for residential areas). .
8. School enrollment for the past ten years (where applicable).

9. Future borrowing plans by this unit and overlapping units.

10. Five-year proposed capital improvement program.

Very truly yours,

106 John K. Pfeiffer



SUBMITTED BY DAVID BREEN

Gentlemen:

Those of you who are familiar with New Jersey Revenue Financing are aware that
such financing is accomplished by means of Authorities created for that purpose.
As my subject has to do with sewer and/or water revenué financing, I shall con-
fine my comments to that particular type of Authority. Under the Sewerage
Authorities Law, Chapter 138, Laws of New Jersey 1946, amended, it is evident
that sewer authorities in New Jersey have greater financial protection in respect

to revenue security than do their parent municipality.

Tax bonds of counties or municipalities in New Jersey, for which unlimited ad
valorem taxes are pledged, have steadil} risen in recent years in their standing
in municipal market and are today rated among the best municipal credits in the
United States. However, there are,certain additional legal rights and remedies
authorized by the Act under which Authority bonds are issued which, in many
respects, make such bonds an even better security than such ad valorem tax
bonds. The reason for the uhusual legal security and remedies of such Authority
bonds are as follows:

1. THE BONDHOLDER'S SECURITY IS GREATER THAN THE SECURITY FOR MOST AD VALOREM
TAX BONDS. '

The Act provides sources and means for assuring the payment of debt service on sewer
. revenue bonds which give the holder of sewer revenue bonds a maximum of legal se=-
curity, as follows: The Act provides in Section 8 that service charges must be
collected for the use of the sewer system which must comply with any contract with
bondholders, and "will at all times be adequate to pay all expenses of operation

and maintenance of the sewerage system, including reserves, insurance, extensions,

and replacements, and to pay punctually the
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principal of and interest on any bonds and to maintain such reserves or sinking funds
therefor as may be required by the terms of any contract of the sewerage authority or

as may be deemed necessary or desirable by the sewerage authority.

These service charges constitute the basic source of payment of debt service on sewer
revenue bonds, and the mandatory duty of the Authority to fix and collect sufficient
charges for all debt service and reserves, in additién to expenses of operation and
maintenance and other required payments, assures the holder of sewer revenue bonds of
adequate revenues for the payment of such bonds, as any bondholder can compel the
Authority, by legal proceedings, to raise such service charges, whenever necessary to
the required extent, to comply with all debt service, reserve and other payments re-
quired by the bond resolution, trust indenture or other proceedings which authorized

the issuance of the sewer revenue bonds (hereinafter referred to as "bond proceedings").

The quality of the security of service charges should be apparent to any ianvestor in

public securities, and was amply demonstrated during the economic difficulties of the /4/
1930's. In that period, tax bonds of many municipalities in New Jersey and other

states defaulted in payment of debt service on tax bonds for varying times, due to

the low percentage of tax collections and the inevitable necessity of using available

tax receipts for the continuance of essential governmental operations and services with-

out which such municipalities could not have continued to exist.

Service charges during the same period, however, for municipally owned essential

public utilities such as water; electric and sewer systems, were collected in many
defaulting municipalities at a much higher percentage than real estate taxes. This y
higher percentage of collections was due to the very nature of the services of essen- \
tial utilities without which people cannot exist in modern municipalities, and.the

effective remedies for quick collection service charges. The true test of the value

of a security, as far as prompt payment of debt service charges is concerned, is its
collectability in periods of depression as well as in periods~of prosperity. In many -

instances in the 1930's municipalities defaulted in payment of tax bonds but not in



payment of bonds payable from the revenues of essential municipal utilities.

(b) LIEN FOR SERVICE CHARGES ON LANDS SERVED BY THE SEWER SYSTEM.,

In addition to the security of service charges, the-holder—of—seuer-revenue—bonds—has
the-additional security of-eervice—charges, the holder of sewer revenue bonds has the
additional security of all the lands served by the Authority in its area of operation,
which in New Jersey is usually the same as the area of the municipality or munici-

palities creating the Authority.

Under the Act the sewer service charges are a lien upon the lands served if not paid
as and when due, which lien is superior and paramount to the interest in such land

of any owner, lessee, tenant, mortgagee, or otﬁer person excépt the lien of municipal
taxes and is on a parity with and deemed equal to the lien on such lands of the
municipality where such lands are situated for taxes thereon due in the same year

and not paid when due, in the manner provided in Section 21 of the Act.

Most tax bonds, in the final analysis, are secured only by the lien of the ad valorem
taxes levied for the payment of such tax bqnds on the lands of the municipality and
the mandatory obligation of the municipality to levy and collect such ad valorem
taxes without limit as to rate or amdunt. As sewer revenue bonds are, in most
cases, payable from service charges on substantially the same lands on which ad
valorem taxes for the payment of tax bonds must be levied, the holder of a sewer

_ revenue bond has, for all practicable purposes, the’same security of the value of the

lands in the area served as the holder of a tax bond.

Since the holders of sewer revenué bonds have substantially the same security on

the lands in the area served as the holders of tax bonds, and the additional security
of mandatory and legally enforceable service charges adequate for payment of the
sewer revenue bonds, the security of the.holders of such ;ewer revenue bonds is
greater than the security of the holders of most tax bonds.
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(c) Sewer revenues are segregated trust funds.
Under Section 16 of the Act and the bond proceedings, all funds of the sewer system
are trust funds, and the holders of sewer revenue bonds have a lien on such: funds until
applied in the manner provided in the Act and bond proceedings. This, in effect, means
that all revenues of the Authority are segregated trust funds which cannot be used
for any general purposes of the municipality, but must be used by the Authority only in
the manner provided in the Act and the bond proceedings which authorized the issuance
of the sewer revenue bonds. j>//
Bonds payable from ad valorem taxes, except for a feﬁ exceptions, do not have any , \
specific lien on any funds of the municipality, nor is the municipality required to segreg:
its tax revenues for the payment of such bonds. Consequently, if the tax collections
are insufficient to provide for all the purposes for which the taxes were levied, there
is no legal assurance that the holder of an ad valorem tax bond will receive full pay-
ment of his principal or interest, as a muncipality must fulfill its essential services and
functions in order to continue its existence.
If the sewer revenues collected are insufficient for payment of all costs of operation
and maintencance, debt service on sewer revenue bonds and other payments required bythe
bond proceedings, it is true that the bondholder might not receive payment of all his
~ principal and interesthpunctually. In such event, however, the holders of competent
jurisdiction, require the rates of sewer service charges to be raised sufficiently to
provide for all operating and maintenance costs, debt service, reserves and other pay-
ments provided for in the bond proceedings, including any deficiencies for prior
payments. Since the Authority will, in practically all cases, have a substantial
monopoly on an essential public utility, the mandatory obligation of the Authority,
both under the act and the bond proceedings, to raise its rates for sewer services to
whatever extent may be necessary to comply with the Act and bond proceedings, is, in
most cases, a more effective security than is generally‘availabie to the holders of

" tax bonds.
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(d) Reserve Funds.
The Act authorizes the Authority to covenant and agree with the holders of sewer
revenue bonds to provide for rates sufficient to include reserves for debt service
as well as maturing payments of principal and interest, which covenants may be enforced
by any holdr of such sewer revenue bonds. It is customary in the bond proceedings
authorizing the issuance of sewer revenue bonds to provide for an adequate reserve fund

for debt service.

If the issue of sewer revenue bonds is soundly conceived in its inception, the reserve

fund will enable the sewer system to overcome temporary economic difficulties, which is an

important advantage to the bondholder and the Authority, and an additional security

for the holder of a sewer revenue bond.

2. THE REMEDIES FOR COLLECTION OF SEWER SERVICE CHARGES ARE EFFECTIVE AND QUICKLY

ENFORCEABLE.

The Act provides quick andieffective remedies for the collection of sewer service
charges and the enforcement of the rights of the holders of sewer revenue bonds which,
in many cases, are not available to the holders of othef municipal bonds. These
collection and enforcement remedies are substantia;lf discontinuance of sewer

services.

(a) The Lien of sewer service charges is more quickly enforceable than the lien
of ad valorem taxes.
Section 21 of the Act provides that the lien of sewer service charges on the premises
served may be foreclosed or otherwise enforced by the Authority by action or suit in
equity as for the foreclosure of a mortgage on real property.

A mortgage on real property in New Jersey can be foreclosed in a much quicker period

. of time than such reél property can be foreclosed for the lien of ad valorem taxes.

The lien on real estate for ad valorem taxes cannot be foreclosed as a general rule until
the year after such taxes become delinquent, wvhereas the lien on real estate for

delinquent sewer service charges can be foreclosed under the Act as soon as such

charges become delinquent.
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(b) The right to appointment of a receiver of the sewer system.
Not only can the holder of a sewer revenue bond enforce any of the provisions of the Act
or of the bond proceedings in any court of competent jurisdiction, but such holder,for any
defaults in payment of principal or interest on his bond, or in compliance by the Author-
ity with its covenants in the bond proceedings, is entitled, under Section 18 of the Act, as
of right to the appointment of a receiver of the sewer system by a court of competent jur-
isdiction to operate the sewer system under the supervision of such court until all such

defaults have been cured and made good and such right is cumulative as to subsequently

recurring defaults.

This right is an important remedy for the holder of a sewer revenue bond. Not only can

the Authority be compelled to charge sufficient sewer rates to pay the sewer revenue

bonds and comply with the bond proceedings, but the possession and control of the )
sewer system itself can be taken away from the Authority and operated under the

terms of the bond proceedings by the courts, thus further insuring compliance by

the Authority at all times with the bond proceedings.

The value of this remedy is often not recognizedlby investors in municipal bonds. /
If the sewer system is an economic failure it is true that a receivership will not \\\
be of much benefit as obviously a receiver cannot collect exhorbitant sewer service charges
any more than the Authority itself. However, aincé sewervservices do constitute an
essential public servicd, and experiencé has demonstrated that most public sewer

systems in areas with a reasonable density of poéulation are economicallyisuccessful
enterprises, the power to enforce strict compliance with the Act and all the covenants of

the bond proceedings gives the holder of sewer revenue bonds an extremely valuable remedy.

3. THE SEWER SYSTEM MUST BE OPERATED AS A SEPARATE UTILITY ENTERPRISE.

One of the greatest advantages of a sewer revenue bond,'ffom the standpoint of legal
security, is the requirement of the Act and the bond proceedings that the sewer system
must be operated as a separate utility enterprise, and if the bond proceedings are
properly prepared, usch enterprise must be conducted upon an efficient business basis,

and is not subject to the same influences which may affect the security of tax bonds.
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The holders of tax bénds have little control over the general activities of the
municipality which issued them. Such municipality may also levy taxes for any other
purpose without limitation, may issue additional tax bonds in amounts permitted by
laﬁ, may have wasteful budget practices and inefficient administration, and may embark
upon new and unnecessary projects or purposes, all of which may affect and dilute the
security of the holder of such taxbonds.

Since the sewer system under the Act is a separate utility enterprise conducted on a
business basis, and the method of operation and application of revenues and the rights
and remedies of the holders of sewer revenue bonds are fixed by the Act and bond
proceedings and can be enforced by such bondholders, the source of their security
cannot be impaired of diluted by the general acts or activities in the municipality
served by the Authority to the same exte;c which is possible in the case of tax bonds.

4, COVENANT OF THE STATE OF NEW JERSEY

Not only does the Act provide for legally binding and enforceable covenants of the

Authority, but also contains a covenant of the State of New Jersey itself reading

" as follows:

"Pledge of State to bondholders:

The State of New Jersey does hereby pledge to and covenant and agree with the holders

of any bonds issued pursuant to a bond resolution of a sewerage authority that the

State will not authorize or éermit the construction or maintenance of any system of
sewers or sewage disposal plants which will be competitive with the sewerage system

of the sewerage authority, and will not limit or alter the rights hereby vested in

the sewerage authority to acquire, construct, maintain, reconstruct and operate its

sewerage system, and to fix, essablish, charge and collect its service charges and

to fulfill the terms of any agreement made with thevholders of such bonds or other
obligations and will not in any way impair the rights of remedies of such holders,

and will not modify in any way the exemptions from taxation provided for in this act,

until the bonds, together with inﬁerest thereon, with interest on any unpaid

installments of interest and all costs and expenses in connection with any action
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or proceedings by or on behalf of such holders are fully met and discharged."”

Much of the above was supplied in an opinion written by John Trimble of Caldwell,

Marshal, Trimble and Mitchell, now Mudge, Rose Guthrie & Alexander, in 1957 and who

has given me his permission to use exce;pts from that opinion, and I here and now

express my appreciation.

Since then many authorities have entered into various types of Service Contracts which,

in varying degrees, act as an agreemencAbetween the Authority and its parent municipality,
‘whereby the municipality agrees that for services rendered, it will guarantee anywhere
from the required reserves of the Authority, under the Trust Indenture up to and including
a guarantee of the bonds themsélves, by means of taxation. This is generally accepted

as the most secure obligation. However, I question whether it is even necessary.

This is the crux of my argument. If , as the Authority Act states, the authorities have
even greater recourse than does the municipality, why should a service contract be
necessary.at all. Unless, of course, it is viewed merely as a reaffirmation by the
municipality of intent.which was made by it when it‘created the authority in the

first place.

This same argument is, however, not necessarily true in the case of
Regional Sewer Authorities. Here we have a different animal in that is is created
solely as a treatment unit and can only.construct trunk lines for collection
purposes to the municipal boundary line., 1If théyﬁ; S. A. constructs internal
- collection lines, it does so only on a contributory basis via a contract as a
participant in the cost not only of the internal lines and outfall lines but
also of the trunk line and treatment plant as well. If an Authority is
created on the basis of contribution, I would think it only differs
with a municipal unit in size and scope but not in operation or fesources.'
If, on the other hand, an R, S. A, is created on a customaer basis; it has no recourse

or legal position, I would think, except via a contract.
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I believe that, in this day and age, it is inconceivable that a populace can long
endure without public sewer service and the effective treatment thereof. This
fact is well recognized by every public agency involved in pollution control and
abatement., It is because of this recognition and because of the arguments pre-
sented here that I believe that Authorities in New Jersey and, per haps in the
nation, should be rated in a manner separate and distinct from the method em-

| ployed in rating general tax obligafions. I would appreciate your comments in
writing, if possible, whether pro or con, in order to prepare a paper for

submission to the rating service.
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INTPEODUCTTIGCN

The rapid development of science and technology over the
past thiree decad=s have been accompanied by social, political
and economic problems of ever growing complexity. In order tc
cope with these emerging problems, persons ch:rged with the ad-
ministration of local government are looking to the future with
guarded optimism about the financing of these programs during
the decade of the 70's, These problems which fuced uas in the
©0's not only remain but have become very critical. In fact,
while the 00's were dubbe! as the decade of protest and unher-
alded confrontation, the very basic structure of local govern-
ment was being shaken and the viability of home rule and local
government tested. We are teing challenged as never before and
innovative solutions to problems must be found within our finan-
cial capability. The treasury of local governnents are sorely
in need of revenues to meet these problems and at the same time
1)  The lMunicipal Debt Has re:ched an all time high 2) Inter-
est Costs are at the highest levels in history and 3) Urtan
needs are critical with gre:it stress being placed on the conser-
vation of our natural resources and human ecology in the fore-
front. Urban blight, poverty, air and water polution, drug abuse,
transportation and housing are problems th2t cannot be ignored,

As our population continues to multiply as pointed out by Dr.

Paul Ehrlich in his recent book titled The Population Bomb, we

rust utilize population control or face a race to oblivion. If we

continue to grow at our present rate, we wiil double our populat-

ion in the next thirty years and in effect double the capital
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improvenents that have teen built since the days of our found-
ing fathers. Technology in etfect played a major role in getting
us where ve re today and we must insist that technology and
science be utilized in a major role to get us out so To speak.
Cheaper and more standardized mthods riust be found to build
streets, seviers, roads, airports, housing and solid waste disposal
units, The status quo and multiple excuses for one reason or

anothar can no longer be toleruted.

THE 't CE L L LS
The ability o1 loc 1l goverrents to r.e t tre minini:  ceds
oL corvital ool 0w being questioned, studied, reviewed, re-
eretted and anre oty o, Yoar Ly veur ve h1ave witnessed a steady

erosion of the property tax base which is the major source of
ravenues to finance nwunici-al capital outlays. The decacde of the
00's saw the greatest growth in municipal d-tt that this country
has seen to date as detailed in Ixhibit "A™ and it is safe to
predict th-t the 70's will show "That you haven't seen anything
yet", Let us examine some of the problems so as to help us in
exanmining methods to finance sare:
* llousing 1is consistently lagging way behind
documented needs,
* Public Works Programs such as solid waste co-
lection and disposal, sanitary waste treatment,
air polution, street construction and water con-

servation are five to ten years behind schedules.

* Transportation problems are increasing ut a greater
rate than solutions or financing methods are found.,
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EXHIBIT "An"

CHRONOLOGY OF NATIONAL SUMMARY OF
TOTAL MUNICIPAL DEBT OUSTANDING AT
END OF FISCAL YEAR*

YEAR AMOUNT

1967-68 $37,505,000,000
1966-67 35,256,000,000
1965-66 33,714,000,000
1964-65 31,862,000,000
1963 28,743,000,000
1962 26,819, 000,000
1961 24,804 ,000,000
1960 23, 178,000,000
1959 22,057,000, 000
1958 20,355 ,000,000
1957 ' 19,076,000, 000
1956 17 ,560,000,000

*SOURCE: THE INTERNATIONAL CITY MANAGE-
MENT ASSOCATION, THE MUNICIPAL YEAR
BOOK - 1970.
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%  School Construction and prosent curriculums
are inadequate to rieet present needs let alone
the nceds of the 70's,

#* Decay in our central cities is not being checlod, it is
in I2Cct increasing,

% Hospital and health needs oy our senior citizens
are being neglected and inadequatce to neet the
needs of today.

*  Construction costs are at an all time high and
provide no evidence of at least leveling ofr,

The cost of local financing over the past ten
vears and in the last few in particular have
sky rocketed. Exhibit "A" indicates that we
have doubled our bonded indebtedness over a ten
year period Letween 1957 to 1967,

Interest rates in the 6-8 per cent range are far
to high and municipal investors are fewer in num-
ber when it conies time to bid.

3

These zre some of the constraints and problems that confront
local administrators today and in the future. In addition,
the competitive money market requires, indeed mandates, that
the finance administrator of today be very knowledgable about
the municipil bond market, its trends and marketing techniques
so that municipal bond sales will be sold at costs which local

governrients can justify anc afford to pay.
EECOMIENDATIONS

Exhibit "A" outlines the latest figures on municipal debt
expenditures over a ten year period which is doubled from {19,070
million in 1957 to 37,505 million in 1567. New Jersey munici-
palities pretty well follaw this national trend. T o mect the

needs of the rost urbanized state in the Un.ted States, I re-
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spectfully submit the fullowing for your study «né reviow:

1). pproxi ately one third of the municipil debt
in Exhibit "A" are Kevenue bonds., 1 sincerely

feel that self liquidating bonds shoulad be en-

couraged hut the pledging of the fu.l faith and

credit of the municip.lity is essential if these

Londs re to be sicu-=ssful in the bond narkets of
the future., A 2yod cxumple is lew Jerscy statutes

concerning the financing of Swiniiny Pool Fucilities,

Iunicipal Ponds should be exempt:rom all or any

N
~
L ]

3tate or Fe'eral Tax:s, A recent attemnpt in the

Congress was noted latel,. to rermove such tax exemption,

3). "Pav as von #0"is a laudable principle and should
be used when a connunity is wealthy enougn to utilize
this ncans; however, ths very great majority of local
sovernrients must continue to look for short and long
term borrowing or fall far behind in needed capital

construction and equipment.

4). I strongly urge the creation of a Central Credit
Agency which will serve all New Jersey municipalities.
This agency would assist a:l communities who are con-
sidering bond Is:ues and invparticular, many hew Jerse;
commiinities who have no knowledge of marc<eting ruro-

cedures and time after time fail to receive any bids.
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This Central Credit Agencv could very well tecome

a part of the Debt Management Program that the De-

partment of Community Arfairs administers through

the Division of Local Finance, -

The present high interest rates on Municipsl Eonds must | .
be reduced. It appears it may bte several years be-

fore nmunicip~l Lond investors will feel free to pur-

chase lonz term municipal boncds with confidence that

the income will be tax exenpt throughout the life of

tine runicipatl bond. Unless aund until an amendment to

the constitution of the Federal Government is adopted,

which establishes a permanent and unequivocal tax

exemption of local governrent bonds, bond buyers will

be oblig:d to assume that the Congress or the Courts .
may modify the present tax exemption at any subsequent

time. Thus, the consideration of say a Fedc¢ral Urban

Bank or a State Urban Bank to backup Municipal Bonds

by guaranteed interest payrents until refinancing needs
are met or outright purchases of certain local govern- .

ment debt by federal refunding grants, should be studied.

The Joint Economic Committee of the Congress of the
United States in a study published in December, 19066

titled State and Local Public Facility Needs and Fin-

ancing estimated that the total needs of local gov-

ernment would rise from about $33,560 million in 1965
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to more than $05,000 niillion in 1975, Thus, the inter-
relationship of short and long term financing, intcorest
costs, availatle and interested martets uand the atility
2f loenl povern.ent Lo raise needed {anis should be very

carefully ex mined as never before in light of the expen-

v
ditures of this ragnitude of money. Theretfore, it scems to
e thit one ought to seriously consider the continuance and
exponsion of the Uebt [.anagerent Progran presently limited
in score, funding and areas of responsitbility. I further

suggest that the following matters be examined by tne Debt
they
I ‘najer ent Group and request that rerort <o you their find-

ings beth pro and con.

a). Increase state and federal ,rants-in-aid to local
Fovernments - particuiarly where urbon decay and
{financing +or capital improvennts ior same ure inm-
possible and inprobadvle bty local revenie sources,

b). Investuent of state and local government vension
and rectirement funds along with other iunds not
needed in short and long term muaicipal bonds,

c). Iaprove marketing programs. This nmay mean a program
o1 inducing individuals of modest :eans wlio have
been btuyin; taxable securities Lo cheose tax exempt
riunicip2l securities as part of his investument choices.

d). A vossible revision of the statutory debt linits
for municipsl and school finsncing. 1n particular,
the provision of averaging out the last three years
of assessed valuation scens ultra conservative. The
tenefits of revaluation is not realized until almost
four years have gone by.
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e). That a state wide revaluation program be in-
stituted as soon as possikle. In my opinion,
their are startling diiZerences to say the
least not only in riethod and approach, but in the
equalization program.

f). 1Insist that the five (5) year capital programs
bte inplemented and meaningful. Projecti.ns of
not only capital program coststut a projection
of financing costs which would include temporary
financing costs of notes and other related costs.
PPES - Planned Program Budget Systems should be
encouraged which would include alternative actions
concerning the proposed capital expenditures and
utilize cost-tenefit techniques along with PEKT
techniques.,

Provide local governments with capable and trained
consultants who can analyse capital iieeds and the
ability of a given community to finance same. These
consultants can be made available from tlie Central
Credit Agency or from the Debt Management Program.
In any case, this will mean additional state per-
sonnel as the present debt management program needs
manpowver,

e

vl

—
.

In closing, I am sure that you agree with me that honest and

dedic2ted public administrators are the keystone of public confidence

in local rovernment. Therefore, the image of all of us, both state

and local officials must always be upper most in our minds as we

cocnsider the alternatives in spending public mionies. Wwe should

strive for the coveted title of ™Watch Dog of the Public Treasury"

Finally, I strongly urge that the results of your study be

directed at the citizenry in a persuasive cducation program, giving

them the facts in language that they can understand what proper and

informed action needs to be taken in the future.

Movember 9, 1970

Geérgepf. Meholick
Business Administrator
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TOWNSHIP of WILLINGBORO
NEW’]ERSEY

Municipal Building TRiangle 7-2200
November 9, 1970

Mr. John J. Magovern, Jr.
Chairman, Task Force F

New Jersey Tax Policy Committee
134 West State Street
Trenton, New Jersey 08625

Dear Mr. Magovern:

I am in receipt of your invitation of October
23rd to participate in the first of a series of public hearings
before your Task Force on Public Credit.

I am sorry that my schedule and that of many mem-
bers of our Association did not permit us to participate at your
November 9th hearing. I will be meeting with our Association members
in November at the Atlantic City Conference and I will bring the
work of your group to their attention and suggest that if they have
any recommendations to offer they may do so by correspondence to
the above address.

I would also like to take this opportunity to

offer one comment on the present statutes controlling debt limi-
tations in our state. As you are undoubtedly aware, a township's
valuations are averaged over a three-year period for this purpose.
While this procedure might have some validity for well established
municipalities, it creates an undue hardship on rapidly growing su-
burban municipalities. The Willingboro Township Board of Education
has had to make two appearances before the New Jersey Commissioner
of Education and the New Jersey Division of Local Finance to request
extension of credit hearings. These hearings have been necessitated
because the present statutes require that our borrowing capacity be
related to an average valuation of $1u0 000 000. based on the fol-
lowing years:

1967 - $123,000,000.

1968 - $140,000,000.

1969 - $159,000,000.

By contrast, our 1969 valuations were $193,000,000. and our 1970
valuations were almost $232,000,000.

RErcivrn N.ﬂ\,l 1 n 1970
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‘Mr. Johm J. Magovern, Jr.: Page 2

I do believe that a great deal of effort on the
part cf both local officials, their professional consultants and
various state ‘employees and officers could be saved if the basis
for computing the debt limitation was amended to realistically
include the valuations which have already been realized. To this
end, mumnicipalities and schools should be allowed to utilize valu-
ations of that current year once they have been certified to their

" - County Tax Bureau. I would of course have no objection to an off-

setting percentage to allow for any reductions due to taxpayer
appeals prior to the closing date for such appeals.

J trust I have set forth my concern in this matter
adequately for your purpose. If I could provide any additional
material or information, I would be more than pleased to hear from
ym.

Sincerely yours,

g?.:ﬁ 7 ﬂg(

T. McHugh,
Township Manager

JIMcH:bgs
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NEW JERSEY TAX POLICY COMMITTEE
TASK FORCE F (Public Credit)

COMMENTS AND SUGGESTIONS CONCERNING PUBLIC FINANCE SUBJECTS OUTLINED
IN TASK FORCE MEMORANDUM FOR PUBLIC HEARING HELD NOVEMBER 9, 1970

(The following memorandum is in two parts including (1) a summary of
our findings and recommendations on each subject and (2) a detailed
discussion of each subject).

PART 1
SUMMARY OF FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS ON PUBLIC FINANCE SUBJECTS

1. Burden of Present Outstanding State and Local Debt

In order to properly evaluate the burden of present outstanding debt
of New Jersey local governments it is necessary to concurrently con-
sider the debt burden of the State government.

State Debt Burden: The total State debt (outstanding and author-
ized) totals $1,582 million and represents 3.1% of the estimated full
valuation of State ratables and 3.7% of the State's estimated 1969
personal income which is significantly higher than the corresponding
1.47% and 2.8% median figures for the 50 States. 1In addition, when we
recognize (1) that there are conservatively estimated additional
immediate State capital needs of over $1,000,000,000, (2) that
emissions by State agencies could total $100,000,000 annually, and
(3) the seemingly insatiable demands for further capital facilities
such as nursing homes, mental health facilities, mass transporta-
tion, urban rehabilitation, etc. which can only be financed by the
State or through State agencies, the need for the careful, selective
and restrained application of the State's credit is imperative if
the State's credit rating is to be maintained at its optimum level
so that such capital projects can be financed by the State at the
lowest possible interest rates.

Local Government Debt Burden: Based upon debt figures for
New Jersey local governments .as of December 31, 1969 the gross
municipal, county and local authority debt totaled $3,336 million,
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representing 6.67% of the estimated $50,884 million full value of
State ratables.

It is most difficult to obtain any reliable statistics of local
govermment debt of the 50 States to measure the debt burden of
New Jersey local municipalities. However, we would judge that the
debt load of New Jersey local governments is not significantly
heavier than other States in relation to economic strength. In
general, other States have more diversified revenue bases than New
Jersey which relies heavily upon real estate levies. It is obvious
that New Jersey must revamp its tax structure at both the State and
local levels to more equitably share the costs of capital facilities
and generate new and additional revenues to meet constantly higher
costs of government.

2. Anticipated Credit Needs of State and Local Govermments

The State expects to issue $250 million bonds annually, local govern-
ments should require some $200 million annually, existing State
agencies will probably require $100 million annually resulting in
total annual bond emissions at the State and local government levels
exceeding $500 million annually for the foreseeable future. It is
also probable that the New Jersey Turnpike Authority and the New
Jersey Highway Authority will require sizeable bond issues during
the next six year period. Also, the immediate State capital needs
deficiency for which bonds have not yet been authorized total $679
million without considering future State needs or the additional
sums required to compensate for the continuing sharp increase in
costs of construction.

3. Borrowing or 'Pay-as-you-go"

Anyone familiar with the fiscal structure of both the State and local
governments of New Jersey recognizes, like in most other States, that
it will be impossible to finance capital projects on a "“pay-as-you-go'
basis in the present and foreseeable future. The costs of construc-
tion of public facilities and the costs of operating State and local
government have escalated sharply in recent years.

In order to be able to finance the construction of capital projects

at a cost which is economically practical it is absolutely essential
that the required funds be raised through borrowing in the bond market.
It is important that the period of amortization of the bond issue

be no longer than the useful life of the capital project (New Jersey
Statutes include practical limitations on periods of amortization).

4. The Use and Limits of Short-term Financing

During the recent years of historically high interest rates the use
of short term financing by local governments in New Jersey has been
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over done to the detriment of the borrowing costs of thesc local
bodies. The crisis which developed in 1969 when many local munici-
palities had reached the expiration of their statutory limit on
further short-term borrowing, coupled with the then prevailing 67
statutory interest rate limit which made long term permanent borrow-
ing impossible for many local municipalities, would have been much
less severe, if not avoidable, had these local municipalities borrowed
in the long term market when they needed the funds rather than gamble
on the unpredictable bond market.

We believe that the present statutory limits for short-term borrowing
which permit short-term borrowing for two years without amortization
and thereafter for three more years subject to minimum annual amortiza-
tion payments are adequate and reasonable under present circumstances.

A further precautionary step might be to require local municipalities
prior to the fourth and fifth year of short-term borrowing to meet

with the Division of Local Finance to discuss the advisability of wnder-
taking such further extensions.

We would like to suggest that the State undertake an aggressive public
relations program to make local governments in New Jersey aware of the
advantages of including a refunding (callable) provision in their
permanent bond issues during the present historically high interest
rate period.

5. The Relationship of Anticipated Credit Needs tc Present
Statutory Debt Limits

»
We do not believe the present statutory limitations have any measurable
effect upon the interest rates received by New Jersey municipalities

on their bonds and, if anything, due to their conservative levels

probably have a salutary effect. We strongly feel the fiscal discipline
imposed by the present statutory limits far outweigh the only argument
raised against such limits -- namely, that municipalities must subject
themselves to the test of necessity before the Division of Local Finance --
if they desire to exceed the present limits. The Division of Local

Finance is certainly best able to judge the reasonableness of the present
statutory limits. Any increase in the present statutory limits should

be taken only after careful study -- be limited in nature -- and not

result in adversely affecting the present favorable ratings on the vast
majority of New Jersey municipal bond issues.

6. Control and Expansion of Credit for Local Governments

a. Possible Revisions of Statutory Debt Limits: - See comments
in (5) above.

b. Use of General Obligations vs. Revenue Bonds: The present
general obligation laws permit allocating costs in all the
ways available under revenue bond financing including those
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based upon service (i.e., rate schedules), or upon the
specific benefit derived (i.e., assessments), or upon the
general benefits derived (i.e., property taxes) and can be
sold at lower interest rates; therefore, the use of general
obligation bonds by local governments in New Jersey will and
should continue to be favored over revenue bonds.

The use of revenue bonds by regional authorities is the most
practical means of financing of regional facilities such as
sewerage, water and refuse disposal.

Use of Local Authorities: Unless there are unique circum=-
stances prevailing the use of local authorities should be
avoided. The cost of financing is higher and the independence
of local authorities from any responsibility to the elected
municipal body are imposing disadvantages. However, the
authority vehicle is the most practical approach to regional
or multi-municipal financing.

Access to Credit Market and Cost of Borrowing

i. Effect of Central Credit Facility: We feel the creation of

a central credit agency is not needed and will only add a new
State agency with its attendant worthwhile administrative and
operating costs without providing any supplemental services to
enhance the public credit situation in New Jersey. The avail-
ability of expert fiscal advice to all New Jersey municipali-
ties from the Division of Local Finance and the private invest-
ment banking firms and banking institutions, together with the
proven marketing structure which has provided all New Jersey
municipalities, large and small, with capital funds at competi-
tive interest rates regardless of credit market conditions
dictate against the need for such an agency.

ii. Possible Improvements in the Statutes: The bonding
statutes in New Jersey are among the best in the Nation. The
only suggested changes in the present statutes which might
be helpful would be to require local municipalities to con-
sult with the Division of Local Finance prior to the fourth
and fifth year extensions of short-term financing, the need
for local authorities to be given the power to assess

and to issue assessment bonds and consideration of enactment
of a State industrial revenue bond statute.

iii. Use of a Municipal Bond Financing Agency and State
Sewerage Agency: In the light of the actual experience
over many years, and particularly during the high interest,
tight money conditions prevailing during the last year or so,
during which time New Jersey municipalities in their independ-
ent undertakings found adequate capital for financing their
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improvements at competitive rates, together with the high
present need and the continuing growing demands for public
improvements which can only be financed at the State level,
we do not feel it is necessary nor in the best interests of
the State to create the proposed New Jersey Municipal

Finance Agency because we believe (1) it will have an
adverse effect upon the high credit rating of the State of
New Jersey and its ability to finance at the lowest possible
interest cost, (2) result in only limited savings to certain
local municipalities, (3) result in creation of another
State agency with its attendant ever increasing operating and
administrative costs, (4) inject some $200,000,000 more
State bonds into the bond market in direct competition with
the $250,000,000 presently authorized State bonds and
$100,000,000 existing State agency bonds which must be sold
annually (5) permanently damage the proven marketing struc-
ture for local New Jersey bonds and (6) undermine local
government self-reliance.

Another New Jersey public credit agency being considered is
a State sewerage authority. We believe that the objectives
of such a State agency can be better achieved through amend-
ment of the present statutes for creating county and multi-
municipal sewerage authorities. :

e. Debt Management Facilities: The debt manacement facilities
provided by the State Division of Local Finance have been
excellent. The outstanding services being provided by this
Division has been the prime factor in achieving of the accept-
ance of New Jersey municipal bonds by virtually every sub-
stantial professional institution in the United States which
invests in tax free municipal obligations.

We have no suggestions to make concerning means of improving
the high caliber of the services of the Division of Local
Finance.

7. Value of Tax Exempt Aspects of State and Municipal Financing

It is imperative that interest on municipal bonds remain tax-exempt
in order to retain for the State and local municipalities tax-free
bonds -~ the proven financing instrument which permits the raising of
funds for capital projects at the lowest possible cost.
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PART II

DETAILED DISCUSSION OF FINDINGS AND RECOMMENDATIONS ON PUBLIC
__FINANCE SUBJECTS

1. Burden of Present Qutstanding Local Debt

In order to properly evaluate the burden of present outstanding debt
of New Jersey local governments it is necessary to concurrently con-
sider the debt of the State government. The funds to pay State bonds
derived from sources outside of New Jersey is nominal. Therefore, the
true burden of debt which the residents and businesses in New Jersey
must support is8 the total of local and State debt.

With this in mind let us analyze the present debt burden for both State
government and local government in New Jersey.

State Debt Burden: The State debt picture, after giving effect to
the last sale of $75,000,000 bonds in July 1970, is as follows:

State Bonds Outstanding . . . . . .+« .. % 608,870,000
State Bonds Authorized but UniBSUed e e e 973,500,000
Total State Bonds . . . . . . . . . . $1,582,370,000%

*Does not include $228,000,000 New Jersey Highway Authority
bonds guaranteed by State.

Based upon the above State debt of $1,582,370,000 the debt burden
transforms from its present moderate level (based only on presently
outstanding State bonds) to being significantly above the median debt
burden for the 50 States, as indicated below:

7% Est. % 1969
Direct Net Debt Full Value Personal Income
New Jersey 3.1%(1) 3.7%(2)
Median - 50 States(3) 1.47% 2.8Y%

(1) Based on estimated Full Value of $50,884,621,000.

(2) Based upon estimated personal income per capita of
$4,278 in New Jersey in 1969.

(3) Computed by national statistical service.

The State debt burden shown above must be further adjusted by giving
effect to potential additional demands for State financing and to take
into account the outstanding and prospective debt of various existing
State agencies.
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The Commission to evaluate the capital needs of the State in its 1968
report stated that 'the price of these years of inactivity in capital
appropriations is now very large. But it must be paid if we are to
prevent further atrophy and create a viable and progressive State.'
The Commission reported that the immediate capital requirements for
State projects alone amounts to $1,948.9 million itemized as follows:

Recognized Capital Requirements:
(Financing required in addition to projected Federal aid and State
appropriations)

Millions

Education (Elementary & Secondary
including Vocational) . . . . . . . . . . . . . .§ 227.5
Education (Higher) " . . +« « ¢ ¢ &« ¢ ¢ « o o o o & 492 .4
Educational Broadcasting Network . . . . . . . . . 17.4
Institutions . . . . + ¢« ¢ ¢ ¢ o o 0 e e e e e 100.0
Water Pollution Control . . . . . . . . . . « . . 190.6
Conservation e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 121.0
Transportation . . . . . ¢« ¢ ¢ ¢ ¢ o ¢« o 0 o 0 . . 800.0
Total Recognized State Capital Requirements . .$1,948.9

Of this total immediate need, the State voters have approved the sale
of State bonds totaling $1,261 million (i.e., 1968- $990 million for
transportation and school and hospital buildings; 1969~ $271 million
for water pollution control and water supplies). These State bond
authorizations are reflected in the aforementioned figures. Therefore,
there remains a minimum need for additional State debt of $679 million
to meet the immediate capital needs for State projects.

The above immediate State capital needs are based upon 1968 cost levels.
It is important to note that the eroding effects of inflationary forces
have already made the proceeds from the $1,261 million authorized State
bonds substantially inadequate to construct the capital projects en-
visioned at the time such bond referendums were held. State officials
would be able to more precisely estimate the amount of such "inflation-
ary deficiency." 1In one area with which we are familiar, that of water
pollution control, we would estimate that an additional $200 million
would be needed to finance the State's 257 share of regional water
pollution facilities due to a combination of "inflationary deficiency"
and the addition of the Passaic Valley Sewer Commission's needs which
were not included in the $271 million Clean Water State bond issue
approved in 1969.

The remaining area of State debt which must be considered is State

agency debt. We will dismiss the debt of the New Jersey Turnpike Author-
ity and the New Jersey State Highway Authority (while recognizing

that some $228,000,000 New Jersey Highway Authority bonds are guaranteed
by the State) as being self-supporting from tolls of their respective
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facilities. The other New Jersey agencies with proposed bond programs
are as follows:

New Jersey Housing Agency

New Jersey Higher Educational Facilities Authority
New Jersey Higher Education Assistance Authority
New Jersey Mortgage Finance Agency

The current bonding programs of the State agencies require the issu-
ance of more than $100,000,000 bonds. The year-to-year demand for
bond funds by these State agencies is .difficult to estimate because
their programs are greatly affected by conditions in the money markets
(i.e., the availability of private funds). Under the present high in-
terest rate conditions bond emissions by these State agencies could
readily require $100,000,000 annually.

Summary of State Debt Burden: The debt burden of the State (out-
standing and authorized) is significantly higher than the median of
the 50 States. In addition, when we recognize (1) that there are
conservatively estimated additional immediate State capital needs of
over $1,000,000,000, (2) that bond emissions by State agencies could
total $100,000,000 annually, and (3) the seemingly insatiable de-
mands for further capital facilities such as nursing homes, mental
health facilities, mass transportation, urban rehabilitation, etc.,
which can only be financed by the State or through State agencies,
the need for the careful, selective and restrained application of the
State's credit is imperative if the State's credit rating is to be
maintained at its optimum level so that such capital projects can be
financed by the State at the lowest possible interest rates. (If
the State's "AAA" rating is lowered to "AA' because of the escalating
issuance of State bonds for other than State government purposes the
interest rate on State bonds could increase by 1/4 of 1%, which, when
applied to the balance of the approximate $1,000,000,000 State bonds
yet to be sold, the annual interest cost increase would be $2,500,000).

Due to the large current and projected State capital needs, we strong-
ly oppose the application of the State credit, directly or indirectly,
to other than meeting the State's capital needs. It is vital that
local govermments continue to be responsible for financing capital
needs at the local level. Therefore, we are opposed to the creation
of the New Jersey Municipal Finance Agency as well as the State
guaranteeing up to $500,000,000 local municipal bonds to be issued

for water pollution projects. In connection with the latter proposal
it must be realized that the State will have to conmsider authorizing
an additional $200,000,000 or more in State bonds if it desires to
achieve its objective of funding 25% of the cost of regional water
pollution projects. )

Debt Burden of Local Government: Let us now review the debt burden
of New Jersey local governments:
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Debt figures for New Jersey local govermments for 1969, are
reported as follows:

Gross Debt

Debt - Municipal . . . . . . . . $ 2,521,855,625
Debt - County . . . « « « « + . & 428,172,500
Total . . . . . . « . . . .. $ 2,950,028,125
Estimated Full Valuation . . . . $50,804,621,000
Gross Debt to Estimated Full
Valuation e e e e e e e e e 5.80%
Authority Debt . . . . . . . .. §$ 386,051,017

Authority Debt to Estimated Full
Valuation . . . . . . + « « . . 0.76%

Gross Debt and Authority Debt. . $ 3,336,079,142

Gross Debt and Authority Debt to
Estimated Full Valuation . . . 6.56%

We are not aware of comparative statistics of local jovernment debt
of the 50 States to measure the debt burden of New Jersey local
municipalities. However, we would judge that the debt load of New
Jersey local governments is not significantly heavier than other
States in relation to economic strength. In general, other States
have more diversified revenue bases than New Jersey which relies
heavily upon real estate levies. It is obvious that New Jersey must
revamp its tax structure at both the State and local levels to more
equitably share the costs of capital facilities and generate new and
additional revenues to meet constantly higher costs of government.

Anticipated Credit Needs of State and Local Governments: Since
the State and local governments are vying for the available capital
funds in the bond market, it is important to consider both areas when
evaluating anticipated credit needs.

At the local government level there are about 1,400 separate juris-
dictions in New Jersey which can issue bonds to meet capital needs, in-
cluding about 600 school districts, 570 municipalities, 21 counties and
180 authorities and special districts. While we have not seen any
figures concerning the future capital demands for New Jersey local
governments, based upon our historical records we would estimate that
such demands will continue at the $200,000,000 annual level of recent
years. The State has indicated that its objective would be to hope-
fully sell the present authorized but unissued State bonds at an

annual rate of $250,000,000. In addition, we must consider the prob-
ability of $100,000,000 of State agency debt annually.
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Therefore, the State and its agencies and local governments will

be issuing bonds exceeding $500,000,000 annually. It is also prob-
able that the New Jersey Turnpike Authority and New Jersey Highway
Authority will require sizeable bond issues in the foreseeable

future to meet their ever growing demands. Also, as mentioned above,
the immediate State capital deficiency based upon 1968 costs total
$679 million without considering future State needs or the additional
sums needed to compensate for constantly higher costs of construction.

2. Borrowing or ''pay-as-you-go'"

Anyone familiar with the fiscal structure of both the State and local
governments of New Jersey recognizes, like in most other States, that
it will be impossible to finance capital projects on a "pay-as-you-go'
basis in the present and foreseeable future. The costs of construc-
tion of public facilities and the costs of operating State and local
government have escalated sharply in recent years. To illustrate

this point, in the early 1950's New Jersey sewerage authorities
financed sewer systems with annual residential sewer rates of $40 to
$50. A large regional sewer system financed in 1970 has an annual
residential sewer rate exceeding $200 (and this is based upon amortiz-
ing the capital cost over a 40 year period).

In order to be able to finance the construction of capital projects

at a cost which is economically practical it is absolutely essential
that the required funds be raised through borrowing in the bond market.
It is important that the period of amortization of the bond issue be
no longer than the useful life of the capital project (New Jersey
Statutes include practical limitations on periods of amortization).

4., The Use and Limits of Short-Term Financing

During the recent years of high interest rates the use of short-term
financing by local governments in New Jersey has been unprecedented.

It is understandable that local officials are most reluctant to borrow
permanent funds when interest rates are at historically high levels.
However, the local official should also be aware that unless such
short-term borrowing is dictated by reasons other than the state of

the credit market (i.e., because construction is not yet on a firm con-
tractual cost basis, etc.), that he is subjecting his constituents to
a potentially higher bonding cost by gambling on an unpredicable bond
market.

The dangers of abusing the use of short-term borrowing was well illus-
trated during the last year or so when a number of New Jersey municipal-
ities had reached the end of their statutory short-term borrowing period
and they had to rely upon emergency action by the State Legislature to
extend the period and declare a moratorium on interest rate limitations
in order to avoid default. In most instances such emergency legislative
action would have been unnecessary if local officials had faced up to
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their responsibility and permanently financed their projects when
they needed the money rather than prove to be unsuccessful gamblers
in the complex and volatile bond markets.

We believe that the present statutory limits for short-term borrowing
which permit short-term borrowing for two years without amortization
and thereafter for three more years subject to minimum annual mortiza-
tion payments is adequate and reasonable under present circumstances.
A further precautionary step might be to require local municipalities
prior to the fourth and fifth year of short-term borrowing to meet
with the Division of Local Finance to discuss the advisability of
undertaking such further extensions.

We would also like to suggest that the State undertake an aggressive
public relations program to make local govermments in New Jersey
aware that they can incorporate refinancing provisions in their bond
issues which will permit them to refinance at lower interest rates
prior to the maturity of their bond issue should bond market condi-
tions justify such refinancing. There is some cost involved in in-
cluding a refinancing provision but in today's historically high
interest period we believe municipalities will find the cost insigni-
ficant when measured against the prospects of refinancing at lower
rates substantially prior to the maturity of most bond issues.

5. The Relationship of Anticipated Credit needs to Present
Statutory Debt Limits

The present statutory debt limits in New Jersey can be considered
conservative. The applicability of these statutory limits varies
widely as among municipalities. For example, many smaller communities
which financed their schools, water and scwer facilities and other
basic municipal services during the low-cost period of the 1930's
probably are not approaching the statutory limits. Whereas, many of
the larger cities and fast growing communities which have had to
finance during the recent high cost period are constantly challenged
by the present limitations. Since the statutory limits may be exceeded
with the approval of the Division of Local Finance, where the need is
justified, the present statutory limits appear flexible enough to
accommodate anticipated credit needs.

We do not believe the statutory limitations have any measurable effect
upon the interest rates received by New Jersey municipalities on their
bonds and, if anything, due to their conservative levels probably have
a salutary effect. We strongly feel the fiscal ‘discipline imposed by
the present statutory limits far outweigh the only argument raised
against such limits -- namely, that municipalities must subject them-
selves to the test of necessity before the Division of Local Finance --
if they desire to exceed the present limits. The Division of Local
Finance is certainly best able to judge the reasonableness of the
present statutory limits. Any increase in the present statutory limits
should be taken only after careful study =-- be limited in nature =-- and
not result in adversely affecting the present favorable ratings on the
vast majority of New Jersey municipal bond issues.
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a. Possible revisions of statutory debt limits -~ See comments
in (5) above.

b. Use of Genergl Obligations vs. Revenye Bonds: The use of
revenue bonds by municipalities (as distinguished from authori-
ties) in New Jersey has been very limited. The reason for this
is that New Jersey has one of the mest flexible financing laws
relating to general obligation fimancing in that it permits self-
supporting municipal utilities to be financed with general obli-
gation bonds and also permits assessment financing where this is
the most equitable means of allocating capital cost. Since the
present general obligation laws permit allocating costs in all
the ways available under revenue bond financing including those
based upon service (i.e., rate schedules), or upon the

specific benefit derived (i.e., assessments), or upon the general
benefits derived (i.e., property taxes), and the fact that
general obligation bonds can be sold at lower interest rates the
use of general obligation bonds by local governments in New Jersey
will and should continue to be favored over revenue bonds.

The use of revenue bonds by regional authorities is the most
practical means of financing regional facilities such as sewer-
age, water and refuse disposal.

c. Use of Local Authorities: The use of local authorities (as

distinguished from regional authorities) is subject to question.
Unless there are unique circumstances prevailing (i.e., need to
transfer administrative responsibility for a complex utility
system from an overly burdened municipal body, etc.),local
authorities should be avoided. The cost of financing is higher
and the independence of local authorities from any responsibility
to the elected municipal body are imposing disadvantages.

d. ccess to th redit Marke st of rrowing:

i. Effect of Central Credit Fgcility: Over the years New
Jersey municipalities have been able to obtain the guidance
required in effecting the sale of their bond issues from the
Division of Local Finance and from the many investment bank-
ing firms and banking institutions specializing in New Jersey
municipal finance. Bonding attorneys and local auditing

firms have also been very helpful to local municipalities in
establishing successful bonding programs. Therefore, there
has been available and continues to be available to all New
Jersey municipalities the professional expertise and assistance
both from the State government and private investment banking
firms and banking organizations that is necessary to establish
a sound bond financing program and consummate the successful
sale of their municipal bonds.
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The marketing structure for New Jersey municipal bonds
has proven to be among the most efficient in the Nation.
This is due in great measure to the many investment banking
firms and New Jersey banking institutions who dedicate them-
selves to bidding, trading and distributing municipal bonds
of every municipality in New Jersey offering bonds or notes
for sale. The prices received by New Jersey municipalities
for their bonds have been at competitive levels dictated by
the supply and demand factors of the credit market.

The idea of packaging many smaller issues into one large
issue of bonds to be sold by the State appears to be sound in
theory, but in practice it will not prove significantly
beneficial. The reason for this is that those bidding on the
larger package must, of necessity, base their bid upon the
credit strength of the constituent municipalities comprising
the package. Therefore, the price paid for the municipal
bonds offered individually versus that which would be paid
for a larger package of the same relative credit quality will
not vary significantly. We believe all New Jersey municipal-
ities, large and small, have received bids from private
municipal bond specialists for their bond issues. Their
bids have reflected competitive interest rates based upon
prevailing bond market conditions. Therefore, we do not see
the need for packaging of municipal bonds and question that
any tangible advantage would result from this procedure.

Another purported justification for creating a central
credit facility is that it might provide the means for estab-
lishing a State municipal bond rating system which would be
more equitable than the established private rating agencies.
Greater interest in this idea has been evoked by the recent
decision by Moody's and Standard & Poor's to charge for
municipal ratings. The philosophical justification for such
fees is unimportant because they are now a matter-of-fact.
No one will deny the tangible influence in the market place
of ratings assigned by these agencies. They are presently
used by virtually all investors as the standard measurement
of credit. It will be very difficult to develop another
rating agency at the State level to challenge the market
influence of these recognized agencies. Perhaps a nation-
ally sponsored rating agency might most nearly provide a
substitute but no one has been able to structure such a
body and develop the nationwide financial sponsorship
required. )
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In summary, we feel the creation of a central credit
agency is not needed and will only add a new State agency
with its attendant substantial administrative and operating
costs without providing any worthwhile  gervices to enhance
the public credit situation in New Jersey. The availability
of expert fiscal advice to all New Jersey municipalities
from the Division of Local Finance and the private investment
banking firms and banking institutions, together with the
proven marketing structure which has provided all New Jersey
municipalities, large and small, with capital funds at com-
petitive interest rates regardless of credit market conditions
dictate against the need for such an agency.

. ii. Possible Technical Improvements in the Statutes: The
bonding statutes in New Jersey are among the best in the Nation.
Except for possibly requiring local municipalities to consult
with the Division of Local Finance prior to the fourth and

fifth year extensions of short-term financing, the need for
local Authorities to be given the power of assessment and con-
sideration of enactment of a State industrial bond statute
which are discussed below, we feel the statutes are satisfac-
tory.

We believe that the passage of Assembly 1013 which supple-
ments the Sewerage Authorities Law would be very beneficial.
Under the Sewerage Authorities Law when an Authority is created
it is given the exclusive right and power to finance, construct
and operate all facilities for the collection of sewage within
its municipal boundaries. 1In order to meet this very important
duty and obligation in the most expeditious and efficient way
it is absolutely essential that an Authority have all the
financing "tools" available to it.

One of the most practical and equitable methods for financ-
ing sewer collecting lines is by special assessment. The fact
that this method is not available to Sewerage Authorities has
stymied the construction of vitally needed sewer facilities in
New Jersey. The reason for this is that in various instances
the elected municipal officials have not been willing to risk
the possible negative election consequences inherent in
financing sewer 1lines via the assessment route. In such in-
stances the local Sewerage Authority, not having the right to
assess, is unable to perform its legal obligation to provide
these sewer facilities. This most unfortunate void in Sewer-
age Authority financing should be rectified by the passage of
Assembly 1013. A more detailed discussion of Assembly 1013
is appended as Exhibit "cC".

We suggest that New Jersey consider the enactment of
industrial revenue bond legislation. This suggestion is
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occasioned by our having been approached recently by two of
our corporate clients concerning the advantages of their
locating plants in New Jersey or in our neighboring States
of New York, Delaware or Pennsylvania, all of which have
such industrial revenue bond statutes. They eliminated

New Jersey from consideration after they were informed

New Jersey did not have an industrial revenue bond act.

Some 40 States have industrial revenue bond statutes. Under
industrial revenue bond financing the local municipality or
authority would issue its tax-exempt bonds (limited to
$5,000,000 by Internal Revenue except for sewers, stadiums
and other specific purposes) to construct the industrial
plant and the bonds would be repaid solely from annual

lease payments received from the industry. The pledge of
the State's credit directly, or indirectly, (i. e., as in
proposed municipal bond financing agency =-=- Senate No. 958),
should be specifically prohibited.

iii. Use of Municipal Bond Financing Agency -- The Need

for a State Sewerage Authority: In considering the
advisability of creating a municipal bond financing agency
we must briefly reemphasize the present status of the State's
credit and the prospects of future general obligation debt
emissions by the State together with prospective bond issues
of the various State agencies. At present New Jersey general
obligation bonds are rated 'Aaa" by Moody's and Standard &
Poor's. There are presently about $1 billion of the $1.2
billion general obligation bonds authorized by the voters
yet to be sold. 1In addition, the following State agencies
will have continuing bond issues to sell:

New Jersey Housing Finance Agency
New Jersey Higher Education Facilities Authority
New Jersey Higher Education Assistance Authority
New Jersey Mortgage Finance Agency

It is reported that the State would like to sell an aver-
age of $250,000,000 of the presently unissued $1 billion
annually. The various present State agencies mentioned above
could easily add an additional $100,000,000 annually. Both
the New Jersey Turnpike Authority and the New Jersey Highway
Authority, during the immediately foreseeable period, are
expected to require sizeable additional financing. We can
expect that there will be additional State general obligations
voted in the future to provide for the seemingly insatiable
demand for State financed facilities. Additional State’
agencies will need to be created to finance vital projects
which local governmental units are not willing nor able to
undertake.
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With this background of ever increasing demands upon the
State to finance, either directly or through State agencies,
those facilities which are the State's direct responsibility
or which cannot be undertaken by local political entities,
the advisability of creating the proposed New Jersey Municipal
Bond Finance Agency may be best evaluated by answering the
following question:

Is the limited potential temporary savings in interest
cost on local municipal bonds vital enough to the economies
of such local municipalities to expose the State to an addi-
tional potential $200,000,000 or more of '"contingent moral
debt" and jeopardize the State's credit rating?

In focusing upon this question let us assume the New Jersey
Municipal Bond Finance Agency initially receives a '"AA'" rating,
one gradient lower than the present "AAA" rating assigned to
the State of New Jersey Bonds, (such a rating relationship pre-
vails in New York and Pennsylvania with agencies having a
reserve fund which the State Legislature must maintain by
appropriation). Based upon this assumption it is conceivable
and under the terms of the proposed Act all of the municipal-
ities, school districts and authorities having ratings lower
than "AA" might gain a fractional savings in interest cost by
selling their bond issues to the Agency rather than in the
private market. Probably 90% of the municipalities, school
districts and local authorities in the State of New Jersey
have ratings lower than "AA". (Even if the Agency received an
A" rating the majority of municipalities in New Jersey might
realize some limited benefit in utilizing the Agency financing
route) .

If this sequence of events should occur the amount of
agency bonds and notes issued could easily reach $200,000,000
annually, and outstanding debt of the agency would quickly
escalate to substantial balances. As such bonds and notes
represent a contingent liability, morally or otherwise, of the
State of New Jersey the present '"AAA" rating of the State
would be jeopardized. 1If the State rating should be lowered
due to the heavy contingent liability represented by bonds of
the Agency the cost of borrowing will be significantly in-
creased to the State for those capital needs, which the State
has the direct responsibility to finance through the issuance
of its general obligation bonds or where the State through
one of its agencies must provide bond funds because there is
no other means of financing a vital public improvement. The
downgrading of the ratings of the Commonwealth of Pennsylvania
and the State of New York give credence to this possibility.
Attached as Exhibits "A" and '"B" are excerpts from Moody's
Bond Survey of comments made at the time of lowering the
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ratings of New York State and Pennsylvania and are very
pertinent.

It is difficult to agree with the theory that this Agency
can limit its activities to purchasing only municipal bonds
of those municipalities in dire financial need. We feel that
in practice it would be very difficult to deny any New Jersey
municipality this means of financing, no matter how small the
benefit.

It was early in 1969 when the thrust to create the New
Jersey Municipal Bond Bank (now to be called New Jersey
Municipal Bond Finance Agency), was last considered by the
State Legislature. New Jersey was not alone in its municipal
financing dilemna at that time. All the other States were
experiencing the same difficulty. The Legislature, following
the lead of other States, wisely lifted the 67 interest rate
limitation and the panic and concerns of imminent defaults on
note borrowing by New Jersey municipalities immediately dis-
appeared. Every New Jersey municipality was immediately able
to finance its municipal improvements at the going rates estab-
lished by the supply and demand factors of the market.

In summary, in the light of the actual experience over
many years, and particularly during the high interest, tight
money conditions prevailing during the last year or so, during
which time New Jersey municipalities in their independent
undertakings found adequate capital for financing their
improvements at competitive rates, together with the high
present need and continuing growing demands for public
improvements which can only be financed at the State level,
we do not feel it is necessary nor in the best interests of
the State to create the proposed New Jersey Municipal Finance
Agency because we believe (1) it will have an adverse effect
upon the high credit rating of the State of New Jersey and
its ability to finance at the lowest possible interest cost,
(2) result in only limited savings to certain local munici-
palities, (3) result in creation of another State agency with
its attendant ever increasing operating and administrative
costs, (4) inject some $200,000,000 more State bonds into
the bond market in direct competition with the $250,000,000
presently authorized State bonds and $100,000,000 existing
State agency bonds which must be sold annually, (5) perma-
nently damage the proven marketing structure for local New
Jersey bonds and (6) undermine local government self-reli-
ance.

Another New Jersey credit agency that is presently being considered is

a State sewerage authority. It is argued that such a State agency
would permit the State to more expeditiously move ahead with regional
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water pollution facilities where local initiative is lacking. We
believe that this objective can be better achieved through amendment
of the present statutes for creating county and multi-municipal sewer-
age authorities rather than by creating another State agency. Such
amendment could permit the creation of regional authorities at the
recommendation of the State Department of Environmental Protection.
The governing bodies of the municipalities comprising the drainage
area, or the county freeholders of the county or counties involved,
could be given a specified period of time to appoint members to the
State imposed local regional authority. If such local officials

did not appoint members within such period the State Department of
Environmental Protection could make the appointments. This approach
would achieve the desired objective without the need for creating
another State agency to finance, operate and control local regional
facilities.

The major need in realizing the construction of regional water pollu-
tion control facilities is for the State Department of Environmental
Protection to use every moral and legal power available to it (court
ordered cessation of building in a particular community, etc.) to
persuade municipalities and local authorities to sign agreements with
regional authorities and thus provide the security base required for
the regional authority's bonding. The reluctance of municipalities
and local authorities, primarily because of political considerations,
to enter into agreements which will of necessity require higher local
sewer charges, even though it is the most economical way to comply
with State statutes is the most serious impediment to the early
realization of modern regional water pollution facilities.

e. Debt Management Facilities: We believe that the debt manage-
ment facilities provided by the State Division of Local Finance
are among the most competent and progressive of any State in the
Nation.

The conservative credit standards which this Division applies
to those municipalities seeking to borrow in excess of this
statutory limits has had a most salutary result. The public re-
lations programs and the recent efforts of the Division to gain
improved ratings for those New Jersey municipalities with sub-
standard ratings was most helpful.

The outstanding services being provided by this Division has
been the prime factor in achieving of the acceptance of New Jersey
municipal bonds by virtually every substantial professional in-
stitution in the United States which invests in tax free municipal
obligations.

We have no suggestions to make concerning means of improving

the high caliber of the debt management services offered by the
Division of Local Finance.

144



-1l

7. Value of Tax-~Exempt Aspects of State and Municipal Financing

The value of tax-exempt aspects of municipal bonds was amply demon-
strated in 1969 by the increase in interest rates on municipal bonds
resulting from the threat of proposed Federal legislation which would
have imposed a tax upon the interest on municipal bonds. It was found
that the mere threat of such a tax caused an increase of 1/2 of 1%

in the interest rates on high quality State bonds. To be more specific,
an increase of 1/2 of 1% in interest rates would add $6,250,000 per year
to the cost of financing the State's present capital program and about
$1,000,000 annually to local governments in New Jersey based upon the
historic $200,000,000 volume of local bonds.

Assuming New Jersey municipalities will continue to sell $200,000,000
bonds each year, the additional interest cost would build up to
$15,000,000 per year before new bond sales and old bond maturities
reach equilibrium.Revenues to cover this additional cost would bave to
be obtained by increasing real estate taxes. The overall effect of an
increase of 1/2 of 1% in interest rate at the State and local levels
in New Jersey would be an increase in motor fuels, sales and real
estate taxes by at least $21,000,000 per year.

A careful study by the Investment Bankers Association of the suggestion
that the Federal Government subsidize State and local municipalities
for the added cost which would result from their issuing taxable bonds
rather than tax-exempt bonds, reached the following conclusions: "In
sum, after taking into account all capital market shifts and economic
side effects, the IBA concluded that, even if the Treasury were to
subsidize the interest cost of States and municipalities by no more
than 32 per cent, the net loes to the Treasury would be $66 million,
and to all governments $114 million, on each year's financing and if
the Treasury should subsidize at 40 per cent of the interest cost,

the net loss would be $115 million for the Treasury and $163 million
for all governments. These figures are for each year's financing and
would accumulate year after year."

It is imperative that interest on municipal bonds remain tax-exempt in
order to retain, for the States and municipalities, the proven financ-
ing instrument which permits the sale of bonds at the lowest possible
interest cost.
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EXHIBIT "A"

Excerpt from Moody's Bond Survey - March 11, 1968
concerning lowering of rating on Commonwealth of

Pennsylvania Bonds from "AA" to "A".

Tax-Exempts

Month-1.oug Decline in Prices Continuces

Vot week™s now decucs sold at prices five to ten hadis
points cheaper than dssoes of corresponding quahty of a
week aro, Despite this circomstance, investor receprion swas
hichhy s bective, showine o preference for goadity bonds
at concession prices. Althoash housing honds are a unique
tax-exorapt security, the new issae looled very nich,

SuI Lkine as any evidenceg that the market has found
aworkable level :

Comnronweeclth of Pennsylvania

Stale Public School Building Authotity, General State Authority
and the Commonwealih

The Suite Pablic Sehool Building Authority plans to mar-
ket S10.800.000 school lease revenue bouds, serics X, on
March 192,

Purpose: The bonds will be issucd to finance the cost of
19 sepavate school building projects, including two com-
munity colleg building projects and to pav the related leanl,
triistee, Financing and administrative expenses.

Secmity: Serics X bonds, together with $406,338 000
parity bonds, series D throngh W will be secured by the
averceate rentals pavable o the authority by the lessee
school districts. As lessee, a school district (or districts in
jemtare) azrees to pav an annual rental w e State Public
School Building Authority sufficient to (1) cover the author-
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March 11, 1968

Moody's Bond Survew s &

ity's adiministrative expenses not provided for by the state;
(2) pay bond principal and interest: and (3) establish a
debt service reserve (over a ten-vear period) equal to averave
annual Cebt o service, Poch lease specifies an annual rental
which, when combined with all rentals due under all parity
bond issucs, will average not less than 11097 of
annual averegate debt service 1equitements, School disuics
arc empowered to levy unlimited ad valorem taxes for rental
payments. In addition, the individual district s responsible
for all costs of operating and maintainine the buoilding. The
state will reimburse the district for a poruon oi its lease
rental; the exact amount of the grant will vary from vear
to year under the Pennsylvania formulia for school aids.,

Additional Bonds: Additional parity licn bonds may be
issued if acurcgate annual rentals under leases securing
outstandiny and additional bonds and executed prior to the
date of the indenture afford a coverage of 1.10 times average
annual debt service requirements,

However, in the case of financing the cost of acquiring or
constructing additional projects, additional bonds may be
issued only on the basis of acreements and leases to be de-
posited with the trustee if  agercpate annual  rentals
average at least 1.20 times the average annuoal debt service
requiremients on such additional bonds in cach fiscal year
beginning with the year in which the Latest date when a
pavment of rental first shall be pavahle o the trustee.

Community Colleaes: Pursuant to the Pennsvlvania Public
School Code of 1949 (as amended by Act Noo 50, July 18,
196G7). the authority is now empowered o undertake projects
consisting of the construction, maintenance and cquipinent
of connmmity collegos, Said fadilities will be deased by the
authority, as lessor, (o the Fooaord of trustees of a commuanity
the Dopoetment of Publie Incuaction,  as
lessces. ‘The departiment in turn will enter into subleases
with the “local sponsor™ (hoard of trustees of any city, bor-
ough, town, township or county) of a community college.
Lease rentals Cin an amount sufficient to pay debt scrvice)
payable by the departnont for community college building
projects e pavable from currgnt revenues of the common-
wealth, Further, certain pavments and reimbwscements e
made tor operating costs and capital expenses. The “local
sponsor’” is authorized o levy a tax for establishing, operat-
ing and maintaining a2 community colleee, thé agereeate
of which cannot exceed certain limits set up under the Com-
munity Colleee Act.

Baclkground: The authorvite was ereated by the legislauare
two decades aeo. The anthority device was selected as the
most efficacious means of bypassimyg o rostrictnve consitu-
tional provision limitinge o school district’s debe to 79 or its
assessed value. Sinee then, various .m‘lln_:-_!'i.ly bonds have
financed the bulk of Pennsylvania's postwar capital im-
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provements, in conjunction with a program of Jeciclative
grants-in-aid. Authoritics now arce irreyocably entens heid i
the mores of Pennsylvanias _cconomic lite. TIS oy
ST has financed numerous school projects throush
nes of closed indentures (826,276,000 outstandine on beb 1L
1968, SG.-1 million of which is beld by o state rearemont
fund ;. These bonds, together with SA06G.388.000 other o
stnding oblications (not including the present sal
S$56.9 miilion advance refanded bond- 1o he calle o 100

firneed voader the new open end indontare aped vy

sl

o pariny with sertes N, comorise the entive el boape o
the anthority,

The complexity that has evolved under this new o;0n
end indenture as the result of the combined mnltnids of
for a formidable analvrical Pt
complications result from the credit whilc b
indentare prescribes a 110 cover in all leases subsequeni]y
necotinted it necessarily fails to spell out criterta ol
to the credit worthiness of new Jessces Within the Tanie o
leeal liability, authority credit would be littde bottey
the credit of the weakest lessees. As a cemposite, 1t wonld
in theory vary from ume to time as new leases are added
The authority was orizinally conceived to finance p
dominantly rural distvicts Tacking recosnized credit statiere
cHowever, like many burcaueracies, the auency has expardad

leases  makes jobh

variable:

i

its activities and now competes with anderwiiters oo -
tiating Joans to any school authority honrowers. As o oot
the composite quality of the authority’s holdings ha.
upgraded and managcement bopes that, given
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NEW TAX-EXEMPY ISSUES OFFERED

Dollar
Sale Amount MonAy's Sce
Date  (000) i’ Tssue Rating iR

35 33,300 IHlinois Bumlaing Authority

-=-Yiclds by Sclected Maturitices
10-yr. 1d-yr. 20-yr. 25-2r. Longest

2'Opinion

Buildin: Rewv, Aa 857 4.10 4.50 47:C 490C .. -«-  Concession priced.
3/5  30.000 Hawini, State of

Varons public impros ements R A 831 390 415 4.35 4.50 .- - Inldine.
/5 24,000 Prinee Georve's County Moaryand

. Various mutiemal facihties R A 854 3.95 4.20 4.40 4.55 5.40 .. Traditionally priccd

3/6 143,810 Publie Houan, Neencies

Low-rznt oot no. by Aaa R 365 385 100C 410C 4.50C 1 17C Rich

1. rent ot nos 2 ; - Aaa Son 365 385 400C 4.10C 4.35C 10C Rich
36 210 Los Anveles Department of A\ ater and

Power (Los Anecles) Californa

Elcctric . . . -Rev. Aa 837 N.R. 4.20C 4.30C 4.63C 4.75C 4 85C Attractive

pa— )

ANl issuces are rencral ebligatons unless otherw
foreca<t el evelude
N R.--Not reotiered I ~Term,

¢ specified,

TOpinions here expressed relate to
teterenee 1o matunities tadlored by use of abuonmally

current nmoa ket conditions Pt
high or low coupon rates to sclected buyers, C-Col o
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833 « AMoody's Bond Survey
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quality of its composite liabilitics will live up to its current ’5’~C~::.’j
market rating $ .5
* Beeause the investment  attributes of the authority's Az
bonds ngcessarily defy conventional analysis, investors will 2%
have to rely on the state’'s involvement. In this regard, one g%c
Jhns only to look to the membership of the anthority’s ad- £E®
'mnusuunn board to deduce that authority arvchitects have ol
[T
.achieved about as strong a moral commitnent as possible. Zz
'I’(‘lmsyl\'anin's Governor, for ¢xample, is president. Other 3"

members include the Speaker of the House of Representa-
tives, the President Pro Tempore of the Senate, the State
Treasurer and the minority leaders of both houses of the
legislature - coertainly a strong state endorsement.

Of course, all bonds issued under this new indenture
incorporate the provisions of the now familinr Act 333,
which provides that in the event of nonpayment of rent,
the Department of Public Instruction shall withhold an
amount cqual to the defanlted rental payment out of any
state appropriations due the offending school diswict and
pay it over to the authority. No one doubas that this Jesicla-
tion can cffectively combat small fives. However, cenred
effectiveness in controlling a major contlagration vemains
to be demonstratd, for the diversion of funds from de-
faulting school districts during times of prolonged cconomic
stress  could demoralize the state’s  educational  system,
Widespread enforcement of Act 333 might presage an
early repeal. Inthat event, reserves will alleviate short-term
embarrassment. Bevond that, investors would look (o re-
medial legislative action, for the state seemingly “has little
choice but to preserve the credit sanctity of this agency. Ad-
ditionally, in that the authority is continually making parity
coustruction Joans, its bonds are perpetually exposed to
risks indigenous (0 construction projects.

Comment: The moral commitment of the state with

regard to the above Public School Building Authority offer-
ing js somcwhat less than that afforded the General State
Authority oblizations with the possible exception of Com-
munity Colleze Bonds, which are the tirst two dssucs leased .
to the Departinent of Public Instruction. With the major ex-
ception of rental reimbursement and other appropriations,
the school districts have no recourse to the state. On the
othcr hand, General State Authority obligations are sccured
by a pledge of all rentals pavable to the authority by the
Commonwcalth of Pennsylvania from its current revenues.
Strong rcliance must be placed on the obligation of the
legislature to make adequate provision for rental payments
in biennial budgcts. In_essence, the bondholders have no
contractual recourse to t.hc comﬂgnwcalm the sounc of
dcbl service funds.

In thc market, obligations of the General State Authority
arc accorded an investment dignity significantly below the
dircct obligations of the commounwecalth; the state's role
in financing through the lease-rental device rather than by
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conventional municipal borrowing has proved extremely ratios; no improvement in state over-all ratios is expecteed.

expensive in terms of interest costs. Net bonded indcbtedness of the Comumonwealthh of Penne.
Since 1949 Pennsylvania has utilized the CSA as the sylvania as of June 30, 19G7:

medivr by which it has financed the construction of public

buildines housing state institutions and collezes and their  General oblisations ... ............... $130.293.639
lated sewaere \ ork . Authority bonds . ... ... ... ... . ... ... e 1,774,354.000
related scewage treatment works, arscnals, armories, air- g . rin on
) . . Capitatizing rental reimbursements, 40 years . .. 1.820.010.070
ports. dams and related flood control projects. Underlying debt (local governments) ... ... ... ... 4,550,700,000
7 uthoritics have become a way of fiscal life in Pennsyl- Ryt d
4 y Total oo $8.255.347,639

vania. Jecause of dependence upon legislative recognition
1of the recurring moral obligation to appropriate, we regard  Less self-supporting highway and

limited liability obligations of this type as being somewhat bridge gas tax revenue bonds .................. _ 327956000
fnferior to direce full faith and credit gencral obligations, Estimated met total, . .................... ...... $7,927,391,639

'dospitc the dictates of practicality which preclude a default.
"Should the lcgislature be so short-sighted as to fail to honor
its moral commitment via appropriation of, the annugl Jease
rrentals, the resulting default would incvitably impair the
*credit of the issuer’s direct general obligations.

Based on an estimated 1966 population of 11,358,000,
the above represents a formidable S690 per capita, 36.0%
of assessed valuation and 18.0°: of cstimated market value.

Authorized and Unissued Obligations

T We now rate the leasc rental revenue bonds of the Penn- Conservation reclamation (G.0.'s) $500.000.000
sylvania General State Authority Baa but we continue our  Teansportation-Assistance Authority ... ... .........  $3,000,000,000
policy of not rating the obligations of thé State Public

School Building Authority for the aforementioned reasons. In view of the continuing diminution of state credit oc-

“"On a statewide basis, combined net direct and underlying casioncd by a spiraling indcbtedness, with no prospect of a
ebt, including tax-supported and agency obligations, con- near-tcrm reversal in the trend, the general obligations of
inues to rise resulting in high full valuation and per capita the commonwealth are now rated A.

New and Revised . ..ngs

TAX-EXEMPT SECURITIES Pennsylvania General State Auth.: Containcr Corp. of America: .
e General obligations __.__.____________ Baa 81 deb. -, 1993 ... ‘A
v Springficld, Mo.: Louisiana Pover & Light Co.:

Athens-Clarke County Industrial RWaterworkn rev., 1968, <clling First mtge. —-s, 1998 .. .. ___.._.__..... ‘A
Development Auth, Ga. (lLessee: Mar. 12, 1968 .. . e ... OA Mifis Gas & E e Co -
Relianee Electrie & Engineering Co.): Pn(...iﬁ’{ 308 & E cctlxg "0160 A
Rovenuc, §eries 1968 .ooiveencnennun A RATINGS REVISED D (;): ‘,( rond Cot )
Bir Rapid<, Mich.: s eenville Cot C . Pittsbu th & Lake Lric Rai 1;.:;14 n.:
Bonds eelling Mar. 18, 1968 ... ..... ‘A Gtg:::,‘l}f(f,,;,xx < ( ... A toAs Eq. tr. s, trust oo 106y, 135083 ,....* A8
Carbon Coumy, Wyo.: enville € ST S Ce Sundstrand Corp.:
Bonds sclling Mar. 26, 1968 _......_..°A G'&;,":ﬂl',‘&;;:'“,‘,‘M\\ BC A to As Conv. sub. deb) --s, 1993 L. ... *Ba
Cook County Metro. Fair & Expo. Pennsy lvania, Connmonwealth of: Tepra .
Bin - Mlvi. rev., 111/67 oo As General obligations ... As 10 A not Tavisienal KIS are assipid 1o bonde
Granite City, 1il.: Waconja Ind. & D No. 110, Minn.: able information, including SLC registra-
General olfigations ... oooo.o.. A General obligations _ ... ... A to Bsa tl}?n statcments, i alny. {zmd ure su{i);;cct 1]
Howard Ind. S°’D No. 102, S. D.; chanpe as additional an Crinadtion eCOics
: Ty ’ . available. Con. { ) Liasc runtal odbhgation
K‘?;:;;j.s ;;’:::]:‘ Mar. 11, 1968 .oooo. oo A TAXABLE SECURITIES wherein rents boegin when x’au!.'.c‘: are
-ry, hianc: : 'IN completed bt dnsuranee coversie Mitie
General obligations ..ooooooooooooo.C A NE\‘V RATINGS mizes construcuion risks, Porentnotieal rate
Lane County S D No. 977, Ore.: Ancrican Broadcasting Companies, Inc.: ing denotes probable credit stargre 19 be
Bonds u-llmg Mar. 13, 1968 ...o...... ‘Sse Conv. sub. dcb. —s, 1993 (... .... ‘Bs attained upon cuinplction of constryctinn.

CORPORATE AND GOVERNMENT BOND YIELDS *

March 1968 ————-——— ~—1967-68— —-—-1966- —-- e e e MAPCh 1908 106708 o ] 96 G
T 6 5§ 4 1 High Low High Low 7 6 s ‘ 1 MHigh Low High Low
[DCORPORATF. BOND YIEL.D AVERAGES BY MOODY'S RATINGS
Av. Corp. 638 €638 638 639 639 655 533 573 488 Av,. P.U. C.3% 631 G241 631 6.34 A3 522 5.81 [§ 1)
Ana 60T 60T 607 608 608 624 49 3553 4373 Aaa 609 6.09 609 G0 6.1 633 498  S§359 476
Aa 625 623 62, 6206 626 6u% 516 560 483 AR 62 621 6.21 621 6.21 .4 §02 5.9 478
68 6.38 6.39 639 6.40 6.6 53> $5.72 4.9 A 635 6.35 6.35 606 627 61 524 583 483
Baa 6.”1 G.81 6.81 .81 6.81 69 H.80 620 35.05 Baa 670 669 60GY G6H 668 699 560 612 4.99
Av. R.R. 6.6 665 665 6.63 6.’5_5 677 546 581 497 Av. Ind, €30 630 G20 63l 61 [ &t 531 574 461
Asa a0 o w b n 611 1eR 553 452 Aai 604 601 €04 €£n3 603 16 500 135 499
As 648 641 640 642 842 647 Suy 564 499 Aa 614 6)4 GIi 613 G1i 65 509 L8 47 }
A €57 650 660 650 661 674 554 588 503 A 621 621 621 623 €21 612 325 866 47
Bas 694 694 694 695 693 7T.1S 338 €29 508 Baa €80 680 65 68 6K 691 570 623 56T
YIELDS ON U. S. TKEASURY ISSUFS

e = WECK Y v e

)l;r. cm}h. Febo Feb. -Moanthly= - 196768

U. 8. TREASURY ISSUES—YIELD AVERAGES--DAILY( 20 313 Jan. Feb. High lew

'91-Day bills _... 5.000 4950 5010 3031 5000 5127 3396
"3-5 years 571 356 565 560 539 5090 433 [t 1] m 4 182-Day bills _. 5173 503 5275 .40 5191 $.64) 3.692
L Long- $.3-Year index .. 366 Shi  HKL 3 565 578 4
Term $.20 ‘5.20 522 8520 5.8 85 4. ® @ y.5-Year index .. 509 . 5638 abi 009 563 3.82 057
310-Year indéx . 3.63 563 559 563 505 561 578 448

I Based on daily elusing prices. T Sclected notes and bonds between 3 and 3 ycaes to maturity. i DBonds ncither due nor eallable in lesy
than 10 years. 3 Average acceptad bid in weekly auction nearest the indicated date. © Indicated yicld tor an issue of the given mnnugity,
tuken froun a market yicld curve. s Not avindable. ° Due to insufficicht components outstanding, Mondy's Ao raobtoad aserage s dige
continucd as of Due, 18, 1967, This atfects 15¢ aveonge yield for over-all investiment guality railroad bonds swnich vall now be lun-terd o
three rating classifieations, "Aa 10 Baa, rateer tuan the forimer four classifications. The result will not be comparable with wrmer figares.
To a lesser extent this alsa has sonie effcct in the over-alt average corporate yicld. ¥For latest list of bonds used in corporate averoge see
Bond Survey of Doec. 25, 1067, page 28,

NOTE=Moudi's Invcstors Sorvier, Ire., Ry ysed due cove ynd eqution in the prepartion of this publicution, The factual tnforviacn hes Loom romy Gl foo
soyrces of repure, githuuyic not vicalinble, Kreata, whea ducovered, gre corvertod. Urinwna ar based portly wpom compiled fuciyal anjormat. n arl rurtly wpon
other fustors affccling owr judgment uf the meiter trcoted. Thoy ere indecpendunt end wad . . Prutd w LS A
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Excerpt from Moody's Bond Survey

October 19, 1964 concerning

the lowering of the rating on New York State Bonds from "AAA" to "AA'.

460 « Moody's Roud Survey

()unlny IR

Comuments on Coming Issues

New York State . . .

. is offering at competitive bidding on October 28, §234,-
£95.000 general obhigation bonds  Procecds of sale will be
uscd to finance state loans to several limited-profit housing
projects in New York City and in other areas of the state.

This offering follows the sale of $30 million park and
recreation land acquisition bonds on Sceptember 15, the
state's first direct obligation borrow iy in sixteen months.
In BoNno SURVEY of Sceptember 7, 1964, page 536G, the S30
million issue was discussed and obscrvavons were made
concerning certain phases of state fiscal operations and the
mounting cost and breadth of state commitiments. Still
carlier, in May of 1963, we discussed the philosophy of the
state’s “pav-as-vou-go” program and the part that financ-
ing by apency borrowing has played in makiog this avowed
“payoas -yous-go” program possible.

Since our last conmpients, the New York State Housing
Finance Auency has announced plans to sell approximately
$70 mnllion mental hospatal construction bonds. This is the
initial phise in a program designed to create around $500
million of additional mental hospital facilities. The bonds
are designed to be self sustaining; to bring this about a
Mental Hyuiene Facilities Improvement Fund Income  Ac-
count has been established to which has been credited all
paymicents made on or after January 1, 1964, for the care,
maintenance, and treatment of patients in every mental
hypicne facility of the Fund; such payments amounted to
close to $35 million in the state’s last completed fiscal year
with the money paid in prio} to January 1, 1964, going into
the state’s eencral fund

The Hosine Finaoee Avency bes been wiven the power to
issuc up o $1 bithon in debt for hadted-profit housig, $700
million for university construction and $500 million for
mental hy giene facibities.

The sources of revenues pledied to each class of debt of
the agency will be nominally adequate to provide for full
coverage of debt charges, at least in good times, but in the
case of tenants or mental patients it is possible that the
agency would suffer a loss in revenues but more likely the
state would he morally obligated to continue the
during a period of cconomie depression even af the recipient
lost part or all of his ability to pav. Al it is generally true
that interest costs on state apency debt are gre than
they wonld be were the state to issuc it own divect obliga-
tions  Furthermore, prior to the croation of the Housing
Finunce Agency, it was the state’s custom to use the direct
mecthod of debt ereation.

Foliowin: this sale of limited-profit housing bonds, the
state will have an authovized but unissued backlog of S1,-
178,660,000 gencral obligation debt, including 3208 million
for higher ¢ducation, S188 million for mental hospitals, $82
million for limited-profit housing and $250 million for low-
cost housing. In addition, the voters are being asked to
appreve at this ycar’s general election $165 million more
for low-cost housing.

Approval to issuc general obligation debt is obtained by the
following procedure: The bonding. proposal must be approved
by two suveessive legislatures and this must be followed
by voter sanction at the next gencral clection. Creation of
state agendies with honding powers requires legislative and
executive approval only.

Looking at the statc’s debt structure alonc, over all state

genoml ohlignuon dvl‘)_t_~]§~E(it’_burdcn.somc and, as a first

service

ater

150

charpe on the stite’s pencral fund, s well secarc i i
casc o] agency d(T:( the state has only @ moral and ut .

legal obligation to vote funds for debt service and then cnly

if reserve funds in the varions ageney accounts ace bopden a

lm( s unhkcl\' that the st'ntv'.\A\mmll Tl o mer e sergy
O‘)llg.\ll(?ll%, if for no ntlur reason than o pre e the
sanctity of the state’s credit, Howover the oo
on constiuction of the South Muall Project in Albog o vl e
rehiablitanon !

in cssence 18 a vd dene D
operation involving state, city and perhaps couny fo i
and other related facilities. Not o) of the

million-to-8$400-million cost will he borne by the orane b o

e antic

entinn el

indicated in this space previonshy . the state is commei
enter into a long term Jease for ate chare of the coor 08
has the same impact as incurrence of debt

But debt service is only one part and o omall one e b
complex operation of the New York Stvte governme g The
state’s current buduet for fiscal 196165 s o

billion, up $136 milthon over 196361,

recopd o~y

and only by oo

to cvery available expedicncy has gt been hroayle e
balance. Of this amount, alt but o <mall pare 16 the curee g
expense of what are essentially long, term Projects

commitments.

Educaton expenditures are estimated at §)
or 16% of the budget. State Opcr e eh
mentary and sccondary schools in the state 1 bode o o
$1,044 million, or about 425 of Jocal costy and the oo
hopes to provide up to 499 eventuallyv, Underhving oo b
debt, not including $650 million New York ( it debt o

IRETRIR}

EE TN

aid for Jocally

schools. amounts to roughly $2 billion and under pre -t b
the statc is conntied (o pay a subatantial page f 0 e
service on this long-teon debt. Higher cducanion v oo
other programs are cstimated o cost ST58 male o 70 s
and mental health expenditures are budueted ar ss3 od

lion, or 14% of the state’s budget and this also is «swon
a long-range commitinent. Social welfare acrounts for 300
million, 119 of thc budget, while general governmient a -
counts for only $148 miilion, or 5.

In our opinion, state debt and its long-range programs e
inc \nrlhl\ intertwined. As these
and as more and more state residents use these
opcrating costs will surely rise.

The state's current budget, utilizing every availahle soor
of revenue to the full, is only tenuously in balanee Jt oo
almost certain that in the next finea yeur the <o
forced 10 find new sources of revenue or rarvee the
on_current revenue sources to balance the

new faclities are oo
facilitie,,

IUREI R EY
Fafen
) | R T YRR AR
0\'(11 Tif guuml husiness conditions temain good o rie
statc 1o Iom.u appuears to possess the cabacity to ane e,
recurring items or other temporary expedicnts to allowian
the problem.

In rc»é(_-i\bim: the over-all picture and giving dur
to the preferred position of the state’s direct debt, it Js e
opinion_that gencral obligation debt now prope xl‘\_ Cadle in
the high grade 'uher than primce quality category. - 0F
tive toda) our rating on the slatcs general obliy: n‘n:n\ RIGE
been reduced to Aa. )

credone

In addition to the general oblizzation debt, the <fite he

guaranteed $500 wmillion New York State Thruway borndd,
(the balance of the Thruway debt is secured sololn by o]
revenues), and up to $100 million Port of New Yorl At

ity commuter car bonds (S17.590.000 outstanding. - 1
rating on these bonds has also been reduced fromn Aaa 1o

Aa



EXHIBIT "C"

Kidder. Pcabody & Co.
Incorporated
Gwerveoed 1NC

NEW YORK - ROSTON - PHILADELPHIA - CHICAGO

LOS ANGFLES - SAN FRANCISC O - ATLANTA - DAL LAS SOEXCHANCGE 1AL

NEw YORK N T a0,

October 19, 1970

The llonorable Raymond H. Bateman
21 East lligh Street
Somerville, New Jersey 08876

My dear Senator Bateman:

We arc vitally interested in the passage of Assembly 1013 which
supplements the Sewerage Authorities Law. Under the Sewerage Author-
ities Law when an Authority is created it is given the exclusive
rlght and power to finance, construct and operate all facilities for
the collection of sewage within its municipal boundaries. In order
to meet this very important duty and obligation in the most expedi-
tious and efficient way it is absolutely essential that an Authority
have all the financing "Lools'" available to it.

One of the most practical and equitable methods for firancing scwer
collecting lines is by special assessment. The fact that this method
is nol available to Sewerage Authorities has stymied the construction
of vitally needed sewer facilities in New lersey. The reason for
this is that in various instances the elected municipal officials
have not been willing to risk the possible negative election con-
sequences inherent in financing sewer lines via the assessment

route. In such instances the local Sewerage Authority, not having
the right to assess, is unable to perform its legal obligation to
provide these sewer facilities. This most unfortunate void in Sewer-
age Authority financing should be rectified by the passage of
Assembly 1013.

The basis for the opposition to Assembly 1013 on the part of the

New Jersey State League of Municipalities as outlined in the letter
to the lonorable Raymond H. Batemen, dated September 30, 1970, is
subject to question. In order to rebut the contentions of the League
in this regard we will enumerate them velow:

Contention: Assembly 1013 might lead to all authorities and all
agencies being given the power to levy assessments and the poor
property owner would never know from day to day what municipal agency
might place an assessment on his property.
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October 19, 1970

Comment: It seems to us that the matter of which authorities or
agencies should have the power of assessment must be answered funda-
mentally by asking whether the assessment financing vehicle will be
helpful to the authority or agency in fulfilling its exclusive legal
obligation to expeditiously finance the essential municipal facilities
involved (i.e., sewer, water, etc.). If the power to issue assessment
‘bond will expedite the construction of vital municipal services such
power should be made available to such authorities and agencies. There
is more danger in depriving authorities of the assessment financing
vehicle and thereby perhaps making it impossible for them to perform
their municipal function than in expanding its availability to such
authorities and agencies.

Since the language in Assembly 1013 provides in part that '"Such
special assessments shall be levied by the sewerage authority in the
same manner and mode of procedure as provided in article 2 of chapter
56 of Title 40 of the New Jersey Statutes" . . . (the same statute
governing municipal assessment powers), it is hard to accept the argu-
ment that ''the poor property owners and taxpayers would never know
from day to day what municipal agencies might place a levy and assess-
ment on his property."

Contention: Granting to authorities the power of assessment is con-
trary to the philosophy of authorities and will create general chaos
in determining whose special assessment had priority.

Comment: The basic philosophy of creating an authority to undertake
the ecxclusive financing, construction and operation of municipal
facilities is not predicated upon the elimination of property taxes

as a possible means of paying for such facilities. Authorities are
created in order to relieve the already overburdened municipal offi-
cial of the added responsibility of administering a complex and
specialized municipal utility operation as well as providing a flex-
ible financing vehicle which is unhampered by the various municipal
debt limitations which may be too restrictive. New Jersey Sewcragc
Authorities, except for the important power to issue assessment bouds,
have available to them all the other types of bonding which permit
them to finance sewer facilities in the most equitable manner including
the use of sewer rates, or a combination of sewer rates together with
property taxes via sewer service agreements with its constituent
municipality. To accept the theory that Authorities philosophically
cannot meet a portion of their costs from property tax funds where
such avenue is the most equitable way to allocate that portion of

the capital cost would be contrary to the public interest.
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The concern over whose asscessment has priority seems unwarranted.
Based upon the actual experience during the depression of the 1930's
the financially troubled property owner did not pay any of his
assessments. Therefore, the matter of priority was not pertinent.

Under Assembly 1013 the fact that the sewerage authority would bill
and collect the sewer assessment, separate and distinct from the
municipality or any other agency, would in itself make it absolutcly
clear that any scwer assessment paid to the sewerage authority would
be its revenue and not that of the municipality or any other municipal
agency.

In summary, it continues to be our very strong feeling, based upon
years of experience in the specialized area of New Jersey Municipal
Finance, and after seriously considering the objections raised by the
New Jersey Scate L.ague of Municipalities that the passage of
Assembly 1013 is in the best interests of the residents of New Jersey
for the following reasons:

1. Anything that expedites the cleansing of our waterways of
pollution without adversely affecting the sound and proven
municipal financing system in New Jersey, should be enacted.
In our opinion Assembly 1013 meets this criteria.

2. 1t is most unfortunate that a municipal body =~- sewerage
authority == duly created and with the exclusive power and
responsibility to finance sewer collecting facilities 1is
deprived of the use of a financing vehicle which is needed

right now in order to finance sewer collecting facilities in the
most equitable way for its constituents. Assembly 1013 would

provide this important financing vehicle.

3. The fact that Acrsembly 1013 requires that the sewerage
authority must follow the same manner and mode of procedure
as the present municipal assessment law should alleviate
any concerns over a sewerage authority not following the
established procedure.

4. There has been great concern voiced over the reluctance of
local municipal officials to take the initiative in the
financing of costly, but absolutely essential anti-pollution
sewerage facilities. Assembly 1013 evolves from the desire

of sewerage authority officials to meet their legal responsi-
bility in financing such needed sewerage facilities which they
cannot otherwise equitably finance. The passage of Assembly
1013 will permit these responsible and dedicated sewerage
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authority officials to meet their responsibilities in the
most equitable way and, thereby, benefit their constituents
and the State of New Jersey through the immediate financing
of sewer facilities which will abate both pollution and the
menace to public health.

Very truly yours,
Kidder, Peabody & Co.
Incorporated,

s —

Albert F. Haiback
Vice President

AFH :MC

cc: Members of New Jersey Senate
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